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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-K
X] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(@F THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended May 25, 2014, or
[1] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR(#l) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Transition period for to

Commission file numbef-27446

LANDEC CORPORATION
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

Delaware 94-302561¢
(State or other jurisdiction of (IRS Employel
incorporation or organizatiol Identification Number

3603 Haven Avenue
Menlo Park, California 94025
(Address of principal executive offices)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code:
(650) 306-1650
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(thefAct:

Title of each clas Name of each exchange on which reqistt
Common Stock The NASDAQ Global Select Stock Mark

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(thefct:
None
(Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405%dbéturities Act.
Yes _ No_X

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ortidacl5(d) of the Act.

Yes _ No__ X
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant éf filed all reports required to be filed by Seetic or 15(d) of the Act during the preceding
12 months (or for such shorter period that thestegmt was required to file such reports), anché® been subject to such filing requirements for
the past 90 days.

Yes_X No__
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant biasnitted electronically and posted on its corpo¥ébsite, if any, every Interactive Data File
required to be submitted and posted pursuant te Rb of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 tm®ior for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to submit and post suel)fil

Yes _X_ No
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Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquidlers pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiorkSs not contained herein, and will not be contdij
to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in defirgtiwoxy or information statements incorporateddfgnence in Part Ill of this Form 10-K or any
amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlazge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting
company. See definition of “large accelerated fiterd “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportingngpeany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large Accelerated Filer __ Acesrdted Filer_X
Non Accelerated Filer SrealReporting Company __

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act)

Yes _ No _ X
The aggregate market value of voting stock helddoy-affiliates of the Registrant was approxima&2p4,141,000 as of November 24, 2013,
the last business day of the registrant’s mostnthceompleted second fiscal quarteased upon the closing sales price on The NASDAG &
Select Market reported for such date. Shares off@@mStock held by each officer and director an@éé&gh person who owns 10% or more of
the outstanding Common Stock have been excluded $tach calculation in that such persons may be dddmbe affiliates. This determination
of affiliate status is not necessarily a concluslegermination for other purposes.

As of July 18, 2014, there were 26,839,725 shar€ommon Stock outstanding.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s definitive proxy staent relating to its October 2014 Annual Meetingtdckholders which statement will be filed
not later than 120 days after the end of the figeal covered by this report, are incorporatedefgrence in Part 11l hereof.
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PART |
ltem 1. Business

This report contains forward-looking statementshimithe meaning of Section 21E of the Securitiesiarge Act of 1934. Words such
as “projected,” “expects,” “believes,” “intends ASsumes” and similar expressions are used to fgéativard-looking statements. These
statements are made based upon current expectatidrzojections about our business and assumptiadse by our management and are not
guarantees of future performance, nor do we assmy@bligation to update such forward-looking staats after the date this report is filed.
Our actual results could differ materially from sieoprojected in the forwaldeoking statements for many reasons, includingisiefactors liste:
in Item 1A. “Risk Factors” and the factors discukbelow.

Corporate Overview

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Landacthe “Company”) design, develop, manufacture aadket differentiated products
in food and biomedical materials markets and liegeshnology applications to partners. The Compafigcused on health and
wellness solutions and applications within the pagd food and biomaterial markets. In our Apio, [(&pio”) food business, we are commit
to offering healthy, fresh produce products coneetly packaged to consumers. Apio also exports evfrait and vegetables, predominantly to
Asia through its subsidiary, Cal Ex Trading Compéi@al-Ex"). In our Lifecore Biomedical, Inc. (“Lécore”)biomedical materials business,
commercialize products that enable people to st@aeractive as they grow older.

Landec’s food and biomedical materials businesskzeupolymer chemistry technology, a key diffetiating factor. Both core
businesses focus on business-to-business sellaigasuselling directly to retail grocery store ciseand club stores for Apio and directly to large
ophthalmic suppliers for Lifecore. Both core busies also benefit from the momentum that undesbasumer interest in healthy livingeating
better and staying active.

Within our two core businesses, Landec has threeatipg segments — Food Products Technology, FepdrEand HA-based
Biomaterials, each of which is described belowaRial information concerning each of these segstentfiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012 is
summarized in Note 14 to the Consolidated Finargialements.

Apio operates our Food Products Technology busjmgsish combines our proprietary BreatheWay® foadkaging technology with
the capabilities of a large national food suppdied value-added produce processor which sells ptedunder the Eat Smart® and GreenLine®
brands. In Apio’s value-added operations, prodageacessed by trimming, washing, mixing, and pagitigin bags and trays that in most cases
incorporate Landec’s BreatheWay membrane technolDigy BreatheWay membrane increases shelf life@ghaces shrink (waste) for retailers
and helps ensure that consumers receive fresh gedduthe time the product makes its way throughstipply chain. Apio also licenses the
BreatheWay technology to partners such as Chi@saads International, Inc. (“Chiquita”) for packagiand distribution of bananas and to
Windset Holding 2010 Ltd., a Canadian corporatitiigdset”), for packaging of greenhouse grown cubens and peppers.

Apio also operates the Food Export business. Tloel [Export business purchases and sells wholedndgitvegetable products
predominantly to Asian markets.

Lifecore operates our Biomaterials business apdiigipally involved in the manufacture of pharmatieal-grade sodium hyaluronate
(“HA") products. Sodium hyaluronate is a naturallscurring polysaccharide that is widely distributedhe extracellular matrix in animals and
humans. Based upon Lifecore’s expertise workingy Wighly viscous HA, the Company also specialireaseptic filling services, as a contract
development and manufacturing organization (CDM@)difficult to handle (viscous) medicines filléal finished dose syringes.

Landec was incorporated in California on Octoberi®B6 and reincorporated as a Delaware corporatiadovember 6, 2008. Our
common stock is listed on The NASDAQ Global SeMearket under the symbol “LNDC”.




Technology Overview

The Company has two proprietary polymer technololgjforms: 1) Intelimer® materials which are the kechnology behind our
BreatheWay membrane technology, and 2) hyalurof@olymers. The Company’s materials are generalipetary as a result of being
patented or due to being specially formulated facific customers to meet specific commercial agpions and/or specific regulatory
requirements. The Company’s polymer technologtes;ustomer relationships and trade names anttétsgschannels of distribution, are the
foundation and key differentiating advantages oictwhandec has built its business.

A) Intelimer Polymers

Intelimer polymers are crystalline, hydrophobicymoérs that use a temperature switch to controlnaodulate properties such as
viscosity, permeability and adhesion when varyhgymaterials’ temperature above and below the testyre switch. The sharp temperature
switch is adjustable at relatively low temperaty@sC to 100° C) and the changes resulting froentémperature switch are relatively easy to
maintain in industrial and commercial environmefis:. instance, Intelimer polymers can change withearange of one or two degrees Celsius
from a non-adhesive state to a highly tacky, adfeestate; from an impermeable state to a highlyngable state; or from a solid state to a
viscous liquid state.

Landec's proprietary polymer technology is basetherstructure and phase behavior of Intelimer ried$e The abrupt thermal
transitions of specific Intelimer materials areiagbd through the controlled use of hydrocarboe siihins that are attached to a polymer
backbone. Below a pre-determined switch temperatihieepolymer's side chains align through weak dylobic interactions resulting in a
crystalline structure. When this side chain cryiz@ble polymer is heated to, or above, this switshperature, these interactions are disrupted
and the polymer is transformed into an amorphoisspus state. Because this transformation invadvplsysical and not a chemical change, this
process can be repeatedly reversible. Landec tdhespolymer switch temperature anywhere betwéed @ 100° C by varying the average
length of the side chains.

Landec's Intelimer materials are readily availabid are generally synthesized from long side-chaiglic monomers that are derived
primarily from natural materials such as coconwt palm oils that are highly purified and designeth¢ manufactured economically through
known synthetic processes. These acrylic-mononventaterials are then polymerized by Landec leatbngany different side-chain
crystallizable polymers whose properties vary depenupon the initial materials and the synthetimopss. Intelimer materials can be made into
many different forms, including films, coatings,amicapsules and discrete forms. Intelimer polyraeeshe coatings on the substrate used to
form our BreatheWay membranes.

BreatheWay Membrane Packaging

Certain types of fresh-cut and whole produce cail sp discolor rapidly when packaged in convendéibpackaging materials and,
therefore, are limited in their ability to be dibtrted broadly to markets. The Company’s proprieBreatheWay packaging technology utilizes
Landec’s Intelimer polymer technology to naturaitend the shelf life and quality of fresh-cut avttble produce.

After harvesting, vegetables and fruit continueetgpire, consuming oxygen and releasing carboridBoX 0o much or too little oxyge
can result in premature spoilage and decay. Thpgragi®n rate of produce varies for each fruit aedetable. Conventional packaging films used
today, such as polyethylene and polypropylene beamade with modest permeability to oxygen andaradioxide, but often do not provide the
optimal atmosphere for the packaged produce. Tizeelptimal product performance, each fruit oretagle requires its own unique package
atmosphere conditions. The challenge facing thestrd is to develop packaging that meets the highhjable needs that each product requires
in order to achieve value-creating performance. Campany believes that its BreatheWay packagingnaogy possesses all of the critical
functionalities required to serve this diverse netirkn creating a product package, a BreatheWayhreme is applied over a small cutout sec
or an aperture of a flexible film bag or plastiaytr This highly permeable “window” acts as the nagbm to provide the majority of the gas
transmission requirements for the entire packages& membranes are designed to provide three alrmenefits:




High Permeability. Landec's BreatheWay packaging technology is dedigmeermit transmission of oxygen and carbon diext 300 to
1,000 times the rate of conventional packagingdilithe Company thinks that these higher permegalghitels will facilitate the
packaging diversity required to market many typefsesh-cut and whole produce in many package simesconfigurations.

Ability to Adjust Oxygen and Carbon Dioxide Ratios. BreatheWay packaging can be tailored with carboridée to oxygen transfer ratios
ranging from 1.0 to 12.0 to selectively transmiygen and carbon dioxide at optimum rates to sust@muality and shelf life of
packaged produce. Other high permeability packagiatgrials, such as micro-perforated films caniféerntially control carbon
dioxide permeability resulting in sub-optimal pag&aatmosphere conditions for many produce products.

Temperature Responsiveness. Landec has developed breathable membranes thaeadesigned to increase or decrease permeability in
response to environmental temperature changesCoimpany has developed packaging that respondglhemhoxygen requirements at
elevated temperatures but is also reversible, etodns to its original state as temperatures dechs the respiration rate of fresh
produce also increases with temperature, the Beédly membrane’temperature responsiveness allows packages foecmate for th
change in produce respiration by automatically stitjg gas permeation rates. By doing so, detrimigaizkage atmosphere conditions
are avoided and improved quality is maintainedubfothe distribution chain.

B) Sodium Hyaluronate (HA

Sodium hyaluronate is a non-crystalline, hydrophplolymer that exists naturally as part of theaoetlular matrix in many tissues
within the human body, most notably within the amushumor of the eye, synovial fluid, skin and uioal cord. The viscoelastic properties i
water solubility of HA make it ideal for medical@jrations where space maintenance, lubricityssué protection are critical. Because of its
widespread presence in tissues, its critical mlearmal physiology, and its high degree of biocatifglity, the Company believes that
hyaluronan will continue to be used in existing laggtions and for an increasing variety of otherdinal applications.

Sodium hyaluronate can primarily be produced inways, either through bacterial fermentation ootigh extraction from rooster
combs. Lifecore produces HA only from fermentatiosing an extremely efficient microbial fermentatjgrocess and a highly effective
purification operation.

Sodium hyaluronate was first demonstrated to hawentercial medical utility as a viscoelastic solatio cataract surgery. In this
application, it is used for maintaining the spacéhie anterior chamber and protecting cornealdisiuing the removal and implantation of
intraocular lenses. The first ophthalmic HA prodycbduced by extraction from rooster comb tiskeeame commercially available in the
United States in 1981. In 1985, Lifecore introduttesl bacterial fermentation process to manufagitemium HA and received patent proteci
until 2002. HA-based products, produced eitherdmster comb extraction or by fermentation processeh as Lifecore’s, have since gained
widespread acceptance in ophthalmology and aremtlyrused in the majority of cataract extractioogedures in the world. HA has also
become a significant component in several produssl in orthopedics. Lifecore’s HA is used as aoiis carrier for allogeneic freeze-dried
demineralized bone used in spinal surgery, antleaadtive component of devices to treat the symgtohosteoarthritis, and as a component to
provide increased lubricity to medical devicesekifre’s HA has also been utilized in veterinarygdrpplications to treat traumatic arthritis.

Description of Business Segments

In this Description of Business Segments sectigpjd” and the “Food Products Technology busines#’ve used interchangeably; however,
when describing Apio’s export business it will leéerred to as the “Food Export business”.




A) Food Products Technology Busine

The Food Products Technology business had reverf@61 million for the fiscal year ended May 28,12, $320 million for the fisce
year ended May 26, 2013 and $208 million for tsedl year ended May 27, 20:

Based in Guadalupe, California, Apio’s primary Imesis is fresh-cut and whole value-added produptsally packaged in our
proprietary BreatheWay packaging. Apio’s freshaaailtie-added products business markets a varidtgsti-cut and whole vegetables to the top
retail grocery chains, club stores and food sergferators. During the fiscal year ended May 2842@pio shipped approximately twenty-nine
million cartons of produce to its customers thraughNorth America, primarily in the United States.

Most vegetable products packaged in our Breathepdakaging have 17 to 20 days of shelf life. In &iddito packaging innovation,
Landec’s Apio food business develops innovativedideand combinations of vegetables that are sdlehiible film bags or rigid trays. More
recently, the Company has launched a family oftskits that are comprised of “superfood” mixturésyegetables with healthy
toppings/dressings. The launch of the first of ¢heducts called Sweet Kale Salad has brokerf Alpim’s records for speed of adoption with
weekly sales of well over $1 million as of May 20Adiditionally, we have launched several other sigoel salad kits including Ginger Bok
Choy, Apple Fennel, Kale and Chard Stir Fry andnghai Stir Fry, as examples. The Company’s expeitisludes accessing leading culinary
experts and nutritionists nationally to help in tiesv product development process. We believe timahew products are “on trend” and strong
market acceptance supports this belief. Recenstitatshow that 39% of Americans are obese and @3&nericans have diabetes. More and
more consumers are beginning to make better fooites in their schools, homes and in restauramgtaat is where our superfood products
fit into consumers daily healthy food choices.

In addition to proprietary packaging technology armstrong new product development pipeline, the @om has strong channels of
distribution throughout North America with retailogery store chains and club stores. Landec hasiomere of its products in over 70% of all
retail and club store sites in North America givirgya strong platform for introducing new products.

The Company sells its products under the natiodaltywn brands EatSmart® and GreenLind®e Company also periodically licen:
its BreatheWay packaging technology to partners siscChiquita for packaging bananas and to Wirfdsgtackaging peppers and cucumbers
that are grown hydroponically in greenhouses. Tamgany is engaged in the testing and developmerthef BreatheWay products. These
packaging license relationships generate reveritleess &om product sales or royalties once comnadizsd.

Apio Business Model

Eat Smart® and
GreenLine® Brands

Innovative Mew Blends ﬂ BreatheWay®
of Superfood Products Proprietary Packaging

Fresh-Cut Products
Market Leadership

70% Channel Penetration
in Retail/Club Stores




Landec is working with leaders in club stores, itgfiacery chains and food service customers. Tom@any thinks it will have growth
opportunities for the next several years through cestomers and the introduction of innovative picid in the United States, expansion of its
existing customer relationships, and export andrebnt of specialty packaged produce.

Landec manufactures its BreatheWay packaging threetected qualified contract manufacturers. Iritafdto using BreatheWay
packaging for its valuadded produce business, the Company markets dadsehtheWay packaging directly to select parfaed distributors

There are five major distinguishing characteristité\pio that provide competitive advantages infoed Products Technology mark

Value-Added Supplier: Apio has structured its business as a marketesalter of branded and private label fresh-cut ahdlesvalue-
added produce. It is focused on selling productienits Eat Smart and GreenLine brands and prlaatd brands for its fresh-cut and
whole value-added products. As retail grocery chaifub stores and food service operators condelidaio is well positioned as a
single source of a broad range of products.

Reduced Farming Risks:Apio reduces its farming risk by not taking ownepsbf farmland, and instead, contracts with growfergproduct
and during certain times of the year, enters iaiiat jventures with growers for produce. The yeamsourcing of produce is a key
component to the fresh-cut and whole value-addedgssing business.

Access to Customer BaséApio has strategically invested in the rapidly giagvfresh-cut and whole value-added business. Apialue-
added processing plant in Guadalupe, CA, is autednaith state-of-the-art vegetable processing eqeig. Apio operates one large
central processing facility in one of the lowesstogrowing regions in California, the Santa Mar&llgy, and for the majority of its non-
green bean vegetable business, uses its packagimgaiogy for nationwide delivery. With the acqti@i of GreenLine, Apio now has
three East Coast processing facilities and five Eagast distribution centers for nationwide delivef green beans and recently Apio
began processing non-green bean products in oo dfast Coast processing facilities to meet thxt-day delivery needs of
customers.

Expanded Product Line Using Technology and Unique Bnds: Apio, through the use of its BreatheWay packagauhology, is
introducing new value-added products each years@hew product offerings range from various siZdésesh-cut bagged products, to
vegetable trays, to whole produce, to vegetabkrdsadnd to snack packs. During the last twelve hsortpio has introduced eleven
new unique products.

Products Currently in Over 70 % of U.S. Retail Groery Stores:With the acquisition of GreenLine, Apio how hasdwots in over 70%
of all U.S. retail grocery stores. This gives Affie opportunity to cross sell Eat Smart vahgieled products to GreenLine customers
GreenLine value-added products to Eat Smart cusgome

Windset

On February 15, 2011, Apio entered into a shareliase agreement (the “Purchase Agreemexitt) Windset. Pursuant to the Purct
Agreement, Apio purchased 150,000 senior prefeshades for $15 million and 201 common shares fodghe “Purchased Shares”). The
Company’s common shares represent a 20.1% iniar@éindset. The non-voting senior preferred shagiekl a cash dividend of 7.5% annually.
The dividend is payable within 90 days of each @ensiary of the execution of the Purchase AgreenTdm.Purchase Agreement includes a put
and call option, which can be exercised on thénsixiniversary of the Purchase Agreement whereby &g exercise the put to sell its
Purchased Shares to Windset, or Windset can egdtwscall to purchase the Purchased Shares from iyeither case, at a price equal to
20.1% of the appreciation in the fair market vadfi®Vindset from the date of the Company’s investntierough the put/call date, plus the
purchase price of the Purchased Shares. Undegrts bf the arrangement with Windset, the Compampntitled to designate one of five
members on the Board of Directors of Windset. Oy 16, 2014, the Company purchased an additio@@f Windset common stock and
8.5% of Windset's outstanding junior preferred ktfar an aggregate price of $11.0 million incregsiis ownership to 26.9% of Windset's
common stock.




The Company thinks that hydroponically grown praglusing Windset's know-how and growing practicets mesult in higher yields
with competitive growing costs that will providepgsdable year round supply to Windset's custonteraddition, the produce grown in
Windset's greenhouses has a very high safety prafilno soil is used in the growing process. Winolsas and operates greenhouses in British
Columbia, Canada and in Nevada and Californiadtiiteon to growing produce in their own greenhoyd®mdset has numerous marketing
arrangements with other greenhouse growers angegtibuy/sell arrangements to meet fluctuationeimand from their customers.

B) Food Export Busines:

Food Export revenues consist of revenues genefiatedthe purchase and sale of primarily whole comitydruit and vegetable
products to Asia through Apio’s export company,-Eal The Food Export business is a commission-bbegsell business that realizes a gross
margin in the 5-8% range.

The Food Export business had revenues of $70 milbothe fiscal year ended May 25, 2014, $79 millfor the fiscal year ended May
26, 2013 and $71 million for the fiscal year enfi&aly 27, 2012.

Apio is strategically positioned with Cal-Ex to lefih from the growing population and wealth in Asiad other parts of the world over
the next decade. Through Cal-Ex, Apio is curreatig of the largest U.S. exporters of broccoli teaA®ther large export items include apples,
grapes, stonefruit and citrus.

C) HA-based Biomaterials

Our HA-based Biomaterials business operates throughifecore subsidiary. Lifecore had revenue$46 million for the fiscal year
ended May 25, 2014, $41 million for the fiscal yeaded May 26, 2013 and $34 million for the figgshr ended May 27, 2012.

Lifecore operates our medical materials businedssaprincipally involved in the manufacture of pmaceutical-grade sodium
hyaluronate products in the form of injectable prad for ophthalmologic and orthopedic applicatidrsere is now a greater percentage of
Americans age 65 and older than at any other tmi¢ $. history and currently over 40 million Amexics are 65 years of age or older and this
trend is going to accelerate dramatically overtpeoming years. As our population ages, eye sw@gatich as cataract surgeries, are going to
increase. Additionally, patients will seek joinethpy as cartilage and soft tissue deterioratesinié&tions are a primary course of treatment
Lifecore has built a leadership position in the ke#s it serves. It is estimated that there wilPBemillion cataract surgeries in 2014 worldwide.
Lifecore’s expertise includes its ability to fernhieseparate, purify, and aseptically fill HA fojentable product use. In addition to ophthalmic
and orthopedic uses, veterinary medicine is anatpplication for Lifecore’s HA. Lifecore leverages fermentation process to manufacture
premium, pharmaceutical-grade HA and uses its ies@phg capabilities to also deliver private-laled HA finished products to its customers.
Lifecore sells its products through partners intth8., Europe and South America. Lifecore has lisilteputation as a premium supplier of HA.

Lifecore’s products are primarily sold to strategiarketing partners for use in three medical afgd<Ophthalmic, (2) Orthopedic and
(3) Veterinary. In addition, Lifecore provides pumd development services to its partners for HAedasas well as non-HA based, fermented
products and aseptically formulated products. Tiseseices include activities such as tech transfiaterial component changes, analytical
method development, pilot studies, stability stadrocess validation, and clinical production.

By leveraging its fermentation process and asdptinulation and filling expertise, Lifecore has baw a leader in the supply of HA-
based products for multiple applications, and h&en advantage of non-HA device and drug opporasiily leveraging its expertise in
manufacturing and aseptic syringe filling capaieiit Elements of Lifecore’s strategy include thiéofeing:

«  Edtablish strategic relationships with market leaders. Lifecore will continue to develop applications fmoducts with partners who
have strong marketing, sales and distribution céipab to end-user markets. Through its stronguteion and history of providing
pharmaceutical grade HA and products, Lifecoreldeesn able to establish long-term relationships thighmarket leading ophthalmic surgical
companies, and leverages those partnerships aztatew relationships in other medical markets.




»  Expand medical applications for HA . Due to the growing knowledge of the unique chiarstics of HA, and the role it plays in
normal physiology, Lifecore continues to identifydapursue opportunities for the use of HA in otimedical applications, such as wound care,
aesthetic surgery, drug delivery, device coatimgstarough pharmaceutical sales to academic ampbate research customers. As part of this
effort, Lifecore continues to explore applicatidasits Corgel® Biohydrogel technology licensedrfréhe Cleveland Clinic Foundation. Further
applications may involve expanding process devetgractivity and/or additional licensing of techogy.

»  Utilize manufacturing infrastructure to pursue contract aseptic filling and fermentation opportunities. Lifecore has made strategic
capital investments in its contract manufacturind development business focusing on extendingépte filling capacity and capabilities. It is
investing in this segment to meet increasing padeenand and attract new contract filling oppottiesi Lifecore is using its manufacturing
capabilities to provide contract manufacturing deslelopment services to its partners in the aresteoile pre-filled syringes and fermentation
and purification requirements.

» Maintain flexibility in product development and supply relationships. Lifecore’s vertically integrated development and
manufacturing capabilities allow it to establishaaiety of contractual relationships with globalporate partners. Lifecore’s role in these
relationships extends from supplying HA raw materia providing tech transfer and development sewio manufacturing aseptically-
packaged, finished sterile products and to assufalihgupply chain responsibilities.

Trademarks/Trade names

Intelimer®, Landec®, Apio™, Eat Smart®, BreatheWay®eenLine®, Clearly Fresh™, Lifecore®, LUROCOAT ndaOrtholure™
are some of the trademarks or registered tradenaaks$rade names of the Company in the United Statd other countries. This Annual Re|
on Form 10-K also refers to the trademarks of otieenpanies.

Sales and Marketing

Apio is supported by dedicated sales and marketiagurces. Apio has 36 sales and marketing em@olaeated in central California
and throughout the U.S., supporting the Food Prisdlechnology business and the Food Export busifiesing fiscal years 2014, 2013 and
2012, sales to the Company'’s top five customerswatted for approximately 42%, 40% and 45%, respelgtj of its revenues, with the top two
customers, both from the Food Products Technolegyent, Costco Wholesale Corporation which accaufateapproximately 21%, 16%, and
17%, respectively, and Wal-mart, Inc. which accedrfbr approximately 11%, 13%, and 11%, respegtj\aflthe Company’s revenues. A loss
of either of these customers would have a matadeérse effect on the Company’s business.

Lifecore sells products to partners under supphg@agents and also through distribution agreemg&mntduding research sales, Lifecore
does not sell to end users and, therefore, doesavetthe traditional infrastructure of a dedicatalkks force and marketing employees and its
name recognition allows Lifecore to attract newtemers and offer its services with a minimal mairigeand sales infrastructure.

Seasonality
Apio’s sales are seasonal. The Food Products Témwnbusiness can be affected by seasonal weatbter§, such as the high cost of
sourcing product due to a shortage of essentiakvatided produce items, which have impacted glaresults in the past. The Food Export

business also typically recognizes a much higheremage of its revenues and profit during the fiedf of Landec’s fiscal year compared to the
second half. Lifecore’s business is not signifiaaffected by seasonality.
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Manufacturing and Processing
Food Products Technology Business

The manufacturing process for the Company's prigpsieBreatheWay packaging products is comprisqebtfmer manufacturing,
membrane manufacturing and label package converAithird party toll manufacturer currently makeaguwally all of the polymers for the
BreatheWay packaging system. Select outside cdatsacurrently manufacture the breathable membramesLandec has transitioned virtually
all of the label package conversion to Apio’s Guaga facility to meet the increasing product demand to provide additional developmental
capabilities.

Apio processes virtually all of its fresh-cut, vedadded non-green bean products in its procesaailifyf located in Guadalupe,
California. Cooling of produce is done throughdhparties and Apio Cooling LP, a separate constalaubsidiary in which Apio has a 60%
ownership interest and is the general partner.

Apio processes its fresh-cut, value-added green peaiucts, acquired with the acquisition of Greaelin April 2012, in four
processing plants located in Guadalupe, Califoa@yling Green, Ohio; Hanover, Pennsylvania; andoigeach, Florida.

Hyaluronan-based Biomaterials Business

The commercial production of HA by Lifecore reqsifermentation, separation and purification cajitédsl Products are supplied in a
variety of bulk and single dose configurations.

Lifecore produces its HA through a bacterial fertaéion process. Medical grade HA was initially coeroially available only through
an extraction process from rooster combs. Lifebeieves that the fermentation manufacturing apgraés superior to rooster comb extraction
because of greater efficiency and flexibility, arsnéavorable long-term regulatory environment, batter economies of scale in producing large
commercial quantities. Today's HA competitors arienprily utilizing a fermentation process.

Lifecore’s 114,000 square foot facility in Chaskéinnesota is used primarily for the HA manufactgrprocess, formulation and
aseptic syringe and bulk filling. The Company cdess$ that the current inventory on-hand, togeth#r its manufacturing capacity, will be
sufficient to allow it to meet the needs of itsremt customers for the foreseeable future.

Lifecore provides versatility in the manufacturioigvarious types of finished products. It suppBeseral different forms of HA in a
variety of molecular weight fractions as powdedusons and gels, and in a variety of bulk andjigruse finished packages. Lifecore continues
to conduct development work designed to improvepetion efficiencies and expand its capabilitiea¢hieve a wider range of HA product
specifications in order to address the broadenpmpdunities for using HA in medical applications.

The FDA inspects the Company’s manufacturing systpeemiodically and requires compliance with the FOAuality System
Regulation (“QSR”). In addition, Lifecore’s custormeonduct intensive quality audits of the facibityd its operationd.ifecore also periodicall
contracts with independent regulatory consultamtohduct audits of its operations. Similar toeotmanufacturers subject to regulatory and
customer specific requirements, Lifecore’s facilitgs designed to meet applicable regulatory reméres and has been cleared for the
manufacturing of both device and pharmaceuticadipets. The Company maintains a Quality System wbichplies with applicable standards
and regulations: FDA Medical Device Quality Systerguirements (21 CFR 820); FDA Drug Good ManufantuPractices (21 CFR 210-211);
European Union Good Manufacturing Practices (Euexa¥olume 4); Medical Device Quality Managementt8ys (ISO 13485); European
Medical Device Directive; Canadian Medical DevicegRlations; International Guide for Active Pharmaial Ingredients (ICH Q7), and
Australian Therapeutic Goods Regulations). Compkeawith these international standards of qualigaty assists in the marketing of
Lifecore’s products globally.
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General

Several of the raw materials used in manufacturertain of the Company’s products are currentlychased from a single source.
Although to date the Company has not experiendéiduty acquiring materials for the manufactureitsfproducts, no assurance can be given
that interruptions in supplies will not occur iretfuture, that the Company will be able to obtaibsditute vendors, or that the Company will be
able to procure comparable materials at similargsrand terms within a reasonable time. Any sutehrimption of supply could have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s ability to manuwigectind distribute its products and, consequeatiyld materially and adversely affect the
Company'’s business, operating results and finacoiadiition.

Research and Development

Landec is focusing its research and developmentiregs on both existing and new product applicati@xpenditures for research and
development for the fiscal years ended May 25, 20lay 26, 2013 and May 27, 2012 were $7.2 milli®.,3 million and $9.6 million,
respectively. Research and development expendifuneed by corporate or governmental partners were during fiscal year 2014, $688,000
during fiscal year 2013 and zero in fiscal year20lhe Company may seek funds for applied mateméasarch programs from U.S. governn
agencies as well as from commercial entities. The@any anticipates that it will continue to incigrsficant research and development
expenditures in order to maintain its competitiesipon with a continuing flow of innovative, higiuality products and services. As of May 25,
2014, Landec had 61 employees engaged in reseadaieaelopment with experience in polymer and aitallychemistry, product application,
product formulation, and mechanical and chemicglresering.

Competition

The Company operates in highly competitive anddigg@volving fields, and new developments are etgubto continue at a rapid pa
Competition from large food processors, packagmgmanies, and medical and pharmaceutical companietense. Many of these competitors
have substantially greater financial and techmesburces and production and marketing capabititias the Company, and many have
substantially greater experience in conductinglftghls, obtaining regulatory approvals and maatufidng and marketing commercial products.
There can be no assurance that these competitibrsotvsucceed in developing alternative techn@egind products that are more effective,
easier to use or less expensive than those whighlteen or are being developed by the Companyabmtbuld render the Company's
technology and products obsolete and non-competitiv

Patents and Proprietary Rights

The Company's success depends in large part ahility to obtain patents, maintain trade secretgmtion and operate without
infringing on the proprietary rights of third pati The Company has had 43 U.S. patents issuelicii @8 remain active as of May 25, 2014
with expiration dates ranging from 2014 to 2028efEhcan be no assurance that any of the pendiegtpgiplications will be approved, that the
Company will develop additional proprietary produtiiat are patentable, that any patents issudrtGampany will provide the Company with
competitive advantages or will not be challengediby third parties or that the patents of othetbnwit prevent the commercialization of
products incorporating the Company's technologytheumore, there can be no assurance that oth#nsovindependently develop similar
products, duplicate any of the Company's productiesign around the Company's patents. Any ofdhegbing results could have a material
adverse effect on the Company's business, operaiudfs and financial condition.

The commercial success of the Company will alseddpin part, on its ability to avoid infringingteats issued to others. If the
Company were determined to be infringing any tpiadty patent, the Company could be required todaegmages, alter its products or processes,
obtain licenses or cease certain activities. Iritexq if patents are issued to others which contd@ims that compete or conflict with those of
Company and such competing or conflicting claineswdtimately determined to be valid, the Company tmarequired to pay damages, to ok
licenses to these patents, to develop or obta@nnaitive technology or to cease using such techgoldéthe Company is required to obtain any
licenses, there can be no assurance that the Cgmpiabe able to do so on commercially favoraldents, if at all. The Company's failure to
obtain a license to any technology that it may iregiw commercialize its products could have a nigtadverse impact on the Company's
business, operating results and financial condition
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Government Regulation

Government regulation in the United States andratbentries is a significant factor in the markgtof certain of the Company’s
products and in the Company’s ongoing researctdamdlopment activities. Some of the Company’s petglare subject to extensive and
rigorous regulation by the FDA, which regulates eavhthe products as medical devices and whickoine cases, requires Rviarket Approva
(“PMA"), and by foreign countries, which regulaiense of the products as medical devices or drugdettihe Federal Food, Drug, and
Cosmetic Act (“FDC Act”), the FDA regulates thenitial testing, manufacturing, labeling, distributidale and promotion of medical devices in
the United States.

Other regulatory requirements are placed on theufaature, processing, packaging, labeling, distidny recordkeeping and reporting
of a medical device and on the quality control pohaes, such as the FDA's device QSR regulatiomsufhcturing facilities are subject to
periodic inspections by the FDA to assure compkanith device QSR requirements, along with pre-apgrinspection (PAI) for PMA product
introduction. Lifecores facility is subject to inspections as both a dewdnd a drug manufacturing operation. For PMAasjithe Company tf
owns the product submission is required to submdranual report and to obtain approval of a PMApsement for modifications to the device
its labeling. Other applicable FDA requirementdude the medical device reporting (“MDR”) regulatjavhich requires that the Company
provide information to the FDA regarding deathserious injuries alleged to have been associatddtimé use of its devices, as well as product
malfunctions that would likely cause or contribtdedeath or serious injury if the malfunction weseaecur.

Employees

As of May 25, 2014, Landec had 531 full-time emgley, of whom 432 were dedicated to research, dawelot, manufacturing,
quality control and regulatory affairs and 99 weeelicated to sales, marketing and administratitigities. Landec intends to recruit additional
personnel in connection with the development, maetufing and marketing of its products. None ofdetis employees is represented by a
union, and Landec considers its relationship vigremployees to be good.

Available Information

Landec’s website is http://www.landec.com. Landedkes available free of charge its annual, quarterty current reports, and any
amendments to those reports, as soon as reasqmabticable after electronically filing such reowtith the SEC. Information contained on our
website is not part of this Report.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Landec desires to take advantage of the “Safe Hapbovisions of the Private Securities Litigati®eform Act of 1995 and of Section
21E and Rule 3b-6 under the Securities Exchang®®t®34. Specifically, Landec wishes to alert mradhat the following important factors
could in the future affect, and in the past hayecd, Landec’s actual results and could causeégia results for future periods to differ
materially from those expressed in any forward-lnglstatements made by or on behalf of Landec. amdsumes no obligation to update such
forward-looking statements.

Lapses in disclosure controls and procedures oeimtal control over financial reporting could mateaily and adversely affect the Compe's
operations, profitability or reputation.

We are committed to maintaining high standardsitarnal control over financial reporting and distloe controls and procedures.
Nevertheless, lapses or deficiencies in disclosargrols and procedures or in our internal coraka@r financial reporting may occur from tir
to time. On January 2, 2013, we reported that adit@ommittee reached a determination to restatgreviously-filed interim financial
statements for the quarter ended August 26, 20d2reat our previously-filed interim financial statents for the quarter ended August 26, 2012
should not be relied upon. We also reported managésmdetermination that a material weakness existeur internal control over financial
reporting at August 26, 2012. As a result of theamal weakness, management also concluded thatiselosure controls and procedures were
not effective at August 26, 2012.
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There can be no assurance that our disclosureat®aind procedures will be effective in preventingaterial weakness or significant
deficiency in internal control over financial refing from occurring in the future. Any such lapsesleficiencies may materially and adversely
affect our business and results of operationsnanftial condition, restrict our ability to accelss tapital markets, require us to expend resource:s
to correct the lapses or deficiencies, expose usgolatory or legal proceedings, harm our repomatdr otherwise cause a decline in investor
confidence.

Adverse Weather Conditions and Other Acts of GodyMzause Substantial Decreases in Our Sales andfmréases in Our Cosi

Our Food Products Technology business is subjesttiher conditions that affect commodity pricespaquality and yields, and
decisions by growers regarding crops to be plar@eop diseases and severe conditions, particulshther conditions such as unexpected or
excessive rain or other precipitation, unseasonabiperature fluctuations, floods, droughts, frosiadstorms, earthquakes and hurricanes,
adversely affect the supply of vegetables anddused in our business, which could reduce the salemes and/or increase the unit production
costs. In fiscal year 2014, the Company’s operatiagme was negatively impacted by approximately $8illion in operational variances
driven from produce quality and yield issues, highbor costs and lower processing yields in thedH8roducts Technology business. Becat
significant portion of the costs are fixed and cacted in advance of each operating year, volurobnds reflecting production interruptions or
other factors could result in increases in unidpiaiion costs which could result in substantiabéssand weaken our financial condition.

The Global Economy is Experiencing Continued Voléty, Which May Have an Adverse Effect on Our Busias

In recent years, the U.S. and international econanayfinancial markets experienced a significamivdown and volatility due to
uncertainties related to the availability of creditergy prices, difficulties in the banking anahficial services sectors, softness in the housing
market, diminished market liquidity, geopoliticaindlicts, falling consumer confidence and high upasyment rates. Ongoing volatility in the
economy and financial markets could further leadetiuced demand for our products, which in turnjidb@educe our revenues and adversely
affect our business, financial condition and resaftoperations. In particular, volatility in theobal markets have resulted in softer demand and
more conservative purchasing decisions by custqrimaisiding a tendency toward lower-priced produatisich could negatively impact our
revenues, gross margins and results of operatiorgldition to a reduction in sales, our profitabimay decrease because we may not be able t
reduce costs at the same rate as our sales datlneannot predict the ultimate severity or lengjftthe current period of volatility, whether the
recent signs of economic recovery will prove sunsthie, or the timing or severity of future economiéndustry downturns.

Given the current uncertain economic environmeut,costomers, suppliers and partners may haveulifes obtaining capital at
adequate or historical levels to finance their angdusiness and operations, which could impair tiiglity to make timely payments to us. T
may result in lower sales and/or inventory that malybe saleable or bad debt expense for Landexddition to the impact of the current mar
uncertainty on our customers, some of our vendodsgaowers may experience a reduction in theirlabgity of funds and cash flows, which
could negatively impact their business as wellwas.0A further worsening of the economic environtr@ncontinued or increased volatility of
the U.S. economy, including increased volatilityhe credit markets, could adversely impact outausrs’ and vendors’ ability or willingness
to conduct business with us on the same termstbeatame levels as they have historically. Fuyties economic volatility and uncertainty
about future economic conditions makes it challegdor Landec to forecast its operating resultskertausiness decisions, and identify the risks
that may affect its business, sources and useasbf éinancial condition and results of operations.
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Our Future Operating Results Are Likely to FluctuatWhich May Cause Our Stock Price to Decline

In the past, our results of operations have flueaignificantly from quarter to quarter and axpezted to continue to fluctuate in the
future. Apio can be affected by seasonal and weéletors which have impacted our financial resdlis to a shortage of essential value-added
produce items. In fiscal year 2014, operationaiarares driven from produce quality and yield issiégher labor costs and lower processing
yields in the Food Products Technology businessamaabproximate $9.3 million negative impact on @perating income. Our earnings I
also fluctuate based on our ability to collect actde receivable from customers and notes receiediie growers and on price fluctuations in
the fresh vegetable and fruit markets. Other fadteat affect our operations include:

the seasonality and availability of our supplies,

our ability to process produce during critical hestvperiods,

the timing and effects of ripening,

the degree of perishability,

the effectiveness of worldwide distribution systems

total worldwide industry volumes,

the seasonality and timing of consumer demand,

foreign currency fluctuations, and

foreign importation restrictions and foreign palti risks.

As a result of these and other factors, we expecbhtinue to experience fluctuations in quartepgrating results.

Uncertainty Relating To Integration Of New Busineggquisitions.

The successful integration of new business acguisitincluding the GreenLine acquisition, may liegjgubstantial effort from the
Company's management. The diversion of the attenfiocnanagement and any difficulties encounteratiéntransition process could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's abilitsetdize the anticipated benefits of the acquisgiorhe successful combination of new
businesses also requires coordination of researtid@velopment activities, manufacturing, and satesmarketing efforts. In addition, the
process of combining organizations located in dffé regions of the United States could causentegruption of, or a loss of momentum in, the
Company's activities. There can be no assurant¢hth&ompany will be able to retain key managemnteshnical, sales and customer support
personnel, or that the Company will realize thecpdated benefits of any acquisitions, and theufailto do so would have a material adverse
effect on the Company's business, results of dpeasatind financial condition.

We May Not Be Able to Achieve Acceptance of Our Neseducts in the Marketplace

Our success in generating significant sales opooducts depends in part on our ability and outneais and licensees to achieve ma
acceptance of our new products and technology extent to which, and rate at which, we achieve eiaakceptance and penetration of our
current and future products is a function of maasiables including, but not limited to:

price,

safety,

efficacy,

reliability,

conversion costs,

regulatory approvals,
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marketing and sales efforts, and
general economic conditions affecting purchasirtepas.

We may not be able to develop and introduce newumts and technologies in a timely manner or newdyets and technologies may
not gain market acceptance. We or our partnersiowests are in the early stage of product commezeitidin of certain Intelimer-based specialty
packaging, HA-based products and other Inteliméymer products. We expect that our future growth e@pend in large part on our or our
partners/customers ability to develop and market meducts in our target markets and in new marketparticular, we expect that our ability
to compete effectively with existing food productsmpanies will depend substantially on developaognmercializing, achieving market
acceptance of and reducing the cost of producingmducts. In addition, commercial application®of temperature switch polymer
technology are relatively new and evolving. Ouhiiiad to develop new products or the failure of new products to achieve market acceptance
would have a material adverse effect on our busijrresults of operations and financial condition.

We Face Strong Competition in the Marketplace

Competitors may succeed in developing alternageanologies and products that are more effecta@eeto use or less expensive t
those which have been or are being developed oy st would render our technology and productotgie and non-competitive. We operate
in highly competitive and rapidly evolving fieldsnd new developments are expected to continueagtichpace. Competition from large food
products, industrial, medical and pharmaceuticaianies is expected to be intense. In additionn#tere of our collaborative arrangements
may result in our corporate partners and licenseesming our competitors. Many of these competitange substantially greater financial and
technical resources and production and marketipghifties than we do, and may have substantiathatgr experience in conducting clinical
and field trials, obtaining regulatory approvalsl ananufacturing and marketing commercial products.

We Have a Concentration of Manufacturing for Apional Lifecore and May Have to Depend on Third PartissManufacture Our Products

Any disruptions in our primary manufacturing opeatat Apio’s facilities in Guadalupe, California Bowling Green, Ohio or
Lifecore’s facility in Chaska, Minnesota would reguour ability to sell our products and would haveaterial adverse effect on our financial
results. Additionally, we may need to consider gagkollaborative arrangements with other compatdesanufacture our products. If we
become dependent upon third parties for the matwof our products, our profit margins and odutfitgtio develop and deliver those products
on a timely basis may be adversely affected. Feslioy third parties may impair our ability to deliyproducts on a timely basis and impair our
competitive position. We may not be able to corgitmsuccessfully operate our manufacturing operatat acceptable costs, with acceptable
yields, and retain adequately trained persor

Our Dependence on Single-Source Suppliers and SerRroviders May Cause Disruption in Our OperatioBsould Any Supplier Fail to
Deliver Materials

We may experience difficulty acquiring materialsservices for the manufacture of our products omag not be able to obtain
substitute vendors. In addition, we may not be &bjgrocure comparable materials at similar prared terms within a reasonable time. Several
services that are provided to Apio are obtainethfeosingle provider. Several of the raw materiaésuse to manufacture our products are
currently purchased from a single source, includiogne monomers used to synthesize Intelimer polyrsebstrate materials for our breathable
membrane products and raw materials for our HA petd Any interruption of our relationship with gla-source suppliers or service providers
could delay product shipments and materially hanmbaisiness.
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We May Be Unable to Adequately Protect Our Intelieal Property Rights

We may receive notices from third parties, inclgdéome of our competitors, claiming infringementooy products of their patent and
other proprietary rights. Regardless of their meeisponding to any such claim could be time-corisgnmesult in costly litigation and require us
to enter royalty and licensing agreements which natybe offered or available on terms acceptabiestdf a successful claim is made agains
and we fail to develop or license a substituteneéigy, we could be required to alter our prodaectprocesses and our business, results of
operations or financial position could be mateyialliversely affected. Our success depends in fageon our ability to obtain patents, maintain
trade secret protection and operate without infriggn the proprietary rights of third parties. Amgnding patent applications we file may no
approved and we may not be able to develop additimmoprietary products that are patentable. Artgmta issued to us may not provide us with
competitive advantages or may be challenged bg fiarties. Patents held by others may preventgherercialization of products incorporati
our technology. Furthermore, others may indepemgdetelop similar products, duplicate our produatslesign around our patents.

Our Operations Are Subject to Regulations that Dityy Impact Our Business

Our products and operations are subject to govartaheegulation in the United States and foreigantdes. The manufacture of our
products is subject to periodic inspection by ratprly authorities. We may not be able to obtairessary regulatory approvals on a timely basis
or at all. Delays in receipt of or failure to reeeapprovals or loss of previously received appsowauld have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openat Although we have no reason to believe thatllenot be able to comply with all
applicable regulations regarding the manufactutesate of our products and polymer materials, egpris are always subject to change and
depend heavily on administrative interpretationd #r@ country in which the products are sold. Feittiranges in regulations or interpretations
relating to matters such as safe working condititatsoratory and manufacturing practices, enviramalecontrols, and disposal of hazardous or
potentially hazardous substances may adverselgtafte business.

We are subject to FDA rules and regulations corogriihe safety of the food products handled and bglApio, and the facilities in
which they are packed and processed. Failure telyowith the applicable regulatory requirements,@mong other things, result in:

fines, injunctions, civil penalties, and suspensjon

withdrawal of regulatory approvals,

product recalls and product seizures, includingasn of manufacturing and sales,
operating restrictions, and

criminal prosecution.

We may be required to incur significant costs tmply with the laws and regulations in the futureishhmay have a material adverse
effect on our business, operating results and ihcondition.

Our food packaging products are subject to reguiatinder the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act (the “FR€). Under the FDC Act, ar
substance that when used as intended may reasdrabipected to become, directly or indirectlypmponent or otherwise affect the
characteristics of any food may be regulated a®d &dditive unless the substance is generallygrézed as safe. Food packaging materials are
generally not considered food additives by the Higgause these products are not expected to beaonpopents of food under their expected
conditions of use. We consider our breathable mangproduct to be a food packaging material ngestibo regulation or approval by the
FDA. We have not received any communication fromEDA concerning our breathable membrane proditttelFDA were to determine that
our breathable membrane products are food additivesnay be required to submit a food additivetjpetifor approval by the FDA. The food
additive petition process is lengthy, expensive amcertain. A determination by the FDA that a feafdlitive petition is necessary would have a
material adverse effect on our business, operatisigits and financial condition.

Our Food Products Technology business is subjdatiet@erishable Agricultural Commodities Act (“PAGAPACA regulates fair trac
standards in the fresh produce industry and gowatise products sold by Apio. Our failure to cdynwith the PACA requirements could
among other things, result in civil penalties, srgion or revocation of a license to sell prodaoel in the most egregious cases, criminal
prosecution, which could have a material adverfezebn our business.
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Lifecore’s existing products and its products urdierelopment are considered to be medical devive¢reerefore, require clearance or
approval by the FDA before commercial sales cambde in the United States. The products also redjé approval of foreign government
agencies before sales may be made in many othatrisu The process of obtaining these clearancepprovals varies according to the nature
and use of the product. It can involve lengthy dethiled safety, efficacy and clinical studieswadl as extensive site inspections and lengthy
regulatory agency reviews. There can be no assaithat any of the Company’s clinical studies whiibes safety or effectiveness; that any of the
Company'’s products that require FDA clearance pogal will obtain such clearance or approval oimeely basis, on terms acceptable to the
Company for the purpose of actually marketing tredpcts, or at all; or that following any such ckeece or approval previously unknown
problems will not result in restrictions on the keting of the products or withdrawal of clearanceproval.

In addition, most of the existing products beintgiduy Lifecore and its customers are subject tdiooed regulation by the FDA,
various state agencies and foreign regulatory agemdhich regulate manufacturing, labeling and réé@eping procedures for such products.
Marketing clearances or approvals by these agenaiebe withdrawn due to failure to comply withukegory standards or the occurrence of
unforeseen problems following initial clearanceapproval. These agencies can also limit or pretrenimanufacture or distribution of Lifecose’
products. A determination that Lifecore is in viada of such regulations could lead to the impositf civil penalties, including fines, product
recalls or product seizures, injunctions, andximegne cases, criminal sanctions.

Federal, state and local regulations impose vagowgonmental controls on the use, storage, digehar disposal of toxic, volatile or
otherwise hazardous chemicals and gases used ma&faitmee manufacturing processes. Our failure tdgrobthe use of, or to restrict adequately
the discharge of, hazardous substances under praeserture regulations could subject us to sulisgahability or could cause our
manufacturing operations to be suspended and chamgavironmental regulations may impose the rieeddditional capital equipment or
other requirements.

We Depend on Strategic Partners and Licenses fotufe Development

Our strategy for development, clinical and fieldtieg, manufacture, commercialization and markefimgome of our current and
future products includes entering into variousatmdirations with corporate partners, licensees émet® We are dependent on our corporate
partners to develop, test, manufacture and/or maddae of our products. Although we believe thatgartners in these collaborations have an
economic motivation to succeed in performing tleemtractual responsibilities, the amount and timohgesources to be devoted to these
activities are not within our control. Our partnaray not perform their obligations as expected emay not derive any additional revenue fi
the arrangements. Our partners may not pay anyi@uili option or license fees to us or may not ttgvemarket or pay any royalty fees related
to products under such agreements. Moreover, séthe aollaborative agreements provide that they beterminated at the discretion of the
corporate partner, and some of the collaborativeeagents provide for termination under other cirstamces. Our partners may pursue existing
or alternative technologies in preference to odntelogy. Furthermore, we may not be able to natptdditional collaborative arrangements in
the future on acceptable terms, if at all, andamliaborative arrangements may not be successful.

Our International Sales May Expose Our BusinessAdditional Risks

For fiscal year 2014, approximately 29% of our toégenues were derived from product sales toiatiional customers. A number of
risks are inherent in international transactiongernational sales and operations may be limitedissupted by any of the following:

regulatory approval process,
government controls,
export license requirements,

political instability,
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price controls,
trade restrictions,
changes in tariffs, or

difficulties in staffing and managing internatiormglerations.

Foreign regulatory agencies have or may establistiyct standards different from those in the Unégtes, and any inability to obtain
foreign regulatory approvals on a timely basis ddwdve a material adverse effect on our internatibasiness, and our financial condition and
results of operations. While our foreign salescangently priced in dollars, fluctuations in curcgrexchange rates may reduce the demand for
our products by increasing the price of our prosliltthe currency of the countries in which thedoeis are sold. Regulatory, geopolitical and
other factors may adversely impact our operatiorthe future or require us to modify our currensibess practices.

Cancellations or Delays of Orders by Our Custométay Adversely Affect Our Business

During fiscal year 2014, sales to our top five onstrs accounted for approximately 42% of our reespwith our two largest
customers from our Food Products Technology segr@estco Wholesale Corporation and Wal-mart, lecoanting for approximately 21%
and 11%, respectively, of our revenues. We expedt for the foreseeable future, a limited numberustomers may continue to account for a
substantial portion of our revenues. We may expegehanges in the composition of our customer aasee have experienced in the past. The
reduction, delay or cancellation of orders from onenore major customers for any reason or thedbssie or more of our major customers
could materially and adversely affect our businepgrating results and financial condition. In &iddi, since some of the products processed by
Apio and Lifecore are sole sourced to customenspparating results could be adversely affecteohée@ or more of our major customers were to
develop other sources of supply. Our current custsimay not continue to place orders, orders bstiagi customers may be canceled or may
not continue at the levels of previous periods emaay not be able to obtain orders from new custeme

Our Sale of Some Products May Increase Our ExpostodéProduct Liability Claims

The testing, manufacturing, marketing, and satb@fproducts we develop involve an inherent risiltgfgations of product liability. If
any of our products were determined or allegecetodntaminated or defective or to have causedrafbhaccident to an end-customer, we
could incur substantial costs in responding to dains or litigation regarding our products and purduct brand image could be materially
damaged. Such events may have a material advéest @i our business, operating results and firmoindition. Although we have taken and
intend to continue to take what we consider tofy@epriate precautions to minimize exposure to pebdlability claims, we may not be able to
avoid significant liability. We currently maintaproduct liability insurance. While we think the @vage and limits are consistent with industry
standards, our coverage may not be adequate onat@pntinue to be available at an acceptable daatall. A product liability claim, product
recall or other claim with respect to uninsuredtilities or in excess of insured liabilities couldve a material adverse effect on our business,
operating results and financial condition.

Our Stock Price May Fluctuate in Accordance with Meet Conditions
The following events may cause the market priceusfcommon stock to fluctuate significantly:
technological innovations applicable to our product
our attainment of (or failure to attain) milestom@she commercialization of our technology,
our development of new products or the developraénew products by our competitors,
new patents or changes in existing patents appdicalour products,
our acquisition of new businesses or the salespadial of a part of our businesses,
development of new collaborative arrangements bpuscompetitors or other parties,

changes in government regulations applicable tdasiness,
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changes in investor perception of our business,
fluctuations in our operating results, and

changes in the general market conditions in ounstrg.
These broad fluctuations may adelgraffect the market price of our common stock.
We May Be Exposed to Employment Related Claims @adts that Could Materially Adversely Affect Our Bimess

We have been subject in the past, and may be futhee, to claims by employees based on allegatiafrdiscrimination, negligence,
harassment and inadvertent employment of undocwdembrkers or unlicensed personnel, and we mayljes to payment of workers'
compensation claims and other similar claims. Wddtcur substantial costs and our managementicapénd a significant amount of time
responding to such complaints or litigation regagdtmployee claims, which may have a material adveffect on our business, operating
results and financial condition.

We Are Dependent on Our Key Employees and if On&/are of Them Were to Leave, We Could Experiencéibilties in Replacing Them
and Our Operating Results Could Suffer

The success of our business depends to a sigrtieéent on the continued service and performaneerelatively small number of key
senior management, technical, sales, and markedrepnnel. The loss of any of our key personnehfoextended period would likely harm our
business. In addition, competition for senior lgyetsonnel with knowledge and experience in odediht lines of business is intense. If any of
our key personnel were to leave, we would neectot substantial resources and management atteatieplace them. As a result,
management attention may be diverted from managimdpusiness, and we may need to pay higher corapengo replace these employees.

We May Issue Preferred Stock with Preferential Righthat Could Affect Your Rights

The issuance of shares of preferred stock could tay effect of making it more difficult for a tHiparty to acquire a majority of our
outstanding stock, and the holders of such prefesteck could have voting, dividend, liquidatiordasther rights superior to those of holders of
our Common Stock.

We Have Never Paid any Dividends on Our Common &toc

We have not paid any dividends on our Common Ssaute inception and do not expect to in the foralskeefuture. Any dividends m:
be subject to preferential dividends payable onmmajerred stock we may issue.

Our Profitability Could Be Materially and Adverselgffected if it Is Determined that the Book Valué Goodwill is Higher than Fair Value

Our balance sheet includes an amount designatggbagdwill” that represents a portion of our assatsg our stockholders’ equity.
Goodwill arises when an acquirer pays more forsinmss than the fair value of the tangible andre¢glg measurable intangible net assets. In
accordance with accounting guidance, the amontizaif goodwill has been replaced with an “impairitest” which requires that we compare
the fair value of goodwill to its book value at$¢annually and more frequently if circumstancelcate a possible impairment. If we determine
at any time in the future that the book value afdwill is higher than fair value then the differenmust be written-off, which could materially
and adversely affect our reported profitability.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Iltem 2.

Properties

As of May 25, 2014, the Company owned or leasegentees in Menlo Park and Arroyo Grande, GuadalDakfornia; Chaska,
Minnesota; Bowling Green, Perrysburg and McClureioQHanover, Pennsylvania; Vero Beach, FloridaclRiill, South Carolina and Rock

Tavern, New York.

These properties are described below:

Acres
Business of Lease
Location Segment Ownership Facilities Land Expiration
Menlo Park, CA Corporate Leased 14,600 square feet of office and laboratory — 12/31/16
space
Chaska, MN HA-based Owned 114,000 square feet of office, laboratory ar 27.5 —
Biomaterials manufacturing space
Guadalupe, CA Food Products Owned 199,000 square feet of office space, 17.7 —
Technology manufacturing and cold storage
Bowling Green, OH Food Products Owned 55,900 square feet of office space, 7.7 —
Technology manufacturing and cold storage
Hanover, PA Food Products Owned 18,700 square feet of office space, 15.3 —
Technology manufacturing and cold storage
Vero Beach, FL Food Products Leased 9,200 square feet of office space, — 12/31/14
Technology manufacturing and cold storage
Rock Hill, SC Food Products Owned 16,400 square feet of cold storage and offi 3.6 —
Technology space
Rock Tavern, NY Food Products Leased 7,700 square feet of cold storage and offici — 8/23/23
Technology space
McClure, OH Food Products Leased Farm land 185 12/31/14
Technology
Perrysburg, OH Food Products Leased 9,000 square feet of office space — 10/31/14
Technology
Guadalupe, CA Food Products Leased 105,000 square feet of parking space 2.4 9/30/18
Technology
Guadalupe, CA Food Products Leased 5,300 square feet of office space — 5/31/17
Technology
Arroyo Grande, CA Food Export Leased 1,100 square feet of office space — Month-to-
Month

The obligations of the Company under its credieagrent with BMO Harris Bank N.A. (“BMO Harris”) asecured by a lien on the
Chaska, MN land and building. The obligations & @ompany under its credit agreement with Gendealtiic Capital Corporation (“General
Electric”) are secured by a lien on all of the lamdl buildings of the Food Products Technology ssgm

Iltem 3.

Legal Proceedings

As of the date of this report, the Company isanptrty to any legal proceedings.

Iltem 4.

Not applicable.

Mine Safety Disclosures
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Skbwlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities

Market Information

The Common Stock is traded on The NASDAQ Globaé&dWarket under the symbol “LNDC”. The followingte sets forth for each
period indicated the high and low sales pricesHerCommon Stock.

Fiscal Year Ended May 25, 2014 High Low
4 th Quarter ending May 25, 2014 $ 12.1¢ $ 10.1¢
3rd Quarter ending February 23, 2014 $ 12.6: $ 10.0¢
2 nd Quarter ending November 24, 2013 $ 1357 $ 11.3¢
1stQuarter ending August 25, 2013 $ 158: $ 13.21
Fiscal Year Ended May 26, 2013 High Low
4 th Quarter ending May 26, 2013 $ 14.6¢ $ 10.4¢
3rd Quarter ending February 24, 2013 $ 1287 $ 9.1t
2 nd Quarter ending November 25, 2012 $ 122( $ 8.8¢
1stQuarter ending August 26, 2012 $ 929¢ $ 6.7z

Holders

There were approximately 57 holders of record 828,725 shares of outstanding Common Stock aslpfL8, 2014. Since certain
holders are listed under their brokerage firm’s egnthe actual number of stockholders is higher.

Dividends

The Company has not paid any dividends on the Camftock since its inception. The Company presentgnds to retain all future
earnings, if any, for its business and does natigate paying cash dividends on its Common Stadké foreseeable future.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

There were no shares repurchased by the Compaimgdiscal years 2014 or 2013. The Company mayrsfilurchase up to $3.8
million of the Company’s Common Stock under the @any’s stock repurchase plan announced on Jul2a.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data
The information set forth below is not necessadritiicative of the results of future operations ahduld be read in conjunction with t

information contained in ltem 7 — “Management’'sddission and Analysis of Financial Condition anduRef Operations” and the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to didased Financial Statements contained in Itenfi BBis report.
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Statement of Income Data:
(in thousands)

Product sales
Cost of product sales
Gross profit

Operating costs and expenses:
Research and development
Selling, general and administrative
Other operating (income)/expense

Total operating costs and expenses

Operating profit

Dividend income

Interest income

Interest expense and other
Other income

Net income before taxe

Income tax expense
Consolidated net income
Non-controlling interest

Net income applicable to comm
stockholders

Basic net income per share
Diluted net income per share

Shares used in per share computati
Basic
Diluted

Balance Sheet Data:

(in thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

Long-term debt

Retained earnings

Total stockholders’ equity

Iltem 7.

Year Year Year Year Year
Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended
May 25, May 26, May 27, May 29, May 30,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
476,81: 441,70¢ 317,55: 276,72¢ 238,22¢
414,24¢ 378,94 265,41 230,03« 204,45¢
62,56« 62,76( 52,13¢ 46,69t 33,76¢
7,204 9,29/ 9,62t 9,27¢ 4,361
35,17( 32,53: 26,51t 24,60¢ 17,69¢
— (3,939 1,421 4,78( 3,72
42,37 37,89: 37,56: 38,66: 25,78¢
20,19( 24,86¢ 14,57 8,03: 7,982
1,12¢ 1,12¢ 1,12¢ 32¢& —
26( 17¢ 18C 43C 834
(1,650 (2,009 (929) (820 (88)
10,00( 8,10( 5,331 472 —
29,92t 32,26¢ 20,28 8,44: 8,72¢
(10,58)) (9,452 (7,18%) (4,18)) (4,267)
19,34: 22,81: 13,09¢ 4,261 4,46¢
(197 (225) (403) (341) (482)
19,14 % 2258 $ 12,69¢ $ 3,92( % 3,98¢
072 $ 087 $ 0.4¢ $ 0.1t $ 0.1t
071 $ 0.8t $ 04¢ $ 0.1t $ 0.1t
26,62¢ 25,83( 25,84¢ 26,39 26,38:
27,12( 26,62¢ 26,12¢ 26,62¢ 26,63:

May 25, May 26, May 27, May 29, May 30,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
14,24 $ 13,71¢ $ 22,177 $ 8,13t $ 27,817
313,62: 290,94 277,69: 206,31 200,19°
34,37: 40,30¢ 47,317 19,83( 23,77(
71,55« 52,40¢ 29,82: 17,12¢ 13,20¢
203,06¢ $ 178,69 $ 149,74 $ 136,05 $ 130,78

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjiomctvith the Company’s Consolidated Financial Stegets contained in Item 8 of
this report. Except for the historical informatioontained herein, the matters discussed in thisrteype forward-looking statements within the
meaning of Section 21E of the Securities ExchangieoA1934. These forward-looking statements ingatertain risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materiallyrrthose in the forward-looking statements. Potérisks and uncertainties include, without
limitation, those mentioned in this report andparticular, the factors described in Item 1A. "Risctors.” Landec undertakes no obligation to
revise any forward-looking statements in orderefitect events or circumstances that may arise tfeedate of this report.
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Overview

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Landeche “Company”) design, develop, manufacture aiddifferentiated products for
food and biomaterials markets and license techyddpglications to partners. The Company has twenetary polymer technology platforms:
1) Intelimer® polymers, and 2) hyaluronan (“HA™olpiolymers. The Company’s HA biopolymers are prdpriein that they are specially
formulated for specific customers to meet strigutatory requirements. The Company’s polymer tetdgies, along with its customer
relationships and trade names, are the foundatimha key differentiating advantage upon which leanols built its business. The Company
sells specialty packaged branded Eat Smart anchGreeand private label fresh-cut vegetables andlevproduce to retailers, club stores and
foodservice operators, primarily in the United 8satCanada and Asia through its Apio, Inc. (“Apistipsidiary and sells HA-based biomaterials
through its Lifecore Biomedical, Inc. (“Lifecoresubsidiary.

Landec has three core businesses — Food Produwatisadlegy, Food Export, and HA-based Biomateriatse Food Products
Technology segment combines the Company’s Breathg)&ekaging technology with Apio’s branded Eat Sraad GreenLine and private
label fresh-cut and whole produce business. Thel Export business is operated through Apio’s Cakixort company which purchases and
sells whole fruit and vegetable products to predamily Asian markets. The HA-based Biomaterialdrmss sells products utilizing HA in the
ophthalmic, orthopedic and veterinary segmentsadsm supplies HA to customers pursuing other meédigglications, such as aesthetic surg
medical device coatings, tissue engineering andpdiceuticals. See "Business - Description of Carsirkess”.

As of May 25, 2014, the Company’s retained earnimgee $72 million. The Company may incur lossethnfuture. The amount of
future net profits, if any, is uncertain and thea@ be no assurance that the Company will be aldestain profitability in future years.

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresplequires management to make
certain estimates and judgments that affect theuatsaeported in the financial statements and apeoiying notes. The accounting estimates
that require management’s most significant andesuiivje judgments include revenue recognition; sadasns and allowances; recognition and
measurement of current and deferred income taxsaaed liabilities; the assessment of recoverghilitong-lived assets; the valuation of
intangible assets and inventory; the valuatiomeéstments; and the valuation and recognitionafksbased compensation.

These estimates involve the consideration of coxfaletors and require management to make judgmé&hesanalysis of historical and
future trends can require extended periods of tomresolve, and are subject to change from pedqektiod. The actual results may differ from
management’s estimates.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful ant®tor estimated losses resulting from the ingbdf its customers to make
required payments. The allowance for doubtful aot®is based on review of the overall conditiomafounts receivable balances and review of
significant past due accounts. If the financialditon of the Company’s customers were to detetégnaesulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, additional allowances may beinedju

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or etalkthe cost of the inventories exceeds thefreeted market value, provisions are

recorded currently for the difference between &t and the market value. These provisions arerdeted based on specific identification for
unusable inventory and an additional reserve, bardustorical losses, for inventory currently ddesed to be usable.
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Revenue Recognition

Revenue from product sales is recognized when thgrersuasive evidence that an arrangement etifthas transferred, the price is
fixed and determinable, and collectability is reeday assured. Allowances are established for estiduncollectible amounts, product returns,
and discounts based on specific identification laistbrical losses.

Apio’s Food Products Technology revenues genecalhsist of revenues generated from the sale ofapepackaged fresh-cut and
whole value-added processed vegetable productaithaenerally washed and packaged in our propyipteckaging and sold under Apio’s Eat
Smart and GreenLine brands and various privatddaBevenue is generally recognized upon shipmiethtese products to customers. The
Company takes title to all produce it trades angémkages, and therefore, records revenues andfcssies at gross amounts in the
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

In addition, Food Products Technology vahdsed revenues include the revenues generateddjpinCooling, LP, a vegetable cooli
operation in which Apio is the general partner vétB0% ownership position and from the sale of Bi@&/ay packaging to license partners.
Revenue is recognized on the vegetable coolingatipes as cooling and storage services are provaedr customers. Sales of BreatheWay
packaging are recognized when shipped to our cuestom

Apio’s Food Export revenues consist of revenues geuirata the purchase and sale of primarily whole eaodity fruit and vegetab
products to Asia by Cal-Ex. As most Cal-Ex cust@rage in countries outside of the U.S., title tfarssand revenue is generally recognized
upon arrival of the shipment in the foreign porpié\records revenue equal to the sale price td thérties because it takes title to the product
while in transit.

Our HA-based Biomaterials business principally gates revenue through the sale of products contidiA. Lifecore primarily sells
products to customers in three medical areas: phit@Imic, which represented approximately 60%ifé#dore’s revenues in fiscal year 2014,
(2) Orthopedic, which represented approximately 20%ifecore’s revenues in fiscal year 2014 and\(8jerinary/Other. The vast majority of
revenues from our HA-based Biomaterials businessesrognized upon shipment.

A small amount of revenues from our HA-based Bi@riats business is related to contract researcldandlopment (R&D) services
and multi-element arrangement services with custemeere we provide products and/or services inralled arrangement.

Contract revenue R&D is recorded as earned, bas#tegperformance requirements of the contract-féfundable contract fees for
which no further performance obligations exist, #mete is no continuing involvement by the Compag, recognized on the earlier of when
payments are received or when collection is assured

For sales arrangements that contain multiple eléspére Company splits the arrangement into separrts of accounting if the
individually delivered elements have value to thetomer on a standalone basis. The Company altweges whether multiple transactions with
the same customer or related party should be ceregichart of a multiple element arrangement, whetieds Company assesses, among other
factors, whether the contracts or agreements ayetiated or executed within a short time frameaufteother or if there are indicators that the
contracts are negotiated in contemplation of edlsbroThe Company then allocates revenue to eacheglt based on a selling price hierarchy.
The relative selling price for a deliverable isé@d®n its vendor-specific objective evidence (VSOEgvailable, third-party evidence (TPE), if
VSOE is not available, or estimated selling pritagither VSOE nor TPE is available. The Compdmntrecognizes revenue on each
deliverable in accordance with its policies forguot and service revenue recognition. The Compsunpti typically able to determine VSOE or
TPE, and therefore, uses estimated selling prawafidcate revenue between the elements of thegenaent.
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The Company limits the amount of revenue recognifiy delivered elements to the amount that iscootingent on the future delivery
of products or services or future performance @ibiigns or subject to customer-specific cancellatights. The Company evaluates each
deliverable in an arrangement to determine whettesr represent separate units of accounting. Avelable constitutes a separate unit of
accounting when it has stand-alone value, andrf@reangement that includes a general right ofmetelative to the delivered products or
services, delivery or performance of the undelisigyduct or service isonsidered probable and is substantially contrdifethe Company. Tl
Company considers a deliverable to have stand-alalue if the product or service is sold separabglyhe Company or another vendor or could
be resold by the customer. Further, the revenamgements generally do not include a general afjtgturn relative to the delivered products.
Where the aforementioned criteria for a separaiteofiaccounting are not met, the deliverable ismbmed with the undelivered element(s) and
treated as a single unit of accounting for the psieg of allocation of the arrangement considerati@hrevenue recognition. The Company
allocates the total arrangement consideration ¢h saparable element of an arrangement based hpwoalative selling price of each element.
Allocation of the consideration is determined ahagement inception on the basis of each unitatiked selling price. In instances where the
Company has not established fair value for any liveted element, revenue for all elements is defieumtil delivery of the final element is
completed and all recognition criteria are met.

Licensing revenue is recognized in accordance priglvailing accounting guidance. Initial licensesfeee deferred and amortized to
revenue over the period of the agreement when mamrexists, the fee is fixed and determinablé, @llectability is reasonably assured.
Noncancellable, nonrefundable license fees aregrezed over the period of the agreement, includimge governing research and developr
activities and any related supply agreement entetecconcurrently with the license when the risk@ciated with commercialization of a
product is non-substantive at the outset of thengement.

From time to time, the Company offers customersssaicentives, which include volume rebates ancbdists. These amounts are
estimated on a quarterly basis and recorded aduatien of revenue.

A summary of revenues by type of revenue arrangeasedescribed above is as follows (in thousands):

Year endec Year endec

May 25, 2014 May 26 , 2013

Recorded upon shipment $ 398,93( $ 359,51¢
Recorded upon acceptance in foreign port 69,71( 78,44
Revenue from license fees, R&D contracts and ri@gfirofit sharing 1,35¢ 1,97¢
Revenue from multiple element arrangements 6,817 1,77
TOTAL $ 476,81 $ 441,70t

Goodwill and Other Intangibles

The Company’s intangible assets are comprised siboer relationships with an estimated usefuldifewvelve to thirteen years and
trademarks/trade names and goodwill with indefitiites (collectively, “intangible assets”), whichet Company recognized in accordance with
accounting guidance (i) upon the acquisition oféatgne by Apio in April 2012, (ii) upon the acquien of Lifecore in April 2010 and (iii) upc
the acquisition of Apio in December 1999. Accougtguidance defines goodwill as “the excess of t& of an acquired entity over the net of
the estimated fair values of the assets acquirddtanliabilities assumed at date of acquisitig¥l'intangible assets, including goodwill,
associated with the acquisition of Lifecore waecdted to our HA-based Biomaterials reporting ani the acquisitions of Apio and GreenLine
were allocated to our Food Products Technologyrtempunit pursuant to accounting guidance basexnhupe allocation of assets and liabilities
acquired and consideration paid for each repouing As of May 25, 2014, the HA-based Biomateri&gorting unit had $13.9 million of
goodwill and the Food Products Technology reporting had $35.7 million of goodwiill.

The Company tests its indefinite-lived intangibdsets for impairment at least annually, in accardamith accounting guidance. For

non-goodwill indefinite-lived assets, the Compaeyfprms a qualitative analysis in accordance wiB8CA350-3035. For goodwill, the Compa
performs a quantitative analysis in accordance A8IC 350-20-35.
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Application of the impairment tests for indefiniteed intangible assets requires significant judgtriy management, including
identification of reporting units, assignment ofets and liabilities to reporting units, assignnurintangible assets to reporting units, and the
determination of the fair value of each indefifiteed intangible asset and reporting unit basechypojections of future net cash flows, discc
rates and market multiples, which judgments angeptions are inherently uncertain.

During the fiscal quarter ended February 23, 2@igl Company voluntarily changed the date of itsuahgoodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible assets impairment testing from the diast of the fiscal month in July to the first daytioé fiscal fourth quarter. This voluntary change
is preferable under the circumstances as it praviide Company with additional time to completeaitaual goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible asset impairment testing in advancesofear-end reporting and results in better aligrinagéth the Company’s strategic planning and
forecasting process. The voluntary change in adeggprinciple related to the annual testing daiiénet delay, accelerate, or avoid an
impairment charge. This change is not applied sptotively as it is impracticable to do so becaet®spective application would require
application of significant estimates and assumgtiwith the use of hindsight. Accordingly, the chamgll be applied prospectively.

The Company tested its indefinite-lived intangiassets for impairment as of February 24, 2014 atetohined that no adjustments to
the carrying values of these assets were neceasafythat date. On a quarterly basis, the Compangiders the need to update its most recent
annual tests for possible impairment of its indéditived intangible assets, based on managemasssssment of changes in its business and
other economic factors since the most recent areualiation. Such changes, if significant or matedould indicate a need to update the most
recent annual tests for impairment of the indefifiited intangible assets during the current peride results of these tests could lead to write-
downs of the carrying values of these assets icuhent period.

The Company uses the discounted cash flow (“DCppr@ach to develop an estimate of fair value fardyaill. The DCF approach
recognizes that current value is premised on tpee®d receipt of future economic benefits. Indicet of value are developed by discounting
projected future net cash flows to their presehievat a rate that reflects both the current retequirements of the market and the risks inherent
in the specific investment. The market approaaiotsused to value the Company’s reporting unit@abse insufficient market comparables exist
to enable the Company to develop a reasonabledhie due to the unique nature of each of the Cogipaeporting units.

The DCF associated with the annual goodwill impaintiranalysis for the Food Products Technology teppunit is based on
management’s five-year projection of revenues,gpoefits and operating profits by fiscal year asdumes a 36% effective tax rate for each
year. Management takes into account the historieatls of the Food Products Technology reportirigamd the industry categories in whicl
operates along with inflationary factors, currezdreomic conditions, new product introductions, afstales, operating expenses, capital
requirements and other relevant data when devejdtsiprojection. The estimated fair value of tlewé Products Technology reporting unit as
of February 24, 2014 was 136% of its book valuthatt date, therefore, no goodwill impairment wasrded to exist. For the test performed s
July 21, 2013, the projected cash flow from operegifor determining the DCF for fiscal year 2014840.1 million for the Food Products
Technology reporting unit. The actual cash flowniroperations for fiscal year 2014 was $10.5 million

The DCF associated with the annual goodwill impaimiranalysis for the HA-based Biomaterials repgrtinit is based on
management’s five-year projections of revenuessgpuofits and operating profits by fiscal year asdumes a 36% effective tax rate for each
year. Management takes into account the histotieatls of H-based Biomaterials reporting unit and the indussitegories in which it operat
along with inflationary factors, current economanditions, new product introductions, cost of satgmrating expenses, capital requirements
and other relevant data when developing its prigeciThe estimated fair value of the HA-based Biterials reporting unit as of February 24,
2014 was 176% of its book value at that date, foezeno goodwill impairment was deemed to exist. the test performed as of July 21, 2013,
the projected cash flow from operations for detaing the DCF for fiscal year 2014 was $6.3 millfonthe HA-based Biomaterials reporting
unit. The actual cash flow from operations for dilsgear 2014 was $10.2 million. The difference 8fmillion is primarily due to timing of
working capital changes and lower than planneddontapany charges for income taxes.
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Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeaccounting guidance which requires that defétax assets and liabilities
recognized using enacted tax rates for the effeenoporary differences between the book and taishaf recorded assets and liabilities. The
Company maintains valuation allowances when ikidy that all or a portion of a deferred tax ass#itnot be realized. Changes in valuation
allowances from period to period are included i @ompany’s income tax provision in the periodimdirnge. In determining whether a valuation
allowance is warranted, the Company takes intowattcguch factors as prior earnings history, expkfitture earnings, unsettled circumstances
that, if unfavorably resolved, would adversely effetilization of a deferred tax asset, carrybactt earryforward periods, and tax strategies that
could potentially enhance the likelihood of rediiza of a deferred tax asset. At May 25, 2014,Goenpany had a valuation allowance of
$881,000 against deferred tax assets.

In addition to valuation allowances, the Compartpladgshes tax-contingency accruals for uncertairptasitions. The tax-contingency
accruals are adjusted in light of changing facts @rcumstances, such as the progress of tax agdids law and emerging legislation. The
Company recognizes interest and penalties relateddertain tax positions as a component of incamexpense. The Company’s effective tax
rate includes the impact of tax-contingency acaraal considered appropriate by management.

A number of years may elapse before a particulatemdor which the Company has accrued, is auditatifinally resolved. The
number of years with open tax audits varies bysgliction. While it is often difficult to predict ¢hfinal outcome or the timing of resolution of
any particular tax matter, the Company believetaitscontingency accruals are adequate to addresgrktax contingencies. Favorable
resolution of such matters could be recognizedraslaction to the Company’s effective tax ratehia year of resolution. Unfavorable settlement
of any particular issue could increase the effectax rate. Any resolution of a tax issue may negthie use of cash in the year of resolution. The
Company'’s tax-contingency accruals are presentétkibbalance sheet within accrued liabilities.

Sock-Based Compensation

The Company'’s stock-based awards include stockmopfiants and restricted stock unit awards (RSUSs).

The estimated fair value for stock options, whiettedmines the Company’s calculation of compensatigense, is based on the Black-
Scholes pricing model. In addition, the accountingdance requires the estimation of the expectddifares of stock-based awards at the time
of grant. As a result, the Company uses histodetd to estimate pre-vesting forfeitures and rexetdck-based compensation expense only for
those awards that are expected to vest and rethiges estimates in subsequent periods if the afdtfaltures differ from the prior estimates.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses fair value measurement accouitiritgnancial assets and liabilities and for finemdénstruments and certain other
items measured at fair value. The Company haseelebe fair value option for its investment in afpublic company (see Note 4 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements). The Companybislected the fair value option for any of iteer eligible financial assets or liabilities.

The accounting guidance established a three-tieatdhy for fair value measurements, which pripefti the inputs used in measuring
fair value as follows:

Level 1 — observable inputs such as quoted primeisiéntical instruments in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices in actiagkets that are observable either directly oir@untly through corroboration with
observable market data.
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Level 3 — unobservable inputs in which there ttelior no market data, which would require the Canypto develop its own
assumptions.

As of May 25, 2014, the Company held certain assadsliabilities that are required to be measutddiavalue on a recurring basis,
including cash equivalents, marketable securitigsrest rate swap and its minority interest inresit in Windset.

The fair value of the Company’s marketable se@giis determined based on observable inputs teaeadily available in public
markets or can be derived from information avaédhlpublicly quoted markets. Therefore, the Conyd@as categorized its marketable
securities as a Level 1 measurement.

The fair value of the Company’s interest rate sigagetermined based on model inputs that can beredd in a liquid market,
including yield curves, and is categorized as ael@umeasurement.

The Company has elected the fair value option cbawting for its investment in Windset. The caltiola of fair value utilizes
significant unobservable inputs in the discountashcflow models, including projected cash flowsyvgh rates and discount rates. As a result,
the Company’s investment in Windset is consideodokt a Level 3 measurement investment. The chantpe ifair market value of the
Company’s investment in Windset for the fiscal yeanded May 25, 2014 and May 26, 2013 was duest@€timpany’s 20.1% minority interest
in the change in the fair market value of Windseirmy those periods. In determining the fair vadfi¢he investment in Windset, the Company
utilizes the following significant unobservable ip in the discounted cash flow models:

At May 25, 201. At May 26, 201.
IAnnual consolidated revenue growth rates 4% 3% to 9%
IAnnual consolidated expense growth rates 4% 3% to 8%
Consolidated income tax rates 15% 15%
Consolidated discount rates 16% to 22% 18% to 28%

The revenue growth, expense growth and indameate assumptions, consider the Company'sséstate of the trends in those items over
the discount period. The discount rate assumpéikes into account the risk-free rate of retune,market equity risk premium and the
company’s specific risk premium and then applieaddgitional discount for lack of marketability dfet underlying securities. The discounted
cash flow valuation model used by the Company hagdllowing sensitivity to changes in inputs asdumptions (in thousands):

Impact on value (

Windset investment as

May 25, 201

10% increase in revenue growth rates $ 3,20(
10% increase in expense growth rates $ (2,300
10% increase in income tax rates —
10% increase in discount rates $ (1,500

Imprecision in estimating unobservable market inmain affect the amount of gain or loss recorded foarticular position. The use of
different methodologies or assumptions to deterrthieefair value of certain financial instrumentsikcbresult in a different estimate of fair value
at the reporting date.
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The following table summarizes the fair value & @ompany’s assets and liabilities that are medsatréair value on a recurring basis,
as of May 25, 2014 and May 26, 2013 (in thousands):

Fair Value at May 25, 2014 Fair Value at May 26, 2013
Assets: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Marketable securities $ - $ - 8 - $ 1545 % - % -
Investment in private company - - 39,60( - - 29,60(
Total $ - 9 - % 39,60( $ 154 % - 9 29,60(
Liabilities:
Interest rate swap - 44 - - 163 -
Total $ - % 44 % - $ - 3 162 $ -

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Revenue Recognition

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standardate (“ASU”) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contractdw@ustomers (Topic
606) ("ASU 2014-09"), which outlines a single coetpensive model for entities to use in accountimgdeenue arising from contracts with
customers and supersedes most current revenuenigaoguidance, including industry-specific guiden The standard requires entities to
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of prothggeods or services to customers in an amountéffiatts the consideration to which the er
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goodsrvices. The new guidance also includes a aahsst of disclosure requirements intended
to provide users of financial statements with caghpnsive information about the nature, amountngmnand uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from a company’s contracts with casérs. ASU 2014-09 will be effective beginning tivetfquarter of the Company's fiscal year
2018 and early application is not permitted. Ttamdard allows for either “full retrospective” adiopt, meaning the standard is applied to all of
the periods presented, or “modified retrospecta@dption, meaning the standard is applied onljhéotost current period presented in the
financial statements. Management is currently eatalg the effect ASU 2014-09 will have on the Comypa Consolidated Financial Statements
and disclosures.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-11, Pregiemtaf an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net @pirg Loss Carryforward, a
Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Egjgelated to the presentation of unrecognizedbéanefits. The update requires presentation
of an unrecognized tax benefit, or a portion ofiarecognized tax benefit, as a reduction to a tedeiax asset for a net operating loss
carryforward or a tax credit carryforward in thatetnent of financial position. The guidance dodsapply to the extent that a net operating loss
carryforward or tax credit carryforward at the regjpg date is not available under the tax law @&f éipplicable jurisdiction to settle any additio
income taxes that would result from the disalloveaota tax position. The guidance is effectiveffecal years (and interim periods within those
years) beginning after December 15, 2013, withyesdtbption permitted. The Company early adoptesigtandard in the first fiscal quarter
fiscal year 2014 and such adoption did not hasig@ificant impact on the Company's Consolidatethf€ial Statements or disclosures.

Results of Operations
Fiscal Year Ended May 25, 2014 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended May 26, 2013

Revenuegin thousands):
Fiscal Year endet Fiscal Year endel

May 25, 201 May 26, 201: Change
Food Products Technology $ 360,72¢ $ 320,44 13%
Food Export 69,82' 78,56¢ (11%)
Total Apio 430,55! 399,01! 8%
HA -based Biomaterials 45,70 41,28 11%
Corporate 554 1,412 (61%)
Total Revenues $ 476,81, $ 441,70t 8%
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Food Products Technology (Apio)

Apio’s Food Products Technology revenues consistwénues generated from the sale of specialtygomekfresh-cut and whole value-
added processed vegetable products that are wasldgehckaged in our proprietary packaging and wodtbr Apio’s Eat Smart and GreenLine
brands and various private labels. In additionygaddded revenues include the revenues generatadijpio Cooling, LP, a vegetable cooling
operation in which Apio is the general partner witB0% ownership position, and from the sale ohBreWay packaging to license partners.

The increase in Apio's Food Products Technologgmaes for the fiscal year ended May 25, 2014 coeapiar the same period last y
was primarily due to a 8% increase in unit volurales resulting primarily from expanded product nffgs and a 10% unit volume increase in
the fresh-cut vegetable category, according todeigl coupled with new product introductions whigbidally have a higher price per unit than
historical offerings.

Food Export (Apio)

Apio’s Food Export revenues consist of revenues gedefratm the purchase and sale of primarily whole eardity fruit and vegetab
products to Asia by Cal-Ex. Apio records revenueadtp the sale price to third parties becauszkigd title to the product while in transit.

The decrease in revenues in Apio’s Food Exportriassi for the fiscal year ended May 25, 2014 contpiar¢he same period last year
was due to a 6% decrease in unit volume sales plynas a result of new Indonesian import quotagrait coupled with a product mix change
lower priced export items compared to fiscal yeat2

HA-based Biomaterials (Lifecore)

Lifecore principally generates revenue throughsile of products containing HA. Lifecore primariglls products to customers in
three medical areas: (1) Ophthalmic, which reprieskapproximately 60% of Lifecore’s revenues iedisyear 2014, (2) Orthopedic, which

represented approximately 20% of Lifecore’s revarindiscal year 2014 and (3) Veterinary/Other.

The increase in Lifecore’s revenues for fiscal y2@t4 compared to the same period last year wasodu82% increase in revenues in
Lifecore’s aseptic filling business from increasades to existing customers partially offset byd#ldecrease in fermentation sales.

Corporate
Corporate revenues are generated from the licemgjregments with Air Products, Nitta and INCOTEC.
The decrease in Corporate revenues for fiscal 3@d4 compared to the same period of last year wasignificant.

Gross Profit (in thousands):
Fiscal Year endet Fiscal Year endet

May 25, 201 May 26, 201: Change

Food Products Technology $ 36,31¢ $ 37,077 (2%)
Food Export 5,34( 5,27¢ 1%

Total Apio 41,65¢ 42,35 (2%)
HA -based Biomaterials 20,45¢ 19,10: 7%

Corporate 45C 1,307 (66%)
Total Gross Profit $ 62,56 $ 62,76( 0%
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General

There are numerous factors that can influence gnasfi including product mix, customer mix, manetiaring costs, volume, sale
discounts and charges for excess or obsolete iomgrb name a few. Many of these factors influencare interrelated with other factors. The
Company includes in cost of sales all of the codtted to the sale of products in accordance Wigh generally accepted accounting principles.
These costs include the following: raw materiatgl(iding produce, seeds, packaging, syringes antefgation and purification supplies), dir
labor, overhead (including indirect labor, depréoig and facility related costs) and shipping ahigbping-related costs. The following are the
primary reasons for the changes in gross profitterfiscal year ended May 25, 2014 compared tednee period last year as outlined in the
table above.

Food Products Technology (Apio)

The decrease in gross profit for the Food Prodlethinology business for fiscal year 2014 compavetié same period last year was
primarily due to much higher than expected opegativsts including higher labor costs to meet highan expected volumes and higher raw
produce sourcing costs during primarily the fiigtraonths of fiscal year 2014 resulting from lowgelds and poor quality due to a variety of
factors, most importantly the heavy rains in thelMest and along the East Coast and large tempesatuings in California throughout most of
the year. The higher operating costs reduced Agiass profit by approximately $9.3 million durifigcal year 2014 which was partially offset
by the gross profit generated from the 13% incréasevenues.

Food Export (Apio)

Apio’s Food Export business is a buy/sell busirtbastypically realizes a gross margin in the 54@¥ige.

The increase in gross profit for Apio’s Food Expausiness for fiscal year 2014 compared to the gmaried last year was primarily
due to favorable product mix changes to higher mgsgpducts, primarily into Indonesia, which resdlin a higher gross margin percentage
during fiscal year 2014 of 7.6% compared to a gmaggin percentage of 6.7% during fiscal year 20t favorable product mix was offset by
the decrease in gross profit resulting from an HEdrease in revenues.

HA-based Biomaterials (Lifecore)

Lifecore operates in the medical devices industiy lzas historically realized an overall gross nraggrcentage of approximately 45-
50%.

The increase in gross profit for fiscal year 20t#hpared to the same period last year was due 14 %mn or $4.4 million increase in
revenues resulting from the increased sales of tisthrical products and new products to existingtemers. The increase in gross profit from
higher revenues was partially offset by an unfablergroduct mix change to higher sales of lowergimaaseptically filled products from higher
margin fermentation sales.

Corporate

The decrease in Corporate gross profit for fiseary?014 compared to the same period last yeanetasgnificant.
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Operating Expenseqin thousands):
Fiscal Year ender Fiscal Year endet

May 25, 201« May 26, 2013 Change
Research and Developmer
Apio $ 1,108 $ 1,08¢ 2%
Lifecore 4,73¢ 4,93( (4%)
Corporate 1,36( 3,27¢ (58%)
Total R&D $ 7,20 $ 9,294 (22%)
Selling, General and Administrative
Apio $ 22,86( $ 21,97¢ 4%
Lifecore 4,251 4,59t (7%)
Corporate 8,05¢ 5,96( 35%
Total S,G&A $ 3517C $ 32,53; 8%
Other operating expenses:
Apio $ — % (3,937 N/M
Total Other Operating Expenses $ — % (3,939 N/M

Research and Devel opment

Landec’s research and development consisted phimnproduct development and commercializatiotiatives. Research and
development efforts at Apio are focused on the Gowijs proprietary BreatheWay membranes used fdrguang produce, with a focus on
extending the shelf-life of sensitive vegetabled frit. In the Lifecore business, the research @exklopment efforts are focused on new
products and applications for HA-based biomaterkats Corporate, the research and developmentgfiioe focused on supporting the
development and commercialization of new productsreew technologies in our food and HA busineskewawith developing uses for our
proprietary Intelimer polymers outside of our faat HA businesses.

The decrease in research and development expendescél year 2014 compared to last year was piiyndue to a decrease in
Corporate R&D because of the Company transitioaiwgy from R&D and licensing collaborations to maintfocus on R&D efforts at its core
food and HA businesses.

Slling, General and Administrative (SG&A)

Selling, general and administrative expenses copsinarily of sales and marketing expenses astetiaith Landec’s product sales
and services, business development expenses dinarstadministrative expenses.

The increase in S,G&A expenses for fiscal year 2@impared to the same period last year was priynduié to an increase in
accounting and tax fees, public company costs aaddof director fees in fiscal year 2014.

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses in fiscal year 2013 ctatsisf a $3.9 million reversal of the earn-outilipat Apio associated with the
GreenLine acquisition.
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Non-operating income/(expense)in thousands):

Fiscal Yeat Fiscal Yeal
endec endec
May 25, 2014 May 26 , 2013 Change
Dividend Income $ 1,128 $ 1,12¢ —
Interest Income $ 26C $ 17¢ 45%
Interest Expense $ (1,650 $ (2,00¢) (18%)
Other Income $ 10,000 $ 8,10( 23%
Income Taxes $ (10,587 $ (9,457 12%
Non controlling Interest $ 197 $ (225) (12%)

Dividend Income

Dividend income is derived from the dividends aecton our $15 million preferred stock investmenfMimdset which yields a cash
dividend of 7.5% annually. There was no changevidend income in fiscal year 2014 compared todigear 2013.

Interest Income
The increase in interest income for the fiscal &4 compared to the same period last year wasigmificant.
Interest Expense

The decrease in interest expense during fiscal3@k4 compared to the same period last year wasodhe Company paying down its
debt by $9.9 million during fiscal year 2014.

Other Income

The increase in other income for fiscal year 20dvhgared to the same period last year is primatily th the change in the fair market
value of our Windset investment being $1.9 milllagher in fiscal year 2014 compared to the incréadiscal year 2013.

Income Taxes

The increase in the income tax expense for fiseat 2014 was due to an increase in the effectiveata for fiscal year 2014 to 36%
compared to 30% in fiscal year 2013. The effedt@xerates for last year was lower than this year eesult of the $3.9 million earn out
adjustment last year which was not subject to iretem. The increase in income taxes due to thedserin the effective tax rate was partially
offset by a 7% decrease in net income before teswempared to the same period last year.

Non controlling Interest

The non controlling interest consists of the liditgartners’ equity interest in the net income ofcAgooling, LP.

The decrease in non controlling interest for figedr 2014 compared to the same period last yesinatasignificant.
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Fiscal Year Ended May 27, 2013 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended May 27, 2012
Revenuegin thousands):

Fiscal Year endet Fiscal Year endet

May 26, 201. May 27, 201. Change
Food Products Technology $ 320,44° $ 207,58: 54%
Food Export 78,56¢ 71,48¢ 10%
Total Apio 399,01! 279,06 43%
HA -based Biomaterials 41,28: 34,28 2C%
Corporate 1,41z 4,20z (66%)
Total Revenues $ 441,70t $ 317,55. 3¢%

Food Products Technology (Apio)

Apio’s Food Products Technology revenues consistwénues generated from the sale of specialtyguekfresh-cut and whole value-
added processed vegetable products that are waslguhckaged in our proprietary packaging and wadr Apio’s Eat Smart and GreenLine
brands and various private labels. In additionygsddded revenues include the revenues generataddjpio Cooling, LP, a vegetable cooling
operation in which Apio is the general partner vétB0% ownership position and from the sale of Bi@&/ay packaging to license partners.

The increase in Apio's Food Products Technologgmaes for the fiscal year ended May 26, 2013 coeapiar the same period last y
was primarily due to the following factors: (1) 27million increase in non-green bean value-adééessdue to a 15% increase in unit volume
sales to existing non-green bean customers regudtimarily from expanded product offerings, gagmadditional distribution locations and
growth in the fresh-cut vegetable category, (2586 million increase in revenues from GreenLinechtwas acquired on April 23, 2012 and (3)
a larger percentage of Apio's non-green bean vadiged sales volume being generated from saleslicstbres rather than retail grocery chains.
These increases in revenue were partially offsetrbguct mix changes in retail grocery chains tedopriced products from higher priced
products.

Food Export (Apio)

Apio’s Food Export revenues consist of revenues geuefratm the purchase and sale of primarily whole eadity fruit and vegetab
products to Asia by Cal-Ex. Apio records revenueadtp the sale price to third parties becauszkigd title to the product while in transit.

The increase in revenues in Apio’s Food Exportress for the fiscal year ended May 26, 2013 conaptaréhe same period last year
was primarily due to more favorable pricing for e’pproducts in fiscal year 2013 compared to figegr 2012 resulting in higher prices per
sold.

HA-based Biomaterials (Lifecore)

Lifecore principally generates revenue throughddile of products containing HA. Lifecore primasiglls products to customers in
three medical areas: (1) Ophthalmic, which represkapproximately 65% of Lifecore’s revenues icdisyear 2013, (2) Orthopedic, which
represented approximately 20% of Lifecore’s revarindiscal year 2013 and (3) Veterinary/Other.

The increase in Lifecore’s revenues for fiscal y&@t3 compared to the same period last year wasldwuest entirely to increased sales

of existing aseptically filled products to existingstomers and from new aseptically filled produetently approved by the FDA to existing
customers in the Ophthalmic area.
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Corporate

Corporate revenues are generated from the licemagjrepments with Air Products, Nitta and INCOTEC.

The decrease in Corporate revenues for fiscal 3@58 compared to the same period of last year wagalthe termination of the
Monsanto Agreement at the end of the second quafrfescal year 2012. The Company recognized $2lifomin license fees from the
Monsanto Agreement during fiscal year 2012. The s&oro license fees were partially offset by reseand development revenues from Nitta.

Gross Profit (in thousands):

Fiscal Year endet Fiscal Year endet

May 26, 201. May 27, 201. Change
Food Products Technology $ 37,070 $ 25,23} 47%
Food Export 5,27¢ 4,90( 8%
Total Apio 42,35 30,137 41%
HA -based Biomaterials 19,10: 17,99¢ 6%
Corporate 1,30 4,007 (67%)
Total Gross Profit $ 62,76( $ 52,13¢ 2¢%

General

There are numerous factors that can influence gmasi including product mix, customer mix, manctiaring costs, volume, sale
discounts and charges for excess or obsolete iomerd name a few. Many of these factors influeocare interrelated with other factors. The
Company includes in cost of sales all of the codtted to the sale of products in accordance Wigh generally accepted accounting principles.
These costs include the following: raw materiatgl(iding produce, seeds, packaging, syringes antefgation and purification supplies), dir
labor, overhead (including indirect labor, depréoig and facility related costs) and shipping ahigbping-related costs. The following are the
primary reasons for the changes in gross profitterfiscal year ended May 26, 2013 compared teanee period last year as outlined in the
table above.

Food Products Technology (Apio)

The increase in gross profit for the Food Prodiietshnology business for the fiscal year 2013 coegbéw the same period last year
was primarily due to (1) the 54% increase in reesnand (2) the addition of higher margin Greenlgraducts. These increases were partially
offset by the negative impact of produce sourcgsgieés which primarily occurred during the seconfididiscal year 2013.

Food Export (Apio)

Apio’s Food Export business is a buy/sell businikastypically realizes a gross margin in the 5+@#tge.

The increase in gross profit for Apio’s Food Expausiness for fiscal year 2013 compared to the gmaried last year was primarily
due to a 10% increase in revenues partially offgdtigher procurement costs for certain export potsl

HA-based Biomaterials (Lifecore)

Lifecore operates in the higher margin medical devindustry and has historically realized an di’/grass margin of approximately
45-50%.

The increase in gross profit for fiscal year 20@gpared to the same period last year was due itccegase in revenues of $7.0 million

resulting from the increased sales of both hisabpcoducts and new products to existing customish were partially offset by the revenue
increase from aseptically filled products which éalower gross margin than Lifecore’s other prasluc
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Corporate

The decrease in Corporate gross profit for fisealr2013 compared to the same period last yeadwsaso the termination of the
Monsanto Agreement at the end of the second quafrfescal year 2012. The Company recognized $2lifomin license fees from the
Monsanto Agreement during fiscal year 2012. The s&oro license fees were partially offset by reseant development revenues from Nitta.

Operating Expenseqin thousands):

Fiscal Year endet Fiscal Year endet

May 26, 201. May 27, 2012 Change
Research and Developmer
Apio $ 1,08¢ $ 1,10¢ (2%)
Lifecore 4,93( 4,671 6%
Corporate 3,27¢ 3,84¢ (15%)
Total R&D $ 9,29 $ 9,62¢ (3%)
Selling, General and Administrative
Apio $ 21,97¢ $ 14,77¢ 49%
Lifecore 4,59t 4,521 2%
Corporate 5,96( 7,21¢ (17%)
Total S,G&A $ 32,53. $ 26,51 23%
Other operating expenses:
Apio $ (3,939 $ 871 N/M
Corporate — 55( N/M
Total Other Operating Expenses $ (3,939 $ 1,421 N/M

Research and Devel opment

Landec’s research and development consisted phinadnproduct development and commercializatiotiatives. Research and
development efforts at Apio are focused on the Gomjs proprietary BreatheWay membranes used fdtggaog produce, with a focus on
extending the shelf-life of sensitive vegetabled frit. In the Lifecore business, the research @exklopment efforts are focused on new
products and applications for HA-based biomaterkats Corporate, the research and developmentigfiioe focused on supporting the
development and commercialization of new productsreew technologies in our food and HA busineskewawith developing uses for our
proprietary Intelimer polymers outside of our feamad HA businesses.

The decrease in research and development expemdescél year 2013 compared to the same peridd/é&es was primarily due to the
decrease in research and development expenseeeithtayr Corporate during fiscal year 2012 at the gamy’s former seed corn business which
was sold in June 2012.

SHling, General and Administrative (SG& A)

Selling, general and administrative expenses copsisarily of sales and marketing expenses astatiaith Landec’s product sales
and services, business development expenses dhangtadministrative expenses.

The increase in S,G&A expenses for fiscal year 2@#pared to the same period last year was priynduit to: (1) a $4.6 million
increase in S,G&A expenses at Apio from GreenLitéctvwas acquired on April 23, 2012 and (2) a $R2ilion increase in SG&A at Apio,
excluding GreenLine, due to the amortization of¢dhstomer base intangible acquired in the acqoisitf GreenLine and additional sales and
marketing expenses associated with the increasv@nues. These increases were partially offset®¥.3 million decrease in S,G&A at
Corporate due primarily to no Corporate bonusesgiearned in fiscal year 2013 compared to $1.0anilbf Corporate bonuses earned in fiscal
year 2012 and from S,G&A expenses at the Conr’s former seed corn business in fiscal year 2012hivas sold in June 2012.
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Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses in fiscal year 2013 ctatsisf a $3.9 million reversal of the earn-outilipat Apio associated with the
GreenLine acquisition. Other operating expensdisdal year 2012 consisted of expenses incurredrasult of the acquisition of GreenLine.

Non-operating income/(expense)in thousands):

Fiscal Year endet Fiscal Year endet

May 26 , 2013 May 27 , 2012 Change
Dividend Income $ 1,128 $ 1,12¢ —
Interest Income $ 17¢ $ 18C (1%)
Interest Expense $ (2,00¢) $ (929 11€%
Other Income $ 8,10 $ 5,331 52%
Income Taxes $ (9,452 $ (7,185 32%
Non controlling Interest $ (225) $ (409 (44%)

Dividend Income

Dividend income is derived from the dividends aecton our $15 million preferred stock investmenfMimdset which yields a cash
dividend of 7.5% annually. There was no changevidend income in fiscal year 2013 compared todigear 2012.

Interest Income

The decrease in interest income for the fiscal gaded May 26, 2013 compared to the same periogidas was primarily due to lower
cash balances reflecting our use of cash to buyblaaies of the Company’s common stock during figeat 2012 and to purchase GreenLine.

Interest Expense

The increase in interest expense during fiscal 2648 compared to the same period last year wasodaterest on the $32 million of
debt incurred in the acquisition of GreenLine. Tihirease was partially offset by decreases imésteexpense at Lifecore due to paying dow
debt by $3.3 million during fiscal year 2013.

Other Income

The increase in other income for fiscal year 20d3gared to the same period last year is primatily th the change in the fair market
value of our Windset investment being $2.3 milliagher in fiscal year 2013 compared to the chandiscal year 2012.

Income Taxes

The increase in the income tax expense for fiseat Y013 is due to a 59% increase in net inconmdeédixes compared to the same
period last year. The effective tax rate for fisgahr 2013 was 30% compared to 36% for the samedolaist year primarily because the $3.9
million reversal of the earn-out liability during€al year 2013 related to the GreenLine acquisitias not subject to income taxes and various
to other tax deductions and credits in fiscal \&&k3, such as the return of the R&D credit andctienge in the Company’s state apportionment
factors due to the addition of GreenLine, whichuliesl in a lower effective tax rate for fiscal y&ar3.
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Non-controlling Interest
The non-controlling interest consists of the lirdifgartners’ equity interest in the net income ofoApooling, LP.

The decrease in narentrolling interest for fiscal year 2013 compatedhe same period last year was due to a decie#@gso Cooling
revenues.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of May 25, 2014, the Company had cash and ogsivadents of $14.2 million, a net increase of $826 from $13.7 million at May
26, 2013.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Landec generated $21.0 million of cash from opeggéictivities during fiscal year 2014 comparedéaeyating $21.2 million from
operating activities during fiscal year 2013. Thienary sources of cash from operating activitiesrdyfiscal year 2014 were from (1) $19.3
million of net income, (2) $8.5 million of depreti@n/amortization and stock-based compensationresgmeand (3) a $5.6 million net increase in
deferred tax liabilities. The primary uses of cisim operating activities were from the $10.0 miflinon-cash increase in the Company’s
investment in Windset and a net increase of $2llfomin working capital, excluding the portion tife increase in income taxes receivable
which is attributable to the tax benefit from stdised compensation.

The primary factors which increased working capitaiing fiscal year 2014 were a $8.0 million in@e#n receivables primarily due to
May 2014 revenues for Apio and Lifecore being $5iion and $1.7 million higher, respectively, thapio’s and Lifecore’s May 2013
revenues. These increases in working capital wargagly offset by a $3.1 million increase in incertaxes receivable due to overpayments ¢
$3.2 million increase in current liabilities resng primarily from the timing of invoices at Apio.

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for fiscady2014 was $13.3 million compared to $10.4 millionthe same period last year. The
primary uses of cash in investing activities duffisgal year 2014 were for the purchase of $148aniof equipment primarily to support the
growth of the Apio value-added and Lifecore bussess

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities for fiscahy2014 was $7.2 million compared to $19.3 millionthe same period last year. The
net cash used in financing activities during fisgedr 2014 was primarily due to the $9.9 milliomet payments on the Company’s lines of
credit and long-term debt offset by $2.3 millioce®red from proceeds from the sale of Common Stbhk.primary use of cash from financing
activities during fiscal year 2013 was from a $lidiom earn out payment made related to the Lifecacquisition, $9.7 million of which was
recorded as a contingent liability at the timehaf acquisition and was therefore classified asanfiing activity.

Capital Expenditures
During the fiscal year ended May 25, 2014, Landettioued its expansion of Apio’s value-added pretesfacility and purchased

vegetable processing equipment as well as madéyfanbdifications and equipment purchases at lofeco support business growth. These
expenditures represented the majority of the $adligon of capital expenditures during fiscal yer14.
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Debt

On August 19, 2004, Lifecore issued variable ratiistrial revenue bonds (“IRBs”). These IRBs wassumed by Landec in the
acquisition of Lifecore (see Note 9 to the Consaikd Financial Statements). The IRBs are collagalby a bank letter of credit which is
secured by a first mortgage on Lifecore’s faciiityChaska, Minnesota. In addition, Lifecore paysanual remarketing fee equal to 0.125% and
an annual letter of credit fee of 0.75%.

On April 23, 2012 in connection with the acquigitiof GreenLine, Apio entered into three loan agremimiwith General Electric
Capital Corporation and/or its affiliates (“GE Cai), (collectively the “GE Debt Agreements”):

1) A five-year, $25.0 million ass-based working capital revolving line of credit, lvéin interest rate of LIBOR plus 2%, with availébi
based on the combination of the eligible accoumtgivable and inventory balances of Apio and itsiliaries (availability was $19.8
million at May 25, 2014). Apio’s revolving line afedit has an unused fee of 0.375% per annum. At28a2014 and May 26, 2013,
Apio had zero and $4.0 million, respectively, oasting under its revolving line of crec

2) A $12.7 million capital equipment loan which matuie seven years payable in monthly principal amerest payments of $175,3
with interest based on a fixed rate of 4.39% p&uan

3) A $19.2 million real estate loan, $1.2 million ohiwh was paid in April 2013, and the remainder miaglin ten years. The real esti
loan has a fifteen year amortization period dueamthly principal and interest payments of $141,8@R interest based on a fixed rate
of 4.02% per annum. The principal balance remaimit the end of the ten year term is due in ommlaum on April 23, 202:

Apio’s obligations under the GE Debt Agreementssa@ured by liens on all of the property of Apidldts subsidiaries. The GE Debt
Agreements contain customary events of default uwtiech obligations could be accelerated or inoeda3he GE Capital real estate and
equipment loans are guaranteed by Landec, and tdradepledged its equity interest in Apio as cetldtunder the line of credit agreement.
GE Debt Agreements contain customary covenants, asitimitations on the ability to (1) incur indetihess or grant liens or negative pledges
on Apio’s assets; (2) make loans or other investmég8) pay dividends, sell stock or repurchasekstw other securities; (4) sell assets; (5)
engage in mergers; (6) enter into sale and leakdlmtsactions; and (7) make changes in Apio’s @@te structure. In addition, Apio must
maintain a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio.@D%o 1.0 if the availability under its line ofedit falls below $7.5 million. Apio was in
compliance with all financial covenants as of M&y 2014 and May 26, 2013. Unamortized loan origimatees for the GE Debt Agreements
were $964,000 and $1.2 million at May 25, 2014 slay 26, 2013, respectively, and are included ireotssets in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets.

On May 23, 2012, Lifecore entered into two finagcagreements with BMO Harris Bank N.A. and/or ifdiates (“BMO Harris”),
collectively (the “Lifecore Loan Agreements”):

@ A Credit and Security Agreement (the “Cred@réement”) which includes (a) a two-year, $10.0iarilasset-based working capital
revolving line of credit, with an interest rateldBOR plus 1.85%, with availability based on therdmnation of Lifecore’s eligible
accounts receivable and inventory balances (avitjalvas $7.9 million at May 25, 2014) and with naused fee (as of May 25, 2014
and May 26, 2013, no amounts were outstanding uhedime of credit) and (b) a $12.0 million teroah which matures in four years
due in monthly payments of $250,000 with interestgble monthly based on a variable interest ratdBOR plus 2% (the “Term
Loan”).

2 A Reimbursement Agreement pursuant to which@BMarris caused its affiliate Bank of Montreal $sue an irrevocable letter of credit
in the amount of $3.5 million (the “Letter of Cré&dliwhich is securing the IRBs described above.
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The obligations of Lifecore under the Lifecore Losgreements are secured by liens on all of thegntgpf Lifecore. The Lifecore
Loan Agreements contain customary covenants, ssiimaations on the ability to (1) incur indebtexhs or grant liens or negative pledges on
Lifecore’s assets; (2) make loans or other investm€3) pay dividends or repurchase stock or atkeurities; (4) sell assets; (5) engage in
mergers; (6) enter into sale and leaseback transac{7) adopt certain benefit plans; and (8) matk@nges in Lifecore’s corporate structure. In
addition, under the Credit Agreement, Lifecore nmaintain (a) a minimum fixed charge coverage ratit.10 to 1.0 and a minimum quick
ratio of 1.25 to 1.00, both of which must be s&itfas of the end of each fiscal quarter commenwitigthe fiscal quarter ending August 26,
2012 and (b) a minimum tangible net worth of $29,000, measured as of May 28, 2013, and as ofrtthi@fEeach fiscal year thereafter.
Unamortized loan origination fees for the Lifecbman Agreements were $98,000 and $149,000 at Mag®5! and May 26, 2013,
respectively, and are included in other assetsdrCionsolidated Balance Sheets. Lifecore was irptante with all financial covenants as of
May 25, 2014 and May 26, 2013.

The market value of the Company’s debt approximiggegcorded value as the interest rates on eelshilstrument approximates
current market rates.

The Term Loan was used to repay Lifecore’s formmedit facility with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“WellBargo”). The Letter of Credit
(which replaces a letter of credit previously pdad by Wells Fargo) provides liquidity and credipport for the IRBs.

In May 2010, the Company entered into a five-yatarest rate swap agreement under the prior aigdiement with Wells Fargo,
which expires on April 30, 2015. The interest mat@p was designated as a cash flow hedge of futtenest payments of LIBOR and had a
notional amount of $20 million. As a result of ihéerest rate swap transaction, the Company fired five-year period the interest rate at
4.24% subject to market based interest rate risk@hmillion of borrowings under the credit agreemeith Wells Fargo. The Company’s
obligations under the interest rate swap transaetoto the scheduled payments were guaranteeskanded on the same basis as its obligations
under the credit agreement with Wells Fargo atithe the agreement was consummated. Upon enterioghe new Term Loan with BMO
Harris, the Company used the proceeds from thattogay off the Wells Fargo credit facility. Theap with Wells Fargo was not terminated
upon the extinguishment of the debt with Wells IBarys a result of extinguishing the debt with Wélkrgo as of May 23, 2012, the swap was
no longer an effective hedge and therefore, thhevidue of the swap at the time the debt was eutatged of $347,000 was reversed from other
comprehensive income and recorded in other expunagg fiscal year 2012. The fair value of the s\aaangement as of May 25, 2014 and
May 26, 2013 was $44,000 and $163,000, respectiaely is included in other accrued liabilitiestie accompanying Consolidated Balance
Sheets.

Contractual Obligations
The Company’s material contractual obligationstfar next five years and thereafter as of May 2842@re as follows (in thousands):

Due in Fiscal Year Ended May

Obligation Total 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter
Income taxes $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Debt principal payments 34,37: 6,05¢ 6,181 3,31¢ 3,45¢ 3,59¢ 11,76:
Interest payments 5,19¢ 1,14¢ 95¢ 79% 663 52t 1,111
Operating leases 11,03¢ 2,91¢ 2,72( 2,22¢ 1,37¢ 92¢ 87:¢
Purchase commitments 5,04¢ 5,04¢ — — — — —
Total $ 5565« $ 15160 $ 9,85¢ $ 6,33¢ $ 549, $ 505: $ 13,74

The income tax amounts above exclude liabilitis®eisted with the accounting for uncertainty inoime taxes as we are unable to
reasonably estimate the ultimate amount or timingettlement. See Note 11 in the Notes to Cons@litlRinancial Statements for further
discussion.
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The interest payment amounts above include: (131B@% fixed interest rate payments on the GE @beguipment loan, (2) the 4.0:
fixed interest rate payments on the GE Capitalestdte loan, (3) the estimated interest rate payorethe variable Term Loan with BMO
Harris based on the four year historical averagde&0LIBOR plus 2% or 2.22% and (4) the estimatedrest rate payment on the variable rate
IRB based on the five year historical interest eaterage for the Municipal Swap Index plus 20 bpsists plus the letter of credit and
remarketing fees of 0.875% resulting in a estimadel of 1.25%.

Landec is not a party to any agreements with, orroitments to, any special purpose entities thatldvoonstitute material off-balance
sheet financing other than the operating lease doments.

Landec’s future capital requirements will depenchamerous factors, including the progress of ikeaech and development programs;
the continued development of marketing, sales dstdlzlition capabilities; the ability of Landeceastablish and maintain new collaborative and
licensing arrangements; any decision to pursueiaddl acquisition opportunities; weather condiidhat can affect the supply and price of
produce, the timing and amount, if any, of paymeeteived under licensing and research and deveopagreements; the costs involved in
preparing, filing, prosecuting, defending and edifug intellectual property rights; the ability toraply with regulatory requirements; the
emergence of competitive technology and markeefgrthe effectiveness of product commercializagictivities and arrangements; and other
factors. If Landec’s currently available funds,etwer with the internally generated cash flow froperations are not sufficient to satisfy its
capital needs, Landec would be required to seeitiaal funding through other arrangements witHadobrative partners, additional bank
borrowings and public or private sales of its séi@s There can be no assurance that additiomalsfuf required, will be available to Landec on
favorable terms, if at all.

Landec believes that its cash from operations,galaith existing cash, cash equivalents and marketdzurities will be sufficient to
finance its operational and capital requirementsfdeast the next twelve months.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

Not significant.
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

See Item 15 of Part IV of this report.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of May 25, 2014 our management evaluated, vattigpation of our Chief Executive Officer and dbhief Financial Officer, the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and pracesias of the end of the period covered by thisudhReport on Form 10-K. Based on this
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and our &Htinancial Officer have concluded that our disal@ controls and procedures are effective
in ensuring that information required to be diselb@ reports filed under the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended, is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the pien@ds specified by the Securities and Exchangarflission, and are effective in providing
reasonable assurance that information requireeé tiszlosed by the Company in such reports is agtated and communicated to the

Company’s management, including its Chief Execu@¥icer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropei& allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.
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Management's Report on Internal Control over Finarat Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting (as defined in Rule
13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1834amended). Our management assessed the effestb/of our internal control over
financial reporting as of May 25, 2014. In makihégstassessment, our management used the critef@tbeby the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COS@"Iiternal Control - Integrated Framework (1992nreavork). Our management has
concluded that, as of May 25, 2014, our internatied over financial reporting was effective to pigte reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaoat of financial statements for external purposeadcordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Financial Officer, does not expect tha disclosure controls and
procedures or our internal control over financggdarting will prevent all error and all fraud. Ardool system, no matter how well conceived
and operated, can provide only reasonable, nofuksassurance that the objectives of the cosyrstiem are met. Further, the design of a
control system must reflect the fact that thereraseurce constraints, and the benefits of contnoist be considered relative to their costs.
Because of the inherent limitations in all consgétems, no evaluation of controls can provide labs@assurance that all control issues and
instances of fraud, if any, within the Company hbeen detected.

Our independent registered public accounting fEEnmmst & Young LLP, has issued an audit report oniwternal control over financial
reporting, which is included herein.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Repont

There were no changes in our internal controls Gimancial reporting during the fiscal year endedyM25, 2014 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeef, our internal controls over financial repogtin
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of LandepGration

We have audited Landec Corporation and subsidianisnal control over financial reporting as oby25, 2014, based on criteria
established in Internal Controlrtegrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpiang Organizations of the Treadway Commissi®@92
Framework) (the COSO criteria). Landec Corporatiod subsidiaries’ management is responsible fontaiaing effective internal control over
financial reporting, and for its assessment ofeffiectiveness of internal control over financigboeting included in the accompanying
Management’'s Report on Internal Control over FiteriReporting. Our responsibility is to expressoginion on the company’s internal control
over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightd@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethetigéfeénternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is:. audit included obtaining an understanding tdrimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etdst&)g and evaluating the design and operatifegtdfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstance®eiléve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablessssuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantegeinerally accepted accounting principles.
A company'’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thgtddtain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refteettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureh@tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioazations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabsurance regarding prevention or timely detectiainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzameaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdégaate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Landec Corporation and subsidiamesntained, in all material respects, effectiveiinal control over financial
reporting as of May 25, 2014, based on the COS@rii

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsda# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Landec Corporatidrsabsidiaries as of May 25, 2014 and May 26, 2848 the related consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, stockholdgrstye and cash flows for each of the three yeathé period ended May 25, 2014 and our
report dated August 1, 2014 expressed an unquhbfinion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP
San Francisco, California
August 1, 2014

Item 9B. Other Information

None
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Iltem 10.

Iltem 11.

Iltem 12.

Item 13.

Item 14.

PART IlI

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governe
This information required by this item will be cairted in the Registrant’s definitive proxy statetmhich the Registrant will file
with the Commission no later than September 2242020 days after the Registranfiscal year end covered by this Report) at
incorporated herein by reference.
Executive Compensatio
This information required by this item will be caimed in the Registrant’s definitive proxy statetehich the Registrant will file
with the Commission no later than September 2242020 days after the Registranfiscal year end covered by this Report) ar
incorporated herein by reference.
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aianagement and Related Stockholder Matt
This information required by this item will be caimed in the Registrant’s definitive proxy statetehich the Registrant will file
with the Commission no later than September 2242020 days after the Registranfiscal year end covered by this Report) ar
incorporated herein by reference.
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions abutector Independence
This information required by this item will be cairied in the Registrant’s definitive proxy statemhich the Registrant will file
with the Commission no later than September 2242020 days after the Registranfiscal year end covered by this Report) at
incorporated herein by reference.

Principal Accountant Fees and Services
This information required by this item will be cairied in the Registrant’s definitive proxy statemhich the Registrant will file

with the Commission no later than September 2242020 days after the Registranfiscal year end covered by this Report) at
incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Scheduls

(@ Consolidated Financial Statements of Landec Cotjmora

1.
Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfing 47
Consolidated Balance Sheets at May 25, 2014 and2da2013 48

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomthélears Ended May 25, 2014, May 26, 2013 and &% 49
2012

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholéepsity for the Years Ended May 25, 2014, May 26.2@n¢ 50
May 27, 2012

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Yeaded May 25, 2014, May 26, 2013 and May 27, 2012 51

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem 52
2. All schedules provided for in the applicable acdmm regulations of the Securities and Exchange Gsior

have been omitted since they pertain to items wticchot appear in the financial statements of Lar@lerporatio

and its subsidiaries or to items which are notificant or to items as to which the required discli@s have be

made elsewhere in the financial statements andesmgptary notes and such schedules.

3. INdeX Of EXNIDILS........coveiiiiiiii e e e eeee e 81

The exhibits listed in the accompanying Index ohibits are filed or incorporated by reference ag pé this
report.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of LanderpGration

We have audited the accompanying consolidated &alsineets of Landec Corporation and subsidiarie$ gy 25, 2014 and May 26,
2013, and the related consolidated statementsrophensive income, stockholders’ equity, and @asVs for each of the three years in the
period ended May 25, 2014. These financial statésreme the responsibility of the Company's managéen@r responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based omwdits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighaflqUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émidbtain reasonable assurance about whethdintdrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on sltasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disi@s in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by manageneniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgde a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referi@dlbove present fairly, in all material respedtis,donsolidated financial position of
Landec Corporation and subsidiaries at May 25, 20itMay 26, 2013, and the consolidated resultsesf operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended Mag@%4, in conformity with U.S. generally acceptedaunting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsda the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blo@/nited States), Landec
Corporation’s internal control over financial refiog as of May 25, 2014, based on criteria estabtisn Internal Control-Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrtse Treadway Commission (1992 Framework) andeport dated August 1, 2014
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Francisco, California
August 1, 2014
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LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

ASSETS May 25, 2014 May 26, 2013
Current asset!

Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,24 $ 13,71¢
Marketable securities — 1,54¢

Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtfgbants of $516 and $583 at May 25, 2014 ar
May 26, 2013, respectively 44,42 36,42}
Accounts receivable, related party 304 31¢€
Income taxes receivable 2,00(C 5,10:
Inventories, net 24,73¢ 24,11
Deferred taxes 2,05¢ 1,58:
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3,17( 2,85¢
Total current assets 90,92¢ 85,66(
Investment in non-public company, non-fair value 79z 792
Investment in non-public company, fair value 39,60( 29,60(
Property and equipment, net 74,14( 65,81
Goodwill, net 49,62( 49,62(
Trademarks/ trade names, net 48,42¢ 48,42¢
Customer relationships, net 8,72( 9,60¢
Other assets 1,39¢ 1,424
Total Assets $ 313,620 $ 290,94:

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 31,98. $ 32,03:
Accounts payable, related party 134 22¢
Accrued compensation 4,09¢ 4,98¢
Other accrued liabilities 4,871 2,332
Deferred revenue 1,25¢ 1,24¢
Lines of credit — 4,00(
Current portion of long-term debt 6,05¢ 5,93:
Total current liabilities 48,39 50,75
Long-term debt 28,317 34,37:
Deferred taxes 30,13 24,05
Other non-current liabilities 2,021 1,34¢
Total liabilities 108,86 110,52¢

Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)

Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 50,000,000 shatbeazed; 26,815,253 and 26,402,247 she

issued and outstanding at May 25, 2014 and Map@83, respectively 27 26
Additional paid-in capital 131,48t 126,25¢
Retained earnings 71,554 52,40¢

Total stockholders’ equity 203,06 178,69:
Non-controlling interest 1,692 1,721
Total Equity 204,76 180,41
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 313,620 $ 290,94:

See accompanying notes.
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LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Product sales
Cost of product sales
Gross profit

Operating costs and expenses:
Research and development
Selling, general and administrative
Other operating expenses
Total operating costs and expenses

Operating income

Dividend income
Interest income

Interest expense

Other income

Net income before taxe
Income tax expense
Consolidated net income
Non-controlling interest

Net income and comprehensive income applicablenmnaeon stockholdet
Basic net income per share
Diluted net income per share
Shares used in per share computation:
Basic

Diluted

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
May 25, May 26, May 27,
2014 2013 2012
476,81 441,70¢ 317,55:
414,24¢ 378,94¢ 265,41
62,56¢ 62,76( 52,13¢
7,20¢ 9,29/ 9,62¢
35,17( 32,53: 26,51°¢
— (3,939 1,421
42,37« 37,89: 37,56
20,19( 24,86¢ 14,577
1,12¢ 1,12¢ 1,12¢
26C 17¢ 18C
(1,650 (2,009 (929)
10,00( 8,10( 5,331
29,92¢ 32,26¢ 20,28¢
(10,587 (9,452) (7,185
19,34: 22,81 13,09¢
(197 (225) (409
19,14t $ 2258 $ 12,69¢
0.7: $ 087 $ 0.4¢
071 $ 08t $ 0.4¢
26,62¢ 25,83( 25,84¢
27,12( 26,62¢ 26,12¢

See accompanying notes .
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Balance at May 29, 2011
Issuance of common stock at $2.55 tc
$6.95 per share, net of taxes paid by
Landec on behalf of employees
Issuance of common stock for vested
restricted stock units
Common stock repurchased on the o
market
Taxes paid by Company for stock swz
and RSUs
Stock-based compensation
Tax benefit from stock-based
compensation expense
Non-controlling interest
Payments to non-controlling interest
Net and comprehensive income
Balance at May 27, 2012
Issuance of common stock at $1.66 tc
$13.32 per share, net of taxes paid by
Landec on behalf of employees
Issuance of common stock for vested
restricted stock units
Taxes paid by Company for stock swz
and RSUs
Stock-based compensation
Tax benefit from stock-based
compensation expense
Non-controlling interest
Payments to non-controlling interest
Net and comprehensive income
Balance at May 26, 2013
Issuance of common stock at $5.63 tc
$13.32 per share, net of taxes paid by
Landec on behalf of employees
Issuance of common stock for vested
restricted stock units
Taxes paid by Company for stock swz
and RSUs
Stock-based compensation
Tax benefit from stock-based
compensation expense
Non-controlling interest
Payments to non-controlling interest
Net and comprehensive income
Balance at May 25, 2014

LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Additional Other Total Non-
Paid-in Comprehensive Stockholders’ controlling
Common Stock Retained

Shares Amount Capital  Earnings Loss Equity interest
26,405,79 $ 27 $ 119,16¢ $ 17,12¢ $ (267) $ 136,05 $ 1,671
72,57. — 61 — — 61 —
83,45 — — — — — —
(917,24, (1) (5,005 — — (5,006 —
— — (260) — — (260) —

— — 1,87: — — 1,87 —

_ — 4,057 — — 4,057 —

— — — — — — 40¢
— — — — — — (25¢)

— — — 12,69¢ 267 12,96! —
25,644,58 26 119,89: 29,82: — 149,74 1,81¢
597,53 — 3,41¢ — — 3,41¢ —
160,13( — — — — — —
— — (49 — — (49 —

— — 1,69t — — 1,69t —

— — 1,30z — — 1,30z —

— — — — — — 22t
— — — — — — (320

— — — 22,58’ — 22,58 —
26,402,24 26 126,25! 52,40¢ — 178,69: 1,721
372,85. 1 2,29i — — 2,29¢ —
40,15¢ — — — — — —
— — (345) — — (345) —

— — 1,35¢ — — 1,35¢ —

— — 1,927 — — 1,927 —

— — — — — — 197
— — — — — — (22¢)

_ — — 19,14¢ — 19,14¢ —
26,815,25 $ 27 $ 131,48( $ 7155 $ — % 203,06¢ $  1,69:

See accompanying notes

-50-






LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
May 25, May 26, May 27,
Cash flows from operating activities: 2014 2013 2012
Consolidated net income $ 19,34: $ 2281: $ 13,09¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 7,114 7,29¢ 5,621
Stock-based compensation expense 1,35¢ 1,69¢ 1,872
Deferred taxes 5,60t 6,511 3,28t
Change in investment in non-public company , faiue (10,000 (8,100 (5,839
Tax benefit from stock based compensation (1,927) (1,302) (4,057
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 32¢ 217 12
Earn out liability — (3,939 —
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effectsifacquisitions:
Accounts receivable, net (7,999 (4,127 (3,24¢)
Accounts receivable, related party 12 (349 13C
Income taxes receivable 5,02t (3,759 4,581
Inventories, net (622) (2,102 (441)
Issuance of notes and advances receivable (4,769 (4,179 (3,699
Collection of notes and advances receivable 4,481 4,17: 3,704
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (32 (27¢) 3,58¢
Accounts payable (50) 8,82¢ (5449
Accounts payable, related party (92) 10 47€
Accrued compensation 38 (799 2,701
Other accrued liabilities 3,211 (2,48¢) 3,43¢
Deferred revenue 6 1,08¢ (2,495
Net cash provided by operating activit 21,04¢ 21,23( 22,18
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (14,88¢) (8,877) (5,379
Acquisition of GreenLine (Note 2) — 4— (66,82¢)
Purchase of marketable securities (1,419 (4,959 (30,729
Proceeds from maturities of marketable securities 2,96% 3,414 31,10
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities — — 27,74
Net cash used in investing activit| (13,34) (10,429 (44,079
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repurchase of outstanding common stock — — (5,006
Proceeds from sale of common stock 2,29¢ 3,41¢€ 61
Taxes paid by Company for stock swaps and RSUs (1,277 (49) (260
Tax benefit from stock-based compensation expense 1,92z 1,30z 4,05
Earn out payment from Lifecore acquisition — (9,650 —
Net change in other assets/liabilities 31 712 (1,819
Proceeds from long term debt — — 31,81¢
Proceeds from lines of credit 9,50( — 12,76¢
Payments on long term debt (5,939 (7,012 (4,329
Payments on lines of credit (13,500 (7,666 (2,100
Payments to non-controlling interest. (226) (320 (25¢)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi (7,179 (19,26) 35,93¢
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 52t (8,459 14,04
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 13,71¢ 22,17 8,13t
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 14.24: $ 13,71¢  $ 22,17,
Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information:
Cash paid during the period for interest $ 150¢ $ 1,72¢  $ 952

Cash paid during the period for income taxes, hetfonds received $ 50 $ 560t $ 24¢€




See accompanying notes.
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LANDEC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization, Basis of Presentatioand Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Landeche “Company”) design, develop, manufacture aiddifferentiated products for
food and biomaterials markets and license techyddgglications to partners. The Company has twenetary polymer technology platforms:
1) Intelimer® polymers, and 2) hyaluronan (“HA™olpiolymers. The Company’s HA biopolymers are prdpriein that they are specially
formulated for specific customers to meet strigutatory requirements. The Company’s polymer tetdgies, along with its customer
relationships and trade names, are the foundatimha key differentiating advantage upon which leanols built its business. The Company
sells specialty packaged branded Eat Smart anchGreezand private label fresh-cut vegetables andlevproduce to retailers, club stores and
foodservice operators, primarily in the United 8satCanada and Asia through its Apio, Inc. (“Apistipsidiary and sells HA-based biomaterials
through its Lifecore Biomedical, Inc. (“Lifecoresubsidiary.

Basis of Presentation
Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are presamtéle accrual basis of accounting in accordariteWsS. generally accepted
accounting principles and include the accountsasfdec Corporation and its subsidiaries, Apio arfiedare. All material inter-company
transactions and balances have been eliminated.

Arrangements that are not controlled through votingimilar rights are reviewed under the guidafiocevariable interest entities
(“VIES"). A company is required to consolidate thesets, liabilities and operations of a VIE isitietermined to be the primary beneficiary of
the VIE.

An entity is a VIE and subject to consolidationhyf design: a) the total equity investment at isskot sufficient to permit the entity to
finance its activities without additional subordied financial support provided by any parties,tidahg equity holders or b) as a group the
holders of the equity investment at risk lack ang of the following three characteristics: (i) rewver, through voting rights or similar rights to
direct the activities of an entity that most sigrahtly impact the entity’s economic performandg tile obligation to absorb the expected losses
of the entity, or (iii) the right to receive thepected residual returns of the entity. The Compamiewed the consolidation guidance and
concluded that the partnership interest and eguigstment in non-public companies by the Compasynat VIES.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to pear financial statements to conform to the curyear presentation.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresplequires management to make
certain estimates and judgments that affect theuatsoeported in the financial statements and apaoiying notes. The accounting estimates
that require management’s most significant andesuiivje judgments include revenue recognition; sadasns and allowances; recognition and

measurement of current and deferred income taxsaagd liabilities; the assessment of recoverghilitong-lived assets; the valuation of
intangible assets and inventory; the valuatiomeéstments; and the valuation and recognitionafksbased compensation.
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentatioand Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (catinued)

These estimates involve the consideration of corfaletors and require management to make judgmeé&htsanalysis of historical and
future trends can require extended periods of toresolve and are subject to change from periguetind. The actual results may differ from
management’s estimates.

Concentrations of Risk

Cash and cash equivalents, marketable securitde® accounts receivable, grower advances and remteisable are financial
instruments that potentially subject the Compangaiacentrations of credit risk. Our Company polinyits, among other things, the amount of
credit exposure to any one issuer and to any qredy investment, other than securities issuediaranteed by the U.S. government. The
Company routinely assesses the financial strerfgthsiomers and growers and, as a consequenceyéethat trade receivables, grower
advances and notes receivable credit risk expastliraited. Credit losses for bad debt are provittedn the consolidated financial statements
through a charge to operations. A valuation allovesis provided for known and anticipated crediséss The recorded amounts for these
financial instruments approximate their fair value.

Several of the raw materials we use to manufacurgroducts are currently purchased from a sisglece, including some monomers
used to synthesize Intelimer polymers, substratemads for our breathable membrane products awdhwmaterials for our HA products.

The operations of Windset, in which the Companylga 20.1% minority investment, are predominambated in British Columbia
and Santa Maria, California. Routinely, the Compeawgluates the financial strength and ability fanééet to continue as a going concern.

During the fiscal year ended May 25, 2014, saleheadCompanys top five customers accounted for approximatefp 4 total revenu
with the top two customers from the Food Produetshfiology segment, Costco Wholesale CorporatioVéaldmart, Inc. accounting for
approximately 21% and 11%, respectively, of totalenues. In addition, approximately 29% of the Canyfs total revenues were derived from
product sales to international customers, nonehi¢twindividually accounted for more than 5% oBtaevenues. As of May 25, 2014, the top
two customers, Costco Wholesale Corporation andiéat, Inc. represented approximately 16% and I2&pectively, of total accounts
receivable.

During the fiscal year ended May 26, 2013, saleheadCompanys top five customers accounted for approximatef 40 total revenu
with the top two customers, Costco Wholesale Catiam and Wal-mart, Inc. from the Food Productshfetogy segment, accounting for
approximately 16% and 13%, respectively, of totalenues. In addition, approximately 30% of the Canyfs total revenues were derived from
product sales to international customers, nonehi¢twindividually accounted for more than 5% oBtaevenues. As of May 26, 2013, the top
two customers, Costco Wholesale Corporation andiéat, Inc. both represented approximately 15%tsl taccounts receivable.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long{ived assets are reviewed for impairment whenevenis or changes in circumstances indicate that¢herying amounts may n
be recoverable. Recoverability of assets is meddwyeomparison of the carrying amount of the astfte net undiscounted future cash flow
expected to be generated from the asset. If thedwindiscounted cash flows are not sufficienetmver the carrying value of the assets, the
assets’ carrying value is adjusted to fair valuge Tompany regularly evaluates its long-lived ask®tindicators of possible impairment.

Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments are primardynposed of marketable securities, commercial-teadet payables, grower
advances, notes receivable and debt instrumentshiea-term instruments, the historical carryimgoant approximates the fair value of the
instrument. The fair value of long-term debt ame$ of credit approximates their carrying valuer #alues for long-term financial instruments
not readily marketable are estimated based up@ouiged future cash flows at prevailing marketriegérates. Based on these assumptions,
management believes the fair market values o€ttrapanys financial instruments are not significantly diéfat from their recorded amounts
of May 25, 2014 and May 26, 2013.
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentatioand Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (catnued)

Accounts Receivable and Sales Returns and Allowanéar Doubtful Accounts

The Company carries its accounts receivable at theé amounts less an allowance for estimated saterns and doubtful accounts.
Sales return allowances are estimated based amib&tsales return amounts. Further, on a peribdgis, the Company evaluates its accounts
receivable and establishes an allowance for dolétftounts and estimated losses resulting fronmiddeility of its customers to make required
payments. The allowance for doubtful accounts isrdeined based on review of the overall conditibaaounts receivable balances and re\
of significant past due accounts. The allowancealfaubtful accounts is based on specific identiftwabf past due amounts and for accounts
90-days past due. The changes in the Company\waatice for sales returns and doubtful accountsiarerarized in the following table (in
thousands).

Additions from
acquisitions and
adjustments

Balance at charged to Balance at enc
beginning of revenue Write offs, net of of
period and expenses recoveries period
Year ended May 27, 2012 $ 34z % 24¢ % (78) $ 512
Year ended May 26, 2013 $ 51z % 10 $ 38 $ 58¢
Year ended May 25, 2014 $ 58t % 14 $ (210, $ 51€

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from product sales is recognized when thgrersuasive evidence that an arrangement etitltd)as transferred, the price is
fixed and determinable, and collectability is ressuy assured. Allowances are established for astidhuncollectible amounts, product returns,
and discounts based on specific identification faistbrical losses.

Apio’s Food Products Technology revenues genecalhsist of revenues generated from the sale ofapepackaged fresh-cut and
whole value-added processed vegetable productarthatenerally washed and packaged in our propyiptckaging and sold under Apio’s Eat
Smart and GreenLine brands and various privatddaBevenue is generally recognized upon shipmitese products to customers. The
Company takes title to all produce it trades anpmkages, and therefore, records revenues andfcgmies at gross amounts in the
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

In addition, Food Products Technology vahdded revenues include the revenues generateddipimCooling, LP, a vegetable cooli
operation in which Apio is the general partner witB0% ownership position and from the sale of Bi@&/ay packaging to license partners.
Revenue is recognized on the vegetable coolingatipes as cooling and storage services are provaedr customers. Sales of BreatheWay
packaging are recognized when shipped to our ciestom

Apio’s Food Export revenues consist of revenues geuefratm the purchase and sale of primarily whole eardity fruit and vegetab
products to Asia by Cal-Ex. As most Cal-Ex custasrage in countries outside of the U.S., title tfarssand revenue is generally recognized
upon arrival of the shipment in the foreign porpid\records revenue equal to the sale price td {arties because it takes title to the product
while in transit.

Our HA-based Biomaterials business principally gates revenue through the sale of products contaidiA. Lifecore primarily sells
products to customers in three medical areas: pht@Imic, which represented approximately 60%ité#dore’s revenues in fiscal year 2014,
(2) Orthopedic, which represented approximately 20%ifecore’s revenues in fiscal year 2014 and\(8jerinary/Other. The vast majority of
revenues from our HA-based Biomaterials businessearognized upon shipment.
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentatioand Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (catinued)

A small amount of revenues from our HA-based Bi@riats business is related to contract researcldandlopment (R&D) services
and multi-element arrangement services with custemeere we provide products and/or services inralled arrangement.

Contract revenue R&D is recorded as earned, bas#tegperformance requirements of the contract-féfundable contract fees for
which no further performance obligations exist, #mete is no continuing involvement by the Compag, recognized on the earlier of when
payments are received or when collection is assured

For sales arrangements that contain multiple elésndre Company splits the arrangement into separats of accounting if the individually
delivered elements have value to the customerstarelalone basis. The Company also evaluates whathiple transactions with the same
customer or related party should be consideredgbarimultiple element arrangement, whereby the o1 assesses, among other factors,
whether the contracts or agreements are negotiatexkcuted within a short time frame of each otiréf there are indicators that the contracts
are negotiated in contemplation of each other.Chmpany then allocates revenue to each elemend loaise selling price hierarchy. The
relative selling price for a deliverable is basedts vendor-specific objective evidence (VSOERpu&ilable, third-party evidence (TPE), if
VSOE is not available, or estimated selling pritagither VSOE nor TPE is available. The Compdmntrecognizes revenue on each
deliverable in accordance with its policies forguot and service revenue recognition. The Compsinpi typically able to determine VSOE or
TPE, and therefore, uses estimated selling prawafidcate revenue between the elements of theagenaent.

The Company limits the amount of revenue recognitoy delivered elements to the amount that iscootingent on the future delivery
of products or services or future performance @ians or subject to customer-specific cancellatights. The Company evaluates each
deliverable in an arrangement to determine whetter represent separate units of accounting. Arglelble constitutes a separate unit of
accounting when it has stand-alone value, andrf@reangement that includes a general right ofmetelative to the delivered products or
services, delivery or performance of the undelisigyduct or service is considered probable asdlistantially controlled by the Company. "
Company considers a deliverable to have stand-alalue if the product or service is sold separabglyhe Company or another vendor or could
be resold by the customer. Further, the revenamgements generally do not include a general afjtgturn relative to the delivered products.
Where the aforementioned criteria for a separaiteofiaccounting are not met, the deliverable ismbmed with the undelivered element(s) and
treated as a single unit of accounting for the psieg of allocation of the arrangement considerati@hrevenue recognition. The Company
allocates the total arrangement consideration ¢h saparable element of an arrangement based bhpwoalative selling price of each element.
Allocation of the consideration is determined ahagement inception on the basis of each unitatiked selling price. In instances where the
Company has not established fair value for any liveted element, revenue for all elements is defieumtil delivery of the final element is
completed and all recognition criteria are met.

Licensing revenue is recognized in accordance grighvailing accounting guidance. Initial licenseseee deferred and amortized to
revenue over the period of the agreement when azdrexists, the fee is fixed and determinablé, @llectability is reasonably assured.
Noncancellable, nonrefundable license fees arggrézed over the period of the agreement, includitoge governing research and developr
activities and any related supply agreement entetecconcurrently with the license when the riskaciated with commercialization of a
product is non-substantive at the outset of thengement.

From time to time, the Company offers customersssaicentives, which include volume rebates ancbdists. These amounts are
estimated on a quarterly basis and recorded aduatien of revenue.
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentatioand Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (catinued)

A summary of revenues by type of revenue arrangeasdescribed above is as follows (in thousands):

Year ended Year ended
May 25,201 4 May 26 , 201 3
Recorded upon shipment $ 398,93t $ 359,51t
Recorded upon acceptance in foreign port 69,71( 78,44:
Revenue from license fees, R&D contracts and ri@gfirofit sharing 1,35¢ 1,97¢
Revenue from multiple element arrangements 6,811 1,77
Total $ 476,810 $ 441,70t

Shipping and Handling Costs

Amounts billed to thirdparty customers for shipping and handling are thetlias a component of revenues. Shipping and ingneiists
incurred are included as a component of cost alymts sold and represent costs incurred to shigystdrom the sourcing locations to the end
consumer markets.

Other Accounting Policies and Disclosures
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company records all highly liquid securitieshathree months or less from date of purchase tornityaas cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents consist mainly of certificate of dep®$CDs), money market funds and U.S. Treasuriks.riarket value of cash equivalents
approximates their historical cost given their stterm nature.

Marketable Securities

Short-term marketable securities consist of CDsdha FDIC insured and single A or better rateghomate and municipal bonds with
original maturities of more than three months atdhate of purchase regardless of the maturity d&ge Company classifies all debt securities
with readily determinable market values as “avédldbr sale” as the Company views the funds wittsrportfolio as available for use in its
current operationsThe aggregate amount of CDs included in marketsdxterities as of May 25, 2014 and May 26, 2013 2eas and $701,00
respectively. The contractual maturities of the @any's marketable securities that are due in kessane year represent zero and $1.3 million
of its marketable securities and those due in orie/d years represent zero and $251,000 of the @oy’p marketable securities as of May 25,
2014 and May 26, 2013, respectively. Investmentaanketable securities are carried at fair markéieswith unrealized gains and losses
reported as other income. The cost of debt seesiiii adjusted for amortization of premiums andalists to maturity. This amortization is
recorded to interest income. Realized gains argkben the sale of available for sale securitiesiso recorded to interest income and were not
significant for the fiscal years ended May 25, 2@hd May 26, 2013. During fiscal years 2014 and32€ie Company did not sell any
marketable securities. The cost of securities sotdhsed on the specific identification method.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (ufiegfirst-in, first-out method) or market. As of Wa5, 2014 and May 26, 2013
inventories consisted of (in thousands):

May 25, May 26,
2014 2013
Finished goods $ 11,11: $ 11,297
Raw materials 10,37¢ 9,29(
Work in progress 3,24¢ 3,52¢
Inventories, net $ 24738 $ 24,11
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentatioand Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (catinued)

If the cost of the inventories exceeds their nalizable value, provisions are recorded curremtlyetuce them to net realizable value.
The Company also provides a provision for slow mgwand obsolete inventories based on the estinfiateneand for its products.

Advertising Expense

Advertising expenditures for the Company are expérss incurred. Advertising expense for the Compganfiscal years 2014, 2013
and 2012 was $447,000, $445,000 and $406,000,atsgg.

Notes and Advances Receivable

Apio issues notes and makes advances to produeegor their crop and harvesting costs prim&olythe purpose of sourcing crops
for Apio's business. Notes receivable and advaakeegenerally recovered during the growing seéless than one year) using proceeds from
the crops sold to Apio. Notes are interest beaoiviggations, evidenced by contracts and notesvabke. These notes and advances receivable
are secured by perfected liens on crops, have tirabsange from three to nine months, and arevesd at least quarterly for collectability. A
reserve is established for any note or advance eé¢éomnot be fully collectible based upon an edned the crop value or the fair value of the
security for the note or advance. There were nesor advances outstanding at May 25, 2014.

Related Party Transactions

The Company sold products to and earned licenseffes Windset Holding 2010 Ltd., a Canadian coagion (“Windset”) during
fiscal year 2014. The Company also provided coading distribution services to Beachside Produce ['Beachside"), a commodity produce
distributor, in which the Chairman of Apio had anféng and ownership interest, until May 26, 201Buring fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012,
the Company recognized related party revenues@s $80, $2.5 million, and $3.8 million, respectixelhich have been included in product
sales in the accompanying Consolidated Statemé&@sraprehensive Income, from the sale of produetsroviding cooling services to these
parties. As a result of Beachside no longer beirgjaded party beginning in fiscal year 2014, tBel$nillion and $3.1 million of service
revenue, related party for fiscal years 2013 ariP2@espectively, have been reclassified to prosalets in the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income. The relatesivadale balances of $304,000 and $316,000 from Béndre included in accounts
receivable, related party in the accompanying Clistetied Balance Sheets as of May 25, 2014 and Mag@13, respectively.

Additionally, unrelated to the revenue transactiabsve, the Company purchases produce from Beachsiti Windset for sale to third
parties. During fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012 Gompany recognized related party cost of proshiess of $1.6 million, $6.7 million and
$5.6 million, respectively, in the accompanying €didated Statements of Comprehensive Income, frensale of products purchased from
these parties. The related accounts payable of, $284nd $225,000 from Windset are included in aotopayable, related party in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets as of28a2014 and May 26, 2013, respectively.

All related party transactions are monitored qurtey the Company and approved by the Audit Corteribf the Board of Directors.
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Expgadifor major improvements are capitalized wtelgairs and maintenance are
charged to expense. Depreciation is expensed taighg-line basis over the estimated useful ligkthe respective assets, generally three to
forty years for buildings and leasehold improversatd three to twenty years for furniture and fi@s) computers, capitalized software,

capitalized leases, machinery, equipment and auéasehold improvements are amortized on a stréiighbasis over the lesser of the econc
life of the improvement or the life of the lease.
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentatioand Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (catinued)

The Company capitalizes software development dosisternal use in accordance with accounting gna®. Capitalization of softwa
development costs begins in the application devetop stage and ends when the asset is placeceinioces The Company amortizes such costs
using the straight-line basis over estimated udife of three to seven years. During fiscal y&@t4, the Company capitalized $913,000 in
software development costs. During fiscal years32fid 2012, the Company did not capitalize anynso# development costs.

Change in D epreciable L ives of P roperty and E gpment

In accordance with its policy, the Company revighes estimated useful lives of its fixed assetsmoregoing basis. This review
primarily indicated that the actual lives of centduildings and machinery and equipment at its ggeing facilities were longer than the
estimated useful lives used for depreciation puepas the Company’s financial statements. As atiesffiective November 25, 2013, the
Company changed its estimates of the useful lifés duildings and machinery and equipment todretflect the estimated periods during
which these assets will remain in service. The Camgfs buildings that previously averaged 29 yeagsawncreased to an average of 35 years.
The Company’s machinery and equipment that prelyjcuseraged 7 years were increased to an averatie ygars. The effect of this change in
estimate for the six months ended May 25, 2014twaecrease depreciation expense by $876,000 asemret income by $564,000, and
increase basic and diluted earnings per share 92 $0

Long-Lived Assets

The Company’s Long-Lived Assets consist of propgstsint and equipment, and intangible assets. gittéassets are comprised of
customer relationships with an estimated usefeldiftwelve to thirteen years (the “finite-livedangible assets”) and trademarks/trade names
and goodwill with indefinite lives (collectivelytlie indefinite-lived intangible assets”), which Bempany recognized in accordance with
accounting guidance (i) upon the acquisition ofé@ateéne Holding Company (“GreenLine”) by Apio in Ap2012, (ii) upon the acquisition of
Lifecore in April 2010 and (iii) upon the acquisiti of Apio in December 1999. Accounting guidanciénds goodwill as “the excess of the cost
of an acquired entity over the net of the estiméédvalues of the assets acquired and the lt@slassumed at date of acquisition.” All
intangible assets, including goodwill, associatéith the acquisition of Lifecore was allocated te thA-based Biomaterials reporting unit and
the acquisitions of Apio and GreenLine were alledab the Food Products Technology reporting umispant to accounting guidance based
upon the allocation of assets and liabilities agiand consideration paid for each reporting éstof May 25, 2014, the HA-based
Biomaterials reporting unit had $13.9 million ofagtwill and the Food Products Technology reporting bad $35.7 million of goodwiill.

Property, plant and equipment and finite-lived mgfible assets are reviewed for possible impairmén@never events or changes in
circumstances occur that indicate that the carrgimgunt of an asset (or asset group) may not loweeable. The Comparg/impairment revie
requires significant management judgment includisigmating the future success of product linesirusales volumes, revenue and expense
growth rates, alternative uses for the assets stimdated proceeds from the disposal of the asEeesCompany conducts quarterly reviews of
idle and underutilized equipment, and reviews bessrplans for possible impairment indicators. Immpant is indicated when the carrying
amount of the asset (or asset group) exceeddiitsa¢sd future undiscounted cash flows and the impant is viewed as other than temporary.
When impairment is indicated, an impairment chasgecorded for the difference between the asbetX value and its estimated fair value.
Depending on the asset, estimated fair value maletemined either by use of a discounted cash fitmael or by reference to estimated selling
values of assets in similar condition. The useifdéigznt assumptions would increase or decreasedtimated fair value of assets and would
increase or decrease any impairment measurement.

The Company tests its indefinite-lived intangibdsets for impairment at least annually, in accardamith accounting guidance. For
non-goodwill indefinite-lived intangible assetse tGompany performs a qualitative analysis in acoed with ASC 350-30-35. For goodwill,
the Company performs a quantitative analysis im@atance with ASC 350-20-35.

Application of the impairment tests for indefinlteed intangible assets requires significant judghi®y management, including
identification of reporting units, assignment ofets and liabilities to reporting units, assignnmadrnihtangible assets to reporting units, and the
determination of the fair value of each indefiriteed intangible asset and reporting unit basedchypojections of future net cash flows, discc
rates and market multiples, which judgments angeptions are inherently uncertain.

During the fiscal quarter ended February 23, 2€@i& Company voluntarily changed the date of itsuahgoodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible assets impairment testing from the diast of the fiscal month in July to the first daytioé fiscal fourth quarter. This voluntary change
is preferable under the circumstances as it previde Company with additional time to completaitaual goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible asset impairment testing in advancésofear-end reporting and results in better alignméth the Company’s strategic planning and
forecasting process. The voluntary change in adaoyprinciple related to the annual testing dailéwot delay, accelerate, or avoid an
impairment charge. This change is not applied spiotively as it is impracticable to do so becaag®spective application would require
application of significant estimates and assumgtioith the use of hindsight. Accordingly, the chamgll be applied prospectively.
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The Company tested its indefinite-lived intangia$esets for impairment as of February 24, 2014 atetichined that no adjustments to
the carrying values of these assets were neceasanfythat date. On a quarterly basis, the Compangiders the need to update its most recent
annual tests for possible impairment of its indégifived intangible assets, based on managemassassment of changes in its business and
other economic factors since the most recent areuadliation. Such changes, if significant or matedould indicate a need to update the most
recent annual tests for impairment of the indeditived intangible assets during the current peridee results of these tests could lead to write-
downs of the carrying values of these assets icthent period.

The Company uses the discounted cash flow (“DCpfreach to develop an estimate of fair value fardyaill. The DCF approach
recognizes that current value is premised on tphe&®rd receipt of future economic benefits. Indicest of value are developed by discounting
projected future net cash flows to their presehievat a rate that reflects both the current retequirements of the market and the risks inherent
in the specific investment. The market approactoisused to value the Company’s reporting unit@bee insufficient market comparables exist
to enable the Company to develop a reasonabledhie due to the unique nature of each of the Cogipaeporting units.

The DCF associated with the annual goodwill impaintranalysis for the Food Products Technology témpunit is based on
management’s five-year projection of revenues,gposfits and operating profits by fiscal year asdumes a 36% effective tax rate for each
year. Management takes into account the histatieatls of the Food Products Technology reportingamd the industry categories in whicl
operates along with inflationary factors, currecreomic conditions, new product introductions, afstales, operating expenses, capital
requirements and other relevant data when devedatsprojection. The estimated fair value of tlee& Products Technology reporting unit as
of February 24, 2014 was 136% of its book valubat date, therefore, no goodwill impairment wasrded to exist. For the test performed a
July 21, 2013, the projected cash flow from operatifor determining the DCF for fiscal year 2014Wa0.1 million for the Food Products
Technology reporting unit. The actual cash flownfroperations for fiscal year 2014 was $10.5 million

The DCF associated with the annual goodwill impaimiranalysis for the HA-based Biomaterials repgrtinit is based on
management’s five-year projections of revenuessgpuofits and operating profits by fiscal year asdumes a 36% effective tax rate for each
year. Management takes into account the histotieatls of H/-based Biomaterials reporting unit and the indussitegories in which it operat
along with inflationary factors, current economanditions, new product introductions, cost of satgrerating expenses, capital requirements
and other relevant data when developing its prigiecThe estimated fair value of the HA-based Biterials reporting unit as of February 24,
2014 was 176% of its book value at that date, thezeno goodwill impairment was deemed to exist. fhe test performed as of July 21, 2013,
the projected cash flow from operations for detaing the DCF for fiscal year 2014 was $6.3 millfonthe HA-based Biomaterials reporting
unit. The actual cash flow from operations for dilsgear 2014 was $10.2 million. The difference ®fSmillion is primarily due to timing of
working capital changes and lower than planneddntapany charges for income taxes.

Investment in Non-Public Company

The Company'’s investment in Aesthetic Science tisgerhat cost and adjusted for impairment lossegehere is no readily available
market value information, the Company periodicadlyiews this investment to determine if an othanttemporary decline in value has occu
based on the financial stability and viability oégthetic Science.

Aesthetic Science sold the rights to its Smartfllijéctor System on July 16, 2010. As a result, leanelvaluated its cost method
investment for impairment, utilizing a discountextks flow analysis. Based on the terms of the ageagrthe Company determined that its
investment was other than temporarily impaired thedefore, recorded an impairment loss of $1.0ionilin fiscal year 2010. The Company’s
carrying value of its investment in Aesthetic Sciesy net of the impairment loss, is $793,000 at R&y2014 and May 26, 2013, and reported as
an investment in non-public company, non-fair valnghe accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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On February 15, 2011, the Company made an investm&indset which is reported as an investmemdn-public company, fair
value, in the accompanying Consolidated BalancetShas of May 25, 2014 and May 26, 2013. The Cogpas elected to account for its
investment in Windset under the fair value optisee( Note 4).

Partial Self-Insurance on Employee Health Plan

The Company provides health insurance benefitidibke employees under a self-insured plan whettbleyCompany pays actual
medical claims subject to certain stop loss limitse Company records self-insurance liabilitiesellasn actual claims filed and an estimate of
those claims incurred but not reported. Any pragecof losses concerning the Company's liabilitgubject to a high degree of variability.
Among the causes of this variability are unprediltaxternal factors such as inflation rates, cbang severity, benefit level changes, medical
costs, and claims settlement patterns. This selfrance liability is included in accrued liabilgiand represents management's best estimate of
the amounts that have not been paid as of May@54.4t is reasonably possible that the expens€tmpany ultimately incurs could differ and
adjustments to future reserves may be necessary.

Deferred Revenue

Cash received in advance of services performecdeameded as deferred revenue. At May 25, 2014, gidlldn was recognized as
advances from customers. At May 26, 2013, $1.2anillvas recognized as advances from customers.

Non-Controlling Interest

The Company reports all non-controlling interesta aeparate component of stockholders’ equity.ibimecontrolling interest’s share
of the income or loss of the consolidated subsjdgreported as a separate line item in our Canesteld Statements of Comprehensive Income,
following the consolidated net income caption.

In connection with the acquisition of Apio, Landsmuired Apio’s 60% general partner interest incApboling, a California limited
partnership. Apio Cooling is included in the comdaled financial statements of Landec for all pgsipresented. The non-controlling interest
balance of $1.7 million at both May 25, 2014 andyN2&, 2013 is comprised of the non-controlling tiei partners’ interest in Apio Cooling.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeaccounting guidance which requires that defiétax assets and liabilities
recognized using enacted tax rates for the effeenoporary differences between the book and taishaf recorded assets and liabilities. The
Company maintains valuation allowances when ikidy that all or a portion of a deferred tax ass#itnot be realized. Changes in valuation
allowances from period to period are included m @ompany’s income tax provision in the periodimdirnge. In determining whether a valuation
allowance is warranted, the Company takes intowttcsuch factors as prior earnings history, expkfitire earnings, unsettled circumstances
that, if unfavorably resolved, would adversely effetilization of a deferred tax asset, carrybactt @earryforward periods, and tax strategies that
could potentially enhance the likelihood of rediiaa of a deferred tax asset. At May 25, 2014,Goenpany had an $881,000 valuation
allowance against its deferred tax assets.

In addition to valuation allowances, the Compartpldsshes accruals for uncertain tax positions. fBixecontingency accruals are
adjusted in light of changing facts and circumstansuch as the progress of tax audits, case ldwraerging legislation. The Company
recognizes interest and penalties related to uaioex positions as a component of income tax res@eThe Company’s effective tax rate
includes the impact of tax-contingency accrualsassidered appropriate by management.
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1. Organization, Basis of Presentatioand Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (aatinued)

A number of years may elapse before a particuldaremdor which the Company has accrued, is auditatifinally resolved. The
number of years with open tax audits varies bysgliction. While it is often difficult to predict éhfinal outcome or the timing of resolution of
any particular tax matter, the Company believetaitscontingency accruals are adequate to addressrktax contingencies. Favorable
resolution of such matters could be recognizedrasglaction to the Company’s effective tax ratehia year of resolution. Unfavorable settlement
of any particular issue could increase the effectax rate. Any resolution of a tax issue may nexjthie use of cash in the year of resolution. The
Company’s tax-contingency accruals are recordexhiar accrued liabilities in the accompanying Cdidated Balance Sheets.

Per Share Information

Accounting guidance requires the presentation sickend diluted earnings per share. Basic earmiagshare excludes any dilutive
effects of options, warrants and convertible s¢i@sriand is computed using the weighted averagédaunf common shares outstanding. Dilt
earnings per share reflect the potential dilutistif decurities or other contracts to issue comstook were exercised or converted into common
stock. Diluted common equivalent shares consistadk options and restricted stock units, calcdlatgng the treasury stock method.

The following table sets forth the computation ifitéd net income per share (in thousands, excepsipare amounts):

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended Ended Ended
May 25, 2014 May 26, 2013 May 27, 2012

Numerator:
Net income applicable to Common Stockholc $ 19,14t $ 22,58" $ 12,69¢
Denominator:

Weighted average shares for basic net income pee sh 26,62¢ 25,83( 25,84¢
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options and restricted stock units 492 79¢€ 271
Weighted average shares for diluted net incomesipare 27,12( 26,62¢ 26,12¢
Diluted net income per share $ 071 $ 0.8t $ 0.4¢

Options to purchase 333,993, 88,022 and 1,855 A&&s of Common Stock at a weighted average erguaise of $14.15, $12.80 and
$6.72 per share were outstanding during fiscalsyeaded May 25, 2014, May 26, 2013 and May 27, 2@kpectively, but were not included in
the computation of diluted net income per shar@bge the options’ exercise price were greaterttheaverage market price of the Common
Stock and, therefore, their inclusion would bedihtiive.

Cost of Sales

The Company includes in cost of sales all the amdéted to the sale of products. These costsdedhe following: raw materials
(including produce, seeds, packaging, syringedamaentation and purification supplies), directdgloverhead (including indirect labor,
depreciation, and facility related costs) and sinigand shipping related costs.

Research and Development Expenses

Costs related to both research and developmentaadsitand Company-funded research is includedsiwareh and development
expenses. Research and development costs areipriomanprised of salaries and related benefitsplap, travel expenses, consulting expenses
and corporate allocations.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

The Company records compensation expense for flasid awards issued to employees and directorslivaege for services provid
based on the estimated fair value of the awardb&ingrant dates and is recognized over the redigervice periods (generally the vesting
period). For nonstatutory options, the cash floegilting from the tax benefit due to tax deductimnsxcess of the compensation expense
recognized for those options (excess tax beneétrkassified as financing activities within thatsment of cash flows. The Company’s stock-
based awards include stock option grants and cesdrstock unit awards (“RSUs”).
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The following table summarizes the stock-based @msation for options and RSUs (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended Ended Ended
May 25, 2014 May 26, 2013 May 27, 2012
Options $ 55¢ $ 78¢ $ 1,04¢
RSUs 79¢ 907 82€
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 1,35¢ $ 169t $ 1,87

The following table summarizes the stock-based @rsation by income statement line item (in thousand

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Ended Ended Ended
May 25, 2014 May 26, 2013 May 27, 2012
Research and development $ 39 $ 71 $ 53C
Sales, general and administrative 1,315 971 1,34
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 1,35¢ $ 1,69t $ 1,872

The estimated fair value for stock options, whietedmines the Company’s calculation of compensatigense, is based on the Black-
Scholes option pricing model. RSUs are valuedattbsing market price of the Company’s commonistacthe date of grant. The Company
uses the straight line single option method toutate and recognize the fair value of stock-bassdpensation arrangements. In addition, the
Company uses historical data to estimate pre-\g#tirieitures and records stock-based compensatipanse only for those awards that are
expected to vest and revises those estimates gegqubnt periods if the actual forfeitures diffemfrthe prior estimates.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model requiresitipait of highly subjective assumptions, includthg expected stock price volatility
and expected life of option awards, which havegaitant impact on the fair value estimates. AMaly 25, 2014, May 26, 2013 and May 27,
2012, the fair value of stock option grants wasrestd using the following weighted average assiongt

Fiscal Year Endec Fiscal Year Endec Fiscal Year Endec

May 25, 2014 May 26, 2013 May 27, 2012
Expected life (in years) 3.50 3.76 3.76
Risk-free interest rate 0.71% 0.48% 0.59%
Volatility 0.41 0.53 0.53
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

The weighted average estimated fair value of Lamaegloyee stock options granted at grant date markees during the fiscal years
ended May 25, 2014, May 26, 2013 avdy 27, 2012 was $4.41, $3.57 and $2.65 per shespectively. No stock options were granted abo
below grant date market prices during the fiscaryeended May 25, 2014, May 26, 2013 and May 27220

Fair Value Measurements
The Company uses fair value measurement accouiatirignancial assets and liabilities and for finemdénstruments and certain other

items measured at fair value. The Company haseelebe fair value option for its investment in afpublic company (see Note 4). The
Company has not elected the fair value option fgraf its other eligible financial assets or lidtiss.
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The accounting guidance established a three-teatihy for fair value measurements, which pripesithe
inputs used in measuring fair value as follows:

Level 1 — observable inputs such as quoted prameisléntical instruments in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices in aathagkets that are observable either directly oiréudly through corroboration with
observable market data.

Level 3 — unobservable inputs in which there ttelior no market data, which would require the Canypto develop its own
assumptions.

As of May 25, 2014, the Company held certain asmadsliabilities that are required to be measutddiavalue on a recurring basis,
including cash equivalents, marketable securitigsrest rate swap and its minority interest inmestt in Windset.

The fair value of the Company’s marketable se@siis determined based on observable inputs teatadily available in public
markets or can be derived from information avaéahlpublicly quoted markets. Therefore, the Conyd@as categorized its marketable
securities as a Level 1 measurement.

The fair value of the Company’s interest rate sigagetermined based on model inputs that can beredd in a liquid market,
including yield curves, and is categorized as ael@umeasurement.

The Company has elected the fair value option obawting for its investment in Windset. The caltiola of fair value utilizes
significant unobservable inputs in the discountashcflow models, including projected cash flowsyvgh rates and discount rates. As a result,
the Company’s investment in Windset is consideodokta Level 3 measurement investment. The chantpe ifair market value of the
Company'’s investment in Windset for the fiscal yeanded May 25, 2014 and May 26, 2013 was duest@€timpany’s 20.1% minority interest
in the change in the fair market value of Windseiry those periods. In determining the fair vadfi¢he investment in Windset, the Company
utilizes the following significant unobservable g in the discounted cash flow models:

At May 25, 201. At May 26, 201,
IAnnual consolidated revenue growth rates 4% 3% to (%
IAnnual consolidated expense growth rates 4% 3% to &4
Consolidated income tax rates 15% 15%
Consolidated discount rates 16% to 2:% 18% to 2%

The revenue growth, expense growth and incomeataxassumptions, consider the Company's best éstohthe trends in those ite
over the discount period. The discount rate apsiomtakes into account the risk-free rate of metthe market equity risk premium and the
company’s specific risk premium and then applieadditional discount for lack of liquidity of thenderlying securities. The discounted cash
flow valuation model used by the Company has teviing sensitivity to changes in inputs and asstioms (in thousands):

Impact on value ¢

Windset investment as

May 25, 201

10% increase in revenue growth rates $ 3,20(
10% increase in expense growth rates $ (2,300
10% increase in income tax rates —
10% increase in discount rates $ (1,500

Imprecision in estimating unobservable market inmain affect the amount of gain or loss recorded foarticular position. The use of
different methodologies or assumptions to deterrthieefair value of certain financial instrumentsikcbresult in a different estimate of fair value

at the reporting date.
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The following table summarizes the fair value & ompany’s assets and liabilities that are medsatr&ir value on a recurring basis,
as of May 25, 2014 and May 26, 2013 (in thousands):

Fair Value at May 25, 2014 Fair Value at May 26, 2013
Assets: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Marketable securities $ - 8 - $ - 8 154t $ - $ =
Investment in private company - - 39,60( - - 29,60(
Total $ - $ - 9 39,60( $ 154t $ - 9 29,60(
Liabilities:
Interest rate swap - 44 - - 163 -
Total $ - $ 44 $ - $ - $ 162 $ -

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Revenue Recognition

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standardade (“ASU”) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contractthwv@ustomers (Topic
606) ("ASU 2014-09"), which outlines a single coetpensive model for entities to use in accountimgdoenue arising from contracts with
customers and supersedes most current revenueniggogyuidance, including industry-specific guidan The standard requires entities to
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of prothigeods or services to customers in an amountefiatts the consideration to which the er
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goodgrvices. The new guidance also includes a dahsst of disclosure requirements intended
to provide users of financial statements with caghpnsive information about the nature, amountntimand uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from a company'’s contracts with casérs. ASU 2014-09 will be effective beginning tivstfquarter of the Company's fiscal year
2018 and early application is not permitted. Tlagard allows for either “full retrospective” adiopt, meaning the standard is applied to all of
the periods presented, or “modified retrospecta@dption, meaning the standard is applied onljhéotost current period presented in the
financial statements. Management is currently eatalg the effect ASU 2014-09 will have on the Comypa Consolidated Financial Statements
and disclosures.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-11, Presiemtaf an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net @pieg Loss Carryforward, a
Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Esgjgelated to the presentation of unrecognizedbéaefits. The update requires presentation
of an unrecognized tax benefit, or a portion ofiarecognized tax benefit, as a reduction to a dedetax asset for a net operating loss
carryforward or a tax credit carryforward in thatstment of financial position. The guidance dodsapply to the extent that a net operating loss
carryforward or tax credit carryforward at the rep date is not available under the tax law &f #pplicable jurisdiction to settle any additio
income taxes that would result from the disalloveaota tax position. The guidance is effectiveffetal years (and interim periods within those
years) beginning after December 15, 2013, withyesatbption permitted. The Company early adoptesigtandard in the first fiscal quarter
fiscal year 2014 and such adoption did not hasigrificant impact on the Company's Consolidatewhfcial Statements or disclosures.

2. Acquisitions
GreenLine Holding Company

On April 23, 2012 (the “GreenLine Acquisition DateApio acquired all of the outstanding equity ae@nLine under a Stock Purchase
Agreement (the “GreenLine Purchase Agreement”ydtento expand its product offerings and enter imdev markets such as foodservice.
GreenLine, headquartered in Bowling Green, Ohic avarivately-held company and is the leading msaeand marketer of value-added,
fresh-cut green beans in North America. GreenLaefbur processing and distribution plants one @€rio, Pennsylvania, Florida and
California and distribution centers in New York &duth Carolina.
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2. Acquisitions (continued)

Under the GreenLine Purchase Agreement, the aggregasideration paid at closing consisted of $&&IBon in cash. In addition, th
GreenLine Purchase Agreement included a potergral @ut payment up to $7.0 million in the evert tBreenLine achieved certain revenue
targets during calendar year 2012. The earn outeaprised of $4.0 million for achieving a certaeéivenue target during calendar year 2012,
and up to an additional $3.0 million for exceedihg revenue target by $3.0 million or more. In ARfi12, the Company performed an analysis
of projected revenues for GreenLine and concludeidad time that it was probable that GreenLine Mfoneet, but not exceed, the initial reve
target and therefore, the Company recorded a $#i®@miiability as of May 27, 2012, representirfgetpresent value of the expected earn out
payment. As a result of the severe drought in tieMdst during 2012, lower than expected resulmfrew product launches and new planned
business not being realized, during the secondeuai fiscal year 2013, the Company determinet @raenLine did not achieve the earn out
revenue target. As a result, the Company reverse82.9 million liability recorded for the earn @utd recorded a corresponding credit to other
operating expenses in its Consolidated Statemém@smprehensive Income for fiscal year 2013.

The operating results of GreenLine are includeithinCompany’s financial statements beginning A?8il 2012, in the Food Products
Technology operating segment. Included in the Campsaresults for the fiscal year 2012 was $9.1iomillof GreenLine’s net sales.

Intangible Assets

The Company identified two intangible assets inngmtion with the GreenLine acquisition: trade naames trademarks valued at $36.0
million, which are considered to be indefinite ldssets and therefore, will not be amortized; arstioener base valued at $7.5 million with a
thirteen year useful life. The trade name/tradenradngible asset was valued using the relief frogalty valuation method and the customer
relationship intangible asset was valued usingitbiibutor method.

Goodwill

The excess of the consideration transferred owefdin values assigned to the assets acquiredaitities assumed was $13.2 million
on the closing date, which represents the goodwilbunt resulting from the acquisition which caratiebutable to GreenLine’s long history,
future prospects and the expected operating syesefiggm combining GreenLine with Apio’s fresh-cugjue-added vegetable business. None of
the goodwill is expected to lmeductible for income tax purposes. The Companitest goodwill for impairment on an annual basisaoner, i
indicators of impairment are present.

Acquisition-Related Transaction Costs

The Company recognized $1.4 million of acquisitiefated expenses that were expensed in the yeadéay 27, 2012 and are
included in other operating expenses in the Codatddd Statements of Comprehensive Income for thegrded May 27, 2012. These expenses
included investment banker fees, legal, accourgimdjtax service fees and appraisals fees.

3. Sale of Landec Ag

On June 24, 2012, Landec entered into a stock paecagreement and two licensing agreements (sebiNutith INCOTEC® Coating
and Seed Technology Companies (“INCOTEC"), a leqgirovider of seed and coating technology prodactsservices to the seed industry.

In the stock purchase agreement, Landec sold iisyeigterest in its seed subsidiary, Landec Ag L.E&CINCOTEC for $600,000,
which resulted in a gain of $400,000. Under acdogrguidance, because the stock purchase agreevasrgntered into at the same time the
license agreements were consummated (a multipleegieagreement), a portion of the gain, or $30Q,886 been deferred and will be
recognized as revenue monthly from the sale datetbe seven year life of the Pollinator Plus®rise agreement (see Note 5). The remaining
$100,000 of the gain was recognized during the diusirter of fiscal year 2013.
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4. Investment s in non-public comparse

In December 2005, Landec entered into a licensimgeament with Aesthetic Sciences for the excluggfets to use Landec's Intelimer
materials technology for the development of derfillats worldwide under the agreement. The Compatgived shares of preferred stock in
exchange for the license with a valuation of $1lilian. Aesthetic Sciences sold the rights to iteeBtfil Injector System on July 16, 2010.
Landec has evaluated its investment in Aestheiien8es for impairment, utilizing a discounted cHistv analysis under the terms of the
purchase agreement. Based on the terms of thelsal€ompany determined that its investment wasrdttan temporarily impaired and
therefore, recorded an impairment charge of $11Bomin fiscal year 2010. The Company’s carryirgjue of its investment in Aesthetic
Sciences is $793,000 as of May 25, 2014 and Ma2@83. No additional impairment has been determfaethe Company’s investment in
Aesthetic Sciences.

On February 15, 2011, Apio entered into a sharelase agreement (the “Windset Purchase Agreemeitti’\Windset. Pursuant to the
Windset Purchase Agreement, Apio purchased 15G;60i@r preferred shares for $15 million and 201 mom shares for $201 that were issued
by Windset (the “Purchased Shares”). The Compaggrsmon shares represent a 20.1% interest in Wint@lsetnon-voting senior
preferred shares yield a cash dividend of 7.5% allyTrhe dividend is payable within 90 days ofleaoniversary of the execution of the
Windset Purchase Agreement, the first three divddesyments of $1.1 million were made in May of 204@13 and 2012. The Windset Purct
Agreement includes a put and call option, which loamxercised on the sixth anniversary of the WéhBsirchase Agreement whereby Apio can
exercise the put to sell its Purchased Shares mal$¥t, or Windset can exercise the call to purcttes®urchased Shares from Apio, in either
case, at a price equal to 20.1% of the appreciatitime fair market value of Windset from the datehe Company’s investment through the put
and call date, plus the purchase price of the Rugexh Shares. Under the terms of the arrangemdnivistdset, the Company is entitled to
designate one of five members on the Board of Boremf Windset.

In accordance with accounting guidance, the investrim Windset does not qualify for equity methedaunting as the investment d
not meet the criteria of in-substance common sthekto returns through the annual dividend onrnidrevoting senior preferred shares that are
not available to the common stock holders. As tlteapd call options require the Purchased Sharkes fut or called in equal proportions, the
Company has deemed that the investment, in sulestaheuld be treated as a single security for mapof accounting. The Company has
adopted fair value option in the accounting foliritgeestment in Windset effective on the acquisitilate. The fair value of the Company’s
investment in Windset utilizes significant unobgdate inputs in the discounted cash flow modelduiting projected cash flows, growth rates
and the discount rate, and is therefore considelezl/el 3 for fair value measurement purposesigge 1). The Company believes that
reporting its investment at fair value providesdritgestors with useful information on the perforroamf the Company’s investment and the
anticipated appreciation in value as Windset expatsdousiness.

The fair value of the Company’s investment in Wigtdsas determined utilizing the Windset Purchasee@ment’s put/call calculation
for value and a discounted cash flow model basegrojections developed by Windset, and conside¥gth and call conversion options. These
features impact the duration of the cash flowszgtil to derive the estimated fair values of thegtment. These two discounted cash flow
models’ estimate for fair value, which generallpapximate a similar result, is then weighted. Asptioms included in these discounted cash
flow models will be evaluated quarterly based omdlget’s actual and projected operating resulteterchine the change in fair value.

During fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Compecorded $1.1 million in dividend income and @empany recorded $10.0
million, $8.1 million and $5.8 million of incomegspectively, which is included in other incomehe Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income, from the increase in thenfairket value of the Company’s investment in Windse

The Company also entered into an exclusive licagseement with Windset, which was executed in 204®, prior to contemplation
of Apio’s investment in Windset (see Note 5).
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5. License Agreement s
Monsanto

On December 1, 2006, Landec entered into a five-g@axclusive technology license and polymer syjpgreement (“the Monsanto
Agreement”) with Monsanto Company (“Monsanto”) fbe use of Landec’s Intellicoat polymer seed cagtéthnology. On December 1, 2011,
Monsanto terminated the Monsanto Agreement andtpai€ompany a $4 million termination fee and iglts to the Intellicoat seed coating
technology reverted to Landec. For fiscal year 20b2dec recognized license revenues from the Miasagreement of $2.7 million.

INCOTEC

In connection with the sale of Landec Ag to INCOT&CJune 24, 2012 (see Note 3), Landec enterecistven-year exclusive
technology license and polymer supply agreemefit INCOTEC for the use of Landec’s Intellic6at pobmseed coating technology for male
inbred corn which is sold under the Pollinator Ralsel. This license does not include the use tlinoat for the controlled release of an active
ingredient for agricultural applications which wasained by Landec. Landec will be the exclusivepsiar of Pollinator Plus polymer to
INCOTEC during the term of the license agreemedt\will receive a royalty equal to 20% of the revesuealized by INCOTEC from the sale
of or sublicense of Pollinator Plus coatings dutimg first four years of the agreement and 10%Herast three years of the agreement.

On June 24, 2012, Landec also entered into a fa-gxclusive technology license and polymer supghgement with INCOTEC for
the joint development of new polymer and uniquetioga for use in seed treatment formulations. Is #igreement, Landec will receive a value
share which will be mutually agreed to by both jgarprior to each application being developed.

Air Products

In March 2006, Landec entered into an exclusiveniée and research and development agreement wiBr@ducts and Chemicals, It
(“Air Products”). In accordance with the agreeméstndec receives 40% of the direct profit generétah the sale of products by Air Products
occurring after April 1, 2007, that incorporate Han's Intelimer materials.

Chiquita

The agreement with Chiquita has been renewed thrDegember 2016 and requires Chiquita to pay argreak profit minimums to
Landec in order for Chiquita to maintain its exohedicense for bananas. Under the terms of theeagent, Chiquita must notify Landec before
December Bt of each year whether it is going to taairits exclusive license for the following calengear and thus agree to pay the
minimums for that year. Landec was notified in Nober 2012 of Chiquita’s desire to not maintaireitslusive license. As a result, the
agreement has reverted to a rexaiusive agreement in which Chiquita will pay @empany for membranes purchased and the Compaiowi
entitled to sell its BreatheWay packaging technplfmy bananas to others.

Windset

In June 2010, Apio entered into an exclusive lieemgreement with Windset to allow for the use afdec’s proprietary breathable
packaging to extend the shelf life of greenhoussvgrcucumbers, peppers and tomatoes (“ExclusivduRis”). In accordance with the
agreement, Apio received and recorded a one-tirfreniresearch and development fee of $100,000nalhdeceive license fees equal to 3% of
net revenue of the Exclusive Products utilizingpheprietary breathable packaging technology, witlvithout the BreatheWay® trademark.
The ongoing license fees are subject to annualhmimis of $150,000 for each of the three types oluske product as each is added to the
agreement. As of May 25, 2014, two products hawen lzelded to the agreement.
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5. License Agreement s (continued)
Nitta
In July 2012, the Company entered into an agreemiintNitta Corporation (“Nitta”), a Japanese compato develop additional uses
of the Company’s adhesive polymer technology fectbnics. During fiscal year 2013, the Companygeized $688,000 in research and
development revenues from this agreement.

6. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the followimgtiiousands):

Years of
Useful Life May 25, 2014 May 26, 2013
Land and building 15-40 $ 56,37¢ $ 52,52’
Leasehold improvements 3-20 1,07¢ 1,02¢
Computer, capitalized software, machinery, equigraed auto 3-20 53,71t 44 ,58:
Furniture and fixtures 3-7 824 76€
Construction in process 6,97¢ 5,83¢
Gross property and equipment 118,97: 104,74:
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (44,83) (38,93))
Net property and equipment $ 74,140 $ 65,81:

Depreciation and amortization e)geefor property and equipment for the fiscal yesmded May 25, 2014, May 26, 2013 and May 27,
2012 was $6.2 million, $6.3 million and $5.3 mifliacespectively. There were no equipment undettaldpases at May 25, 2014 or May 26,
2013. Amortization related to capitalized softwasas $189,000, $160,000 and $136,000 for fiscalsyeaded May 25, 2014, May 26, 2013 and
May 27, 2012, respectively. The unamortized compsétware costs at May 25, 2014 and May 26, 20&&w1.1 million and $343,000,
respectively.

7. Intangible Assets

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for fiseal years ended May 25, 2014, May 26, 2013 angt B¥, 2012 by reportable
segment, are as follows (in thousands):

Food Hyaluronan-
Products based
Technology Corporate Biomaterials Total
Balance as of May 29, 2011 22,58 — 13,88! 36,46
Goodwill acquired during the period 13,15¢ — — 13,15¢
Balance as of May 27, 2012 35,73¢ — 13,88! 49,62(
Balance as of May 26, 2013 $ 35,73¢ $ — $ 13,88. $ 49,62(
Balance as of May 25, 2014 $ 35,73¢ $ — $ 13,88: $ 49,62(
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7. Intangible Assets (continued)

Information regarding Landec’s other intangibleedsss as follows (in thousands):

Trademarks & Customer
Trade names Relationships Total
Balance as of May 29, 2011 12,42¢ 3,36¢ 15,79:
Acquired during the period 36,00( 7,50( 43,50(
Amortization expense — (309) (309)
Balance as of May 27, 2012 48,42t 10,55° 58,98!
Amortization expense — (952) (957)
Balance as of May 26, 2013 $ 48,42¢ $ 9,60¢ $ 58,03¢
Amortization expense — (88¢€) (886)
Balance as of May 25, 2014 $ 48,42¢ $ 8,72( $ 57,14¢

Accumulated amortization of Trademark and Tradeewas of May 25, 2014 and May 26, 2013 was $872A88umulated
amortization of Customer Relationships as of May2t84 and May 26, 2013 was $2.5 million and $1iléan, respectively. Accumulated
impairment losses as of May 25, 2014 and May 2632@ere $4.8 million. Lifecore’s Customer Relatibips amount of $3.7 million is being
amortized over 12 years and Agaustomer relationships amount of $7.5 milliobéing amortized over 13 years. The amortizatioreegp fol
the next five fiscal years is estimated to be $883 per year.

8. Stockholders’ Equity
Holders of Common Stock are entitled to one votespare.
Convertible Preferred Stock
The Company has authorized two million shares efgured stock, and as of May 25, 2014 has no awdstg preferred stock.
Common Stock and Stock Option Plans
At May 25, 2014, the Company had 2.0 million comrsbares reserved for future issuance under Larglétyencentive plans.

On October 10, 2013, following stockholder appratahe Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Comypahe 2013 Stock Incentive
Plan (the “Plan”) became effective and replaceddbmpany’s 2009 Stock Incentive Plan. Employeed(ding officers), consultants and
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries dfilthtes are eligible to participate in the Plan.

The Plan provides for the grant of stock optioritt{nonstatutory and incentive stock options),lstgrants, stock units and stock
appreciation rights. Awards under the Plan wileh@enced by an agreement with the Plan participand 2.0 million shares of the Company’s
Common Stock (“Shares”) were initially available &ward under the Plan. Under the Plan, no redipiery receive awards during any fiscal
year that exceeds the following amounts: (i) stoptions covering in excess of 500,000 Sharesst(i¢k grants and stock units covering
excess of 250,000 Shares in the aggregate; ostick appreciation rights covering more than 500 Bhares. In addition, awards to non-
employee directors are discretionary. However,raemployee director may not be granted awards ¢esxof 30,000 Shares in the aggregate
during any fiscal year. The exercise price of thgams is the fair market value of the Company’sitmon Stock on the date the options are
granted.

On October 15, 2009, following stockholder appratahe Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Comypahe 2009 Stock Incentive
Plan (the “2009 Plan”) became effective and regldbe Company’s 2005 Stock Incentive Plan. Emplsyeeluding officers), consultants and
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries dfiliates are eligible to participate in the 200@u®. The 2009 Plan provides for the grant of
stock options (both nonstatutory and incentivelstigtions), stock grants, stock units and stockegiption rights. Under the 2009 Plan, 1.9
million Shares were initially available for awarasd as of May 25, 2014, 1.0 million options to fha®e shares and restricted stock units (R
were outstanding.
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8. Stockholders’ Equity (continued)

On October 14, 2005, following stockholder appratahe Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Comypahe 2005 Stock Incentive
Plan (“2005 Plan”) became effective. The 2005 Pépiaced the Company’s four then existing equignpland no shares remain available for
grant under those plans. Employees (including effi; consultants and directors of the Companyitaralibsidiaries and affiliates were eligible
to participate in the 2005 Plan. The 2005 Plan iplext/for the grant of stock options (both nonstatpind incentive stock options), stock gra
stock units and stock appreciation rights. Under2@05 Plan, 861,038 Shares were initially avadldébt awards, and as of May 25, 2014,
283,250 options to purchase shares were outstaritliregexercise price of the options was the fairketavalue of the Company’s Common
Stock on the date the options were granted.

The 1995 Directors’ Stock Option Plan (the “Dirgstd’lan”) provided that each person who becamera employee director of the
Company, who had not received a previous grangréeted a nonstatutory stock option to purchase0®0shares of Common Stock on the date
on which the optionee first became a non-employeetdr of the Company. Thereafter, on the dateaah annual meeting of the stockholders
each non-employee director was granted an additagtesn to purchase 10,000 shares of Common Sfpok such date, he or she had served
on the Company’s Board of Directors for at leastrsonths prior to the date of such annual meefiing. exercise price of the options was the
fair market value of the Company’s Common Stocklendate the options were granted. Options graumeer this plan were exercisable and
vested upon grant. No shares remain availablertortginder the Directors’ Plan.

Activity under all Landec equity incentive plansass follows:
Stock-Based Compensation Activity

Restricted Stock Outstanding Stock Options Outstanding

RSUs and Number Weighted Weighted
Options of Average Number of Average
Available Restricted Grant Date Stock Exercise
for Grant Shares Fair Value Options Price
Balance at May 29, 2011 640,97t 415,08! $ 5.9¢ 2,318,75. $ 6.3
Granted (191,33) 47,83 $ 6.67 143,50( $ 6.67
Awarded/Exercised — (111,25) $ 6.3¢€ (371,72) $ 5.4C
Forfeited — (3,500 $ 5.8¢ (5,657 $ 5.7¢
Plan shares expired — — — (38,43) $ 8.2¢
Balance at May 27, 2012 449,64 348,16t $ 5.9: 2,046,43. $ 6.5(C
Granted (26,66¢) 6,66¢ $ 9.01 20,00C $ 9.01
Awarded/Exercised — (231,08¢) $ 5.7¢ (671,56) $ 6.3(C
Forfeited — (28,41¢) $ 6.2C (44,97°) $ 6.3¢
Plan shares expired — — — (10,000 $ 13.32
Balance at May 26, 2013 422,97 95,33( $ 6.52 1,339,89. $ 6.5¢
Additional shares reserved 2,000,00! — — — —
Granted (420,13) 128,63. $ 14.3( 291,50( $ 14.3(
Awarded/Exercised — (62,499 $ 6.1¢ (398,08() $ 6.4
Forfeited — (12,167 $ 8.8¢ (12,457 $ 6.6€
Plan shares expired (2,846 — — (5,000 $ 13.32
Balance at May 25, 2014 2,000,00t 149,30( $ 13.17 1,215,86/ $ 8.4t
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8. Stockholders’ Equity (continued)

Upon vesting of certain RSUs and the exercigeedhin options during fiscal years 2014, 2013 202, certain RSUs and exercised
options were net share-settled to cover the reg@ixercise price and withholding tax and the reimgiamounts were converted into an
equivalent number of shares of Common Stock. Thag2amy withheld shares with value equivalent toekercise price for options and the
employees' minimum statutory obligation for the lagale income and other employment taxes, andttetchihe cash to the appropriate taxing
authorities. The total shares withheld for fiscahgs 2014, 2013 and 2012 were 47,573, 145,159 26183 RSUs and options, respectively,
which was based on the value of the option and&ld&on their exercise or vesting date as determigede Company's closing stock price.
Total payments for the employees' tax obligatianthe taxing authorities during fiscal years 20tid 2013 were approximately $1.3 million &
$49,000, respectively. These net-share settlenmaitshe effect of share repurchases by the Comgsithyey reduced and retired the number of
shares that would have otherwise have been issuadesult of the vesting and did not represemixpense to the Company.

The following table summarizes information concegstock options outstanding and exercisable at RfgyY014

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Range of Number of Remaining Average Aggregate Number of Average Aggregate
Exercise Shares Contractual Exercise Intrinsic Shares Exercise Intrinsic
Prices Outstanding Life (in years) Price Value Exercisable Price Value
$ 5.6%- $5.63 287,21 3.01 $ 5.6 $ 1,832,45 287,21¢ $ 5.6 $ 1,832,445
$ 5.65-%$6.22 321,08! 2.6 $ 6.1t $ 1,881,14 321,08 $ 6.1t $ 1,881,14
$ 6.35-%$7.50 230,05t 265 % 6.7¢ $ 1,207,94! 214,61 $ 6.77 $ 1,125,38
$ 8.1¢-3$14.30 377,50( 5.0 $ 135¢ $ 136,40( 161,69: $ 129 $ 106,40(
$ 5.65-%$14.30 1,215,86! 3.4€ $ 8.4t $ 5,057,94 984,61( $ 7.28 $ 4,945,338

At May 25, 2014 and May 26, 2013 options to pureh284,610 and 1,262,934 shares of Landec’s Comruwk #/ere vested,
respectively and 231,250 and 76,958 were unvesgsgdectively. No options have been exercised poibeing vested. The aggregate intrinsic
value in the table above represents the total pistensic value, based on the Company’s closieglsprice of $12.01 on May 23, 2014, which
would have been received by holders of stock optltad all holders of stock options exercised thteick options that were in-the-money as of
that date. The total number of in-the-money stqafioms exercisable as of May 25, 2014, was 852shies. The aggregate intrinsic value of
stock options exercised during the fiscal year 2044 $2.3 million.

Option Awards

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Weighted Contract Aggregate
Outstanding Average Term Intrinsic
Options Exercise Price (in years) Value
Vested 984,61( $ 7.2¢ 2.8¢ $  4,945,38
Expected to vest 226,62! $ 13.5¢ 5.9¢ 110,30t
Total 1,211,23" ¢ 8.4= 34t $ 5,055,69:

As of May 25, 2014, there was $2.0 million of tafarecognized compensation expense related to tauveguity compensation awal
granted under the Company’s incentive stock pl@otal expense is expected to be recognized ovexdighted-average period of 1.9 years for
both stock options and restricted stock awards.

Stock Repurchase Plan

On July 14, 2010, the Board of Directors of the @any approved the establishment of a stock repaechkan which allows for the
repurchase of up to $10 million of the Company’sr@won Stock. The Company may repurchase its comihook from time to time in open
market purchases or in privately negotiated traimas The timing and actual number of shares maged is at the discretion of management
of the Company and will depend on a variety ofdesitincluding stock price, corporate and reguiatequirements, market conditions, the
relative attractiveness of other capital deployntggortunities and other corporate priorities. $taek repurchase program does not obligate
Landec to acquire any amount of its common stockthe program may be modified, suspended or testeihat any time at the Company's
discretion without prior notice. During fiscal ys&014 and 2013, the Company did not purchaselargs on the open market. During fiscal
year 2012, the Company purchased on the open nmitke?44 shares of its Common Stock for $5.0 nmilkod retired those shar
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9. Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following (in thonds):

May 25, 2014 May 26, 2013

Real estate loan agreement with General Electnpgt&laCorporation (“GE Capital”); due in

monthly principal and interest payments of $133,080ugh May 1, 2022 with interest

based on a fixed rate of 4.02% per annum $ 16,137 $ 17,06¢
Capital equipment loan with GE Capital; due in niynprincipal and interest payments of

$175,356 through May 1, 2019 with interest based fired rate of 4.39% per annum 9,43( 11,08(
Term note with BMO Harris; due in monthly paymeot$250,000 through May 23, 2016

with interest payable monthly at LIBOR plus 2% panum 6,00( 9,00(
Industrial revenue bonds (“IRBs”) issued by Lifegodue in annual payments through 20:

with interest at a variable rate set weekly bylibed remarketing agent (0.28% and 0.3:

at May 25, 2014 and May 26, 2013, respectively) 2,80¢ 3,16(
Total 34,37 40,30¢
Less current portion (6,05%) (5,939
Long-term portion $ 28,317 $ 34,37

The future minimum principal payments of the Compsudebt for each year presented are as followthfnsands):

GE RE Loan GE Equipmer  BMO Harris IRB Total

FY 2015 96% 1,72t 3,00( 36¢ 6,05¢
FY 2016 1,00¢ 1,801 3,00( 37¢ 6,181
FY 2017 1,04¢ 1,88: — 39C 3,31¢
FY 2018 1,08¢ 1,967 — 40C 3,45¢
FY 2019 1,13« 2,05¢ — 41( 3,59¢
Thereafter 10,89¢ — — 86¢ 11,76¢

Total $ 16,13° $ 9,43( $ 6,000 $ 2,808 $ 34,37:

In addition to entering into the GE Capital reahés and equipment loans mentioned above, on 2BriR012 in connection with the
acquisition of GreenLine, Apio also entered intiva-year, $25.0 million asset-based working cdp#&olving line of credit with GE Capital,
with an interest rate of LIBOR plus 2%, with availdy based on the combination of the eligible @aats receivable and eligible inventory
(availability was $19.8 million at May 25, 2014)pi&d’s revolving line of credit has an unused fe® &75% per annum. At May 25, 2014 and
May 26, 2013, Apio had zero and $4.0 million, retpely, outstanding under its revolving line oédit.
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9. Debt (continued)

The GE real estate, equipment and line of credeéements (collectively the “GE Debt Agreements® secured by liens on all of the
property of Apio and its subsidiaries. The GE Dépteements contain customary events of default uwtieeh obligations could be accelerated
or increased. The GE Capital real estate and eauiploans are guaranteed by Landec, and Landguiédged its equity interest in Apio as
collateral under the line of credit agreement. GieDebt Agreements contain customary covenant$, asiiimitations on the ability to (1) incur
indebtedness or grant liens or negative pledgefpiois assets; (2) make loans or other investmdB)spay dividends, sell stock or repurchase
stock or other securities; (4) sell assets; (5agegn mergers; (6) enter into sale and leasebankdctions; and (7) make changes in Apio’s
corporate structure. In addition, Apio must maimt@iminimum fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.10.Wif the availability under its line of cre:
falls below $7.5 million. Apio was in compliancettviall financial covenants as of May 25, 2014 arelyM6, 2013. Unamortized loan
origination fees for the GE Debt Agreements wer@4$300 and $1.2 million at May 25, 2014 and MayZ®l3, respectively, and are included
in other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

On May 23, 2012, Lifecore entered into two finaigcagreements with BMO Harris Bank N.A. and/or ffdiates (“BMO Harris”),
collectively (the “Lifecore Loan Agreements”):

(1) A Credit and Security Agreement (the “Credgréement”) which includes (a) a two-year, $10.0iarilasset-based working capital
revolving line of credit, with an interest rateldBOR plus 1.85%, with availability based on thendmnation of Lifecore’s eligible
accounts receivable and inventory balances (avityalvas $7.9 million at May 25, 2014) and with naused fee (as of May 25, 2014
and May 26, 2013, no amounts were outstanding uhddme of credit) and (b) a $12.0 million teroah which matures in four years
due in monthly payments of $250,000 with interestgble monthly based on a variable interest ratdROR plus 2% (the “Term
Loan”).

2 A Reimbursement Agreement pursuant to which@BMarris caused its affiliate Bank of Montreal $sue an irrevocable letter of credit
in the amount of $3.5 million (the “Letter of Cré&dliwhich is securing the IRBs described above.

The obligations of Lifecore under the Lifecore Losgreements are secured by liens on all of thegntgpf Lifecore. The Lifecore
Loan Agreements contain customary covenants, ssiimaations on the ability to (1) incur indebtexhs or grant liens or negative pledges on
Lifecore’s assets; (2) make loans or other investm€3) pay dividends or repurchase stock or atkeurities; (4) sell assets; (5) engage in
mergers; (6) enter into sale and leaseback transag{7) adopt certain benefit plans; and (8) matk@nges in Lifecore’s corporate structure. In
addition, under the Credit Agreement, Lifecore nmaintain (a) a minimum fixed charge coverage ratit.10 to 1.0 and a minimum quick
ratio of 1.25 to 1.00, both of which must be s&isfas of the end of each fiscal quarter commenwitigthe fiscal quarter ending August 26,
2012 and (b) a minimum tangible net worth of $29,000, measured as of May 28, 2013, and as ofrtthi@fEeach fiscal year thereafter.
Lifecore was in compliance with all financial coeens as of May 25, 2014 and May 26, 2013. Unanexttiean origination fees for the Lifecc
Loan Agreements were $98,000 and $149,000 at Mag®B1 and May 26, 2013, respectively, and areuded in other assets in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The market value of the Company’s debt approximiggegcorded value as the interest rates on eelshilstrument approximates
current market rates.

The Term Loan was used to repay Lifecore’s formmedit facility with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“WellBargo”). The Letter of Credit
(which replaces a letter of credit previously pdad by Wells Fargo) provides liquidity and credipport for the IRBs.

On August 19, 2004, Lifecore issued variable ratiistrial revenue bonds (“IRBs”). These IRBs wasssumed by Landec in the
acquisition of Lifecore (see Note 2). The IRBs eolateralized by a bank letter of credit whiclsécured by a first mortgage on the Company’s
facility in Chaska, Minnesota. In addition, the Qmamy pays an annual remarketing fee equal to 0.1&2%@&n annual letter of credit fee of
0.75%. The maturities on the IRBs are held in &isgnfund account, recorded in Other Current Assethe accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets, and are paid out each year onnsegtd.st.
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10. Derivative Financial Instruments

In May 2010, the Company entered into a five-yaterest rate swap agreement under the credit agreesith Wells Fargo. The
interest rate swap was designated as a cash fldgehaf future interest payments of LIBOR and hadtonal amount of $20 million. As a
result of the interest rate swap transaction, then@any fixed for a five-year period the intereserat 4.24% subject to market based interest rate
risk on $20 million of borrowings under the crealifreement with Wells Fargo. The Company’s obligegtionder the interest rate swap
transaction as to the scheduled payments werergearhand secured on the same basis as its obligathder the credit agreement with Wells
Fargo at the time the agreement was consummatexh &ltering into the new Term Loan with BMO HamidMay 2012, the Company used
proceeds from that loan to pay off the Wells Famgait facility. The swap with Wells Fargo was tatminated upon the extinguishment of the
debt with Wells Fargo. As a result of extinguishthg debt with Wells Fargo as of May 23, 2012,dfwap was no longer an effective hedge and
therefore, the fair value of the swap at the tiheedebt was extinguished of $347,000 was reversed éther comprehensive income and
recorded in other expense during fiscal year 20h2.fair value of the swap arrangement as of May224%4 and May 26, 2013 was $44,000
$163,000, respectively, and is included in otherwaed liabilities in the accompanying ConsolidaBedance Sheets.

11. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes consisted of thofaing (in thousands):

Year ended Year ended Year ended

Current: May 25, 2014 May 26, 2013 May 27, 2012

Federal $ 4,78t % 2,80t $ 4,597

State 157 (18) (58¢€)

Foreign 5€ 56 56
Total 4,99¢ 2,84¢ 4,067
Deferred:

Federal 5,05¢ 6,21¢ 2,641

State 52¢€ 38¢ A77
Total 5,58¢ 6,60¢ 3,11¢
Income tax expense $ 10,58 $ 945: $ 7,18

The actual provision for income taxes differs frtima statutory U.S. federal income tax rate asWgl¢in thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

May 25, 2014 May 26, 2013 May 27, 2012
Provision at U.S. statutory rate (1) $ 10,40t $ 11,21 $ 6,95¢
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 711 731 451
Change in valuation allowance 9¢ 37C 1
Tax-exempt interest — — (40)
Tax credit carryforwards (37¢) (807) (36%)
Transaction cost — — 32z
Domestic manufacturing deduction (406) 172 (20¢)
Change in value of contingent consideration — (1,450 —
Other 152 (440 69
Total $ 10,58: $ 9,452 $ 7,18¢

(1) Statutory rate was 35% for fiscal years 20D4,3and 2012.
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11. Income Taxes (continued)

The increase in income tax expense in fiscal y8as Zompared to fiscal year 2013 is primarily dughe benefit received in fiscal year
2013 related to the change in value of contingensitleration, the absence of which increased fieetafe tax tax rate from 30% in fiscal year
2013 to 36% in fiscal year 2014 partially offsetdby% decrease in net income before taxes. Thedserin the income tax expense in fiscal
2013 compared to fiscal year 2012 is due to a 58%ease in net income before taxes partially offged decrease in the Company’s effective
tax rate to 30% down from 36% in fiscal year 2042ted to a change in value of contingent consiberin fiscal year 2013

The effective tax rates for fiscal year 2014 diffem the statutory federal income tax rate of 8kcpnt as a result of several factors,
including state taxes, non-deductible stock-basedpensation expense, disqualified dispositionacémtive stock options, domestic
manufacturing deduction, the benefit of federal stade research and development credits, and Hregelin valuation allowance. The effective
tax rates for fiscal year 2013 differ from the staty federal income tax rate of 35 percent asalt®f several factors, including state taxes,
change in value of contingent consideration, nathidgble stock-based compensation expense, disigdadiispositions of incentive stock
options, domestic manufacturing deduction, the fieokfederal and state research and developnreudits, and the change in valuation
allowance. The effective tax rates for fiscal y2at2 differ from the statutory federal income taterof 35 percent as a result of several factors,
including state taxes, non-deductible stbelsed compensation expense, tax exempt interesggtic manufacturing deduction and the bene
federal and state research and development cradidsaccounting for transaction costs associatddtive GreenLine acquisition in fiscal year
2012.

Significant components of deferred tax assets iahdities consisted of the following (in thousaids

May 25, 2014 May 26, 2013

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards $ 3,63C $ 3,85:

Accruals and reserves 1,74¢ 1,38¢

Stock-based compensation 725 621

Research and AMT credit carryforwards 49t 48¢

Other 54E 45C
Gross deferred tax assets 7,13¢ 6,79¢
Valuation allowance (881) (789)
Net deferred tax asse 6,25¢ 6,01¢
Deferred tax liabilities:

Basis difference in investment in non-public compan (9,270) (5,505

Depreciation and amortization (5,705 (5,827

Goodwill and other indefinite life intangibles (19,36() (17,160
Deferred tax liabilities (34,339 (28,48)
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ (28,07) $ (22,47)

As of May 25, 2014, the Company had federal, Califn Indiana, and other state net operating lasyforwards of approximately
$8.3 million, $1.7 million, $6.7 million, and $14riillion respectively. These losses expire in défg periods through 2032, if not utilized. Such
net operating losses consist of excess tax beffiefitsemployee stock option exercises and havdeeh recorded in the Company’s deferred
tax assets. The Company will record approximat8i55000 of the gross California net operating tosadditional paid in capital as and when
such excess tax benefits are ultimately realizée. Company acquired additional net operating logsesigh the acquisition of GreenLine.
Utilization of these acquired net operating losses specific year is limited due to the “chang@wnership” provision of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986 and similar state provisions. Theopetating losses presented above for federal ag gtirposes is net of any such limitation.
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11. Income Taxes (continued)

The federal research and development credit has agpired and is currently unavailable for calan2fal4. As such, the Company is
not benefiting any federal research credits fordisefive months of the fiscal year ended May Z&1 4.

The Company has California research and developtarmtredits carryforwards of approximately $1.8lioni. The research and
development tax credit carryforwards have an umdichcarryforward period for California purposesrt@ia tax credit carryovers are attributable
to excess tax benefits from employee stock opti@naises and have not been recorded in the Compae§érred tax assets. The Company will
record $1.1 million of the gross California reséeand development credit to additional paid in @is and when such excess tax benefits are
ultimately realized.

Valuation allowances are reviewed each period tax gurisdiction by jurisdiction basis to analyzéether there is sufficient positive or
negative evidence to support a change in judgmzmnitahe realizability of the related deferred éasets. Based on this analysis and considering
all positive and negative evidence, the Compangrdehed that a valuation allowance of $881,000 khba recorded as a result of uncertainty
around the utilization of certain state net operatosses and a book impairment loss on the Con'parmestment in Aesthetic Sciences as it is
more likely than not that a portion of the defertaxl asset will not be realized in the foreseeéltlere. The valuation allowance increased by
$99,000 in fiscal year 2014 primarily due to unairtly around the utilization of certain state ngémting losses and credits.

The accounting for uncertainty in income taxes gaied in an enterprise’s financial statementsquiless a recognition threshold and
measurement attribute for the financial statemecdgnition and measurement of a tax position takerxpected to be taken in a tax return, and
the derecognition of tax benefits, classificationtioe balance sheet, interest and penalties, atingun interim periods, disclosure, and
transition.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoofninrecognized tax benefits is as follows (inukands):

As of
May 25, 2014 May 26, 2013 May 27, 2012
Unrecognized tax benefits — beginning of the period $ 99¢ ¢ 76€ $ 76C
Gross increases — tax positions in prior period 7 10z 1
Gross decreases — tax positions in prior period (48) — (1)
Gross increases — current-period tax positions 78 12¢ 24¢
Lapse of statute of limitations — — (240)
Unrecognized tax benefits — end of the period $ 1,03t % 99¢ $ 76€

As of May 25, 2014, the total amount of net unretogd tax benefits was $1.0 million, of which, $&100, if recognized, would affect
the effective tax rate. As of May 26, 2013, thaltaimount of net unrecognized tax benefits was 8illibn, of which, $807,000, if recognized,
would affect the effective tax rate. The Compangraes interest and penalties related to unrecodni@ebenefits in its provision for income
taxes. The total amount of penalties and interast mot material as of May 25, 2014 and May 26, 288litionally, the Company does not
expect its unrecognized tax benefits to change nmadyewithin the next twelve months.

Due to tax attribute carryforwards, the Companysubject to examination for tax years 1997 forwawd U.S. tax purposes. T
Company is also subject to examination in varidgagegurisdictions for tax years 1998 forward, nofghich were individually material.

12. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

Landec leases facilities and equipment under opegrbtase agreements with various terms and conditiwvhich expire at various da
through fiscal year 2020. Certain of these leas@e henewal options.
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12. Commitments and Contingencies (cimued)

The approximate future minimum lease payments utheese operating leases, excluding land leas&$ag®5, 2014 are as follows (in
thousands):

Amount

FY2015 $ 2,91¢
FY2016 2,72(
FY2017 2,22¢
FY2018 1,37¢
FY2019 92¢
Thereafter 878

Total $ 11,03¢

Rent expense for operating leases, including manthonth arrangements was $4.4 million, $4.8 millimd $1.5 million for the fiscal
years 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectiv

Capital Leases

There was no equipment under capital lease agrdéeraeklay 25, 2014.

Employment Agreements

Landec has entered into employment agreementsceithin key employees. These agreements providedee employees to receive
incentive bonuses based on the financial performaificertain divisions in addition to their annbake salaries. The accrued incentive bonuses
amounted to $656,000 at May 25, 2014 and $548,00ag 26, 2013.

Purchase Commitments

At May 25, 2014, the Company was committed to paseh$5.0 million of produce during fiscal year 2@i&ccordance with
contractual terms at market rates. Payments of @illibn were made in fiscal year 2014 under th@sangements.

Loss Contingencies

As of May 25, 2014, the Company is not a partyrtp l@gal proceedings.
13. Employee Savings and Investment Plans

The Company sponsors a 401(k) plan which is avaiimbsubstantially all of the Company’s employdemdec’s Corporate Plan,
which is available to all Landec employees (“LanB#sn”), allows participants to contribute from 18%60% of their salaries, up to the Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) limitation into designatecestment funds. The Company matches 67% on thesfisscontributed by an employee.
Employee and Company contributions are fully vestistthe time of the contributions. The Companyinstéhe right, by action of the Board of

Directors, to amend, modify, or terminate the pkar. fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Companiributed $1.1 million, $939,000 and
$789,000, respectively, to the Landec Plan.
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14. Business Segment Reporting

The Company manages its business operations thtbugg strategic business units. Based upon theniation reported to the chief
operating decision maker, who is the Chief Exeeu@fficer, the Company has the following reportag#gments : the Food Products
Technology segment, the Food Export segment andybkironan-based Biomaterials segment.

The Food Products Technology segment markets aric gpecialty packaged whole and fresh-cut fruit eegetables, the majority of
which incorporate the BreatheWay specialty packafin the retail grocery, club store and food sasiindustry. In addition, the Food Products
Technology segment sells BreatheWay packagingrtogra for non-vegetable products. The Food Exgagiment consists of revenues
generated from the purchase and sale of primatiglegcommodity fruit and vegetable products to Asid domestically. The HA-based
Biomaterials segment sells products utilizing hyahan, a naturally occurring polysaccharide thatigely distributed in the extracellular mat
of connective tissues in both animals and humamsnédical use primarily in the Ophthalmic, Orthdigeand Veterinary markets. Corporate
licenses Landec’s patented Intellicoat seed costioghe farming industry and licenses the Compamtelimer polymers for personal care
products and other industrial products. The Cotgosagment also includes general and administrakpenses, non-Food Products Technology
and non HAbased Biomaterials interest income and incomexprreses. Beginning in fiscal year 2013, the Foadiicts Technology, the Fo
Export and the Hyaluronan-based Biomaterials setgrirdude charges for corporate services andharirgy allocated from the Corporate
segment. All of the assets of the Company are éalcaithin the United States of America.

The Company’s international sales by geographyased on the billing address of the customer amd a®follows (in millions):

May 25, 2014 May 26, 2013 May 27, 2012
Canada $ 46.€ $ 27.¢ $ 20.¢
Taiwan $ 30.7 $ 31.C $ 22.7
Belgium $ 13.1 $ 16.€ $ 15.€
Japan $ 9.¢ ¢ 10.€ $ 11.1
Indonesia $ 9.€ $ 21.C $ 23.C
China $ 82 % 5C % 4.3
All Other Countries $ 191 $ 20.¢ $ 17.C
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14. Business Segment Reporting (contad)

Operations by segment consisted of the followingl{pusands):

Hyaluronan-
Food Product based

Fiscal Year Ended May 25, 2014 Technology = Food Export  Biomaterials Corporate TOTAL
Net sales $ 360,72¢ $ 69,827 $ 4570¢ $ 554 $ 476,81:
International sales $ 47,22¢  $ 69,71C $ 20,31: $ — % 137,24¢
Gross profit $ 36,31¢ $ 534C $ 20,45¢ $ 45C $ 62,56¢
Net income (loss $ 19,04. $ 197: $ 9,69t $ (11,569 $ 19,14¢
Identifiable assets $ 196,25° $ 25,39 $ 85,85¢ $ 6,117 $ 313,62
Depreciation and amortization $ 4,751 $ 6 $ 2221 % 13¢ % 7,114
Capital expenditures $ 10,95( $ — 3 3871 $ 58 $ 14,88¢
Dividend income $ 1,128 $ — % — $ — $ 1,12¢
Interest income $ 12 $ — % 24z % 6 $ 26C
Interest expense $ 1,40z $ — 3 24 $ — $ 1,65(C
Income tax expense $ 33 % 3 3 17 $ 10,53( $ 10,58:
Fiscal Year Ended May 26, 2013

Net sales $ 320,447 $ 78,56¢ $ 41,28: $ 1412 $ 441,70¢
International sales $ 27,53. $ 78,44. $ 26,79: $ — $ 132,76t
Gross profit $ 37,077 % 5274/ $ 19,10: $ 1,307 $ 62,76(
Net income (loss $ 20,52¢ $ 1,66 $ 6,83t $ (6,439 $ 22,58’
Identifiable assets $ 180,10: $ 21,737 % 80,94( $ 8,161 $ 290,94.
Depreciation and amortization $ 4,761 $ 4 $ 237¢ % 151 $ 7,29¢
Capital expenditures $ 559¢ $ — $ 3,19C $ 89 $ 8,871
Dividend income $ 1,128 $ — % — 3 — $ 1,12¢
Interest income $ 42 3 — % 137 % — $ 17¢
Interest expense $ 1,707 $ —  $ 301 $ — $ 2,00¢
Income tax expense $ 3,39¢ $ 33¢ $ 1,400 $ 431, % 9,45:
Fiscal Year Ended May 27, 2012

Net sales $ 207,58: $ 71,48 $ 34,28: $ 420z $ 317,55:
International sales $ 20,52¢ $ 71,05¢ $ 2290 $ — % 114,48¢
Gross profit $ 25237 $ 490 $ 17,99 $ 4,000 $ 52,13¢
Net income (loss $ 17,527 $ 2,26¢ $ 7,672 % (14,77) $ 12,69¢
Identifiable assets $ 169,54. $ 18,42 $ 81927 $ 7,79¢ $ 277,69.
Depreciation and amortization $ 3,191 $ 7 $ 224z % 181 % 5,621
Capital expenditures $ 2,49¢ $ — 3 2,79¢ $ 75 $ 5,371
Dividend income $ 1,128 $ — $ — $ — $ 1,12¢
Interest income $ 30 % — $ 12¢  $ 21 % 18C
Interest expense $ 17¢ % — 8 751 $ — $ 92¢
Income tax expense $ — 8 — $ $ 7,188 $ 7,18¢

-79-




15. Quarterly Consolidated Financial Infomation (unaudited)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quéytezsults of operations for fiscal years 2014,2@hd 2012 (in thousands, except

for per share amounts):

FY 2014 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter FY 2014
Revenues $ 109,47¢ $ 120,02¢ $ 126,37¢ $ 120,92¢ $ 476,81:
Gross profit $ 12,53: $ 13,73¢  $ 20,15 $ 16,14: $ 62,56¢
Net income $ 4,75 % 3451 $ 6,40C $ 454: % 19,14¢
Net income per basic she $ 0.1¢ % 0.1z % 024 % 017 % 0.7z
Net income per diluted sha $ 0.1t $ 0.1z $ 024 $ 017 $ 0.71

FY 2013 1st Quarter 20d Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter FY 2013
Revenues $ 102,07: $ 114,65 $ 117,867 $ 107,110 $ 441,70¢
Gross profit $ 13,76 $ 18,45¢ $ 17,50¢ $ 13,03C $ 62,76(
Net income $ 4,366 $ 8,91 $ 4,78¢ % 451¢ $ 22,58’
Net income per basic she $ 017 $ 03t $ 0.1¢ $ 017 $ 0.87
Net income per diluted sha $ 017 $ 034 $ 0.1t $ 017 $ 0.8t

FY 2012 1st Quarter 20d Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter FY 2012
Revenues $ 73,30 $ 8157( $ 80,06« $ 82,617 $ 317,55:
Gross profit $ 11,25C $ 13,01¢ $ 13,17: $ 14,70¢ $ 52,13¢
Net income (loss $ 181 $ 3,34C $ 476t $ 2,77¢ $ 12,69¢
Net income (loss) per basic sh $ 0.07 $ 0.1z $ 0.1¢ $ 011 $ 0.4¢
Net income (loss) per diluted sh: $ 0.07 $ 0.1z $ 0.1t $ 011 $ 0.4¢

16. Subsequent Events

On July 15, 2014, Apio purchased from a sharehalfig¥indset an additional 68 shares of common stk 15,857 shares of junior
preferred stock of Windset for $11.0 million. Aftise purchase, Apio’s common stock ownership rerssa 26.9% interest in Windset. The
non-voting junior preferred stock does not yieldividend unless declared by the Board of Directdrd/indset. The newly purchased shares of
common stock will be included in the put/call agament with Windset and will be adjusted to failueaon a quarterly basis along with the
previously purchased common stock.

On July 17, 2014, Apio entered into the amendmeiht GE Capital, which amends the Credit Agreemextéd April 23, 2012 among

the parties. Under the amendment, the parties &igneed to increase the current revolving line etlitrfrom $25 million to $40 million, reduce
the interest rate from LIBOR plus 2.0% to LIBOR $ILL75%, extend the term to July 17, 2019 and makein other changes.
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(b)

Index of Exhibits.

Exhibit
Number: Exhibit Title

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant, incorated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to theiReant's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated November 7, 2008.

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Registrant, incatpdrherein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Begit’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 18, 2011.

10.1 Form of Indemnification Agreement, incorporateddieiby reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the RegistmAthnual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended MayZ005.

10.2* Form of Option Agreement for 1995 Directors’ St@aftion Plan, incorporated herein by reference toiliik10.4
to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfar fiscal year ended October 31, 1996.

10.3 Industrial Real Estate Lease dated March 1, 1988dmn the Registrant and Wayne R. Brown & Bibbitevit,
Trustees of the Wayne R. Brown & Bibbits Brown logiTrust dated December 30, 1987, incorporatec:feyence
to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Registratioat8ment on Form S-1 (File No. 33-80723) declaréstafe on
February 12, 1996.

10.4* Form of Option Agreement for the 1996 Non-Execu®teck Option Plan, as amended, incorporated hégein
reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Registrant’s Aadrikeport on Form 10-K for the fiscal year endedoDer 31,
1996.

10.5* 1996 Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan, iocated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 toRlegistrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quaeteded April 29, 2001.

10.6* Form of Option Agreement for 1996 Amended and Redt&tock Option Plan, incorporated herein by sxfee to
Exhibit 10.17 to the Registrant’s Quarterly RegmrtForm 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 3997.

10.7* New Executive Stock Option Plan, incorporated hebgi reference to Exhibit 10.30 to the Regis’'s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Oetdt®, 2000.

10.8* 1996 Non-Executive Stock Option Plan, as amendedyporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3hé
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for thedisyear ended October 28, 2001.

10.9 Supply Agreement between the Registrant and Apgstirt LC and the Growers listed therein, dated akilyf3,
2003, incorporated herein by reference to Exhilditt8 the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8alted July 3,
2003.

10.10* 1995 Directors’ Stock Option Plan, as amended,ripm@ted herein by reference to Exhibit 10.53 toRegistrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarteded May 25, 2003.
10.11# License and research and development agreemergdretive Registrant and Air Products and Chemibratsdatec

March 14, 2006, incorporated herein by referendexuibit 10.63 to the Registrant’s Annual Reportrmmm 10-K
for the fiscal year ended May 28, 20
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Exhibit

Number: Exhibit Title

10.12* 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated hereindfgrence to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant's CurReport or
Form &K dated October 14, 200

10.13* Form of Stock Grant Agreement for 2005 Stock InisenPlan, incorporated herein by reference to Ex8i®.2 to
the Registrant's Current Report on For-K dated October 14, 200

10.14* Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant and Stock OptAgreement for 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, incompexl
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.66 to the Regidts Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal yeaded May
28, 2006

10.15* Form of Stock Unit Agreement for 2005 Stock InceatPlan, incorporated herein by reference to ExAii67 to
the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiseal year ended May 28, 2006.

10.16* Form of Stock Appreciation Right Agreement for 2@6ck Incentive Plan,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.thoRegistrant's Current Report on Form 8-K d&etbber 14,
2005.

10.17 Agreement and Plan of Merger between Landec Catipo, a California corporation, and the Regidtrdated as
of November 6, 2008, incorporated herein by refesan Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Current RéporForm 8K
dated November 7, 2008.

10.18* 2009 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated hereindfgrence to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant's CurR&port on
Form 8-K dated October 19, 2009.

10.19* Form of Stock Grant Agreement for 2009 Stock IniseniPlan, incorporated herein by reference to Bk8i®.2 to
the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K datetbi@er 19, 2009.

10.20* Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant and Stock OptAgreement for 2009 Stock Incentive Plan, incompexd
herein by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the RegigtsaCurrent Report on Form 8-K dated October 0992

10.21* Form of Stock Unit Agreement for 2009 Stock InceatPlan, incorporated herein by reference to ExBi®i4 to the
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated Gatdl9, 2009.

10.22* Form of Stock Appreciation Right Agreement for 2@@ck Incentive Plan, incorporated herein by esiee to
Exhibit 99.5 to the Registrant's Current ReporfForm 8-K dated October 19, 2009.

10.23 Stock Purchase Agreement by and among the Redidtifecore Biomedical, Inc., Lifecore Biomedical.C and

Warburg Pincus Private Equity IX, L.P., dated A@®, 2010, incorporated herein by reference to likhD.1 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated MagL0.

10.24 Amended and Restated License, Supply and R&D Ageatntated November 27, 2009 by and among the

Registrant, Landec Ag, LLC and Monsanto Compamgtiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to theifent's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 3, 2009.
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Exhibit

Number: Exhibit Title
10.25 Share Purchase Agreement, dated February 15, B@Hhd between Apio, Inc. and Windset Holdings 20ttD,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.theoRegistrant’s Current Report on ForrK 8lated February 1!
2011.
10.26 Stock Purchase Agreement by and among Apio, Inee@.ine Holding Company and 2003 Riverside Capital
Appreciation Fund, L.P ., dated April 23, 2012 drorated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 toRlegistrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 27, 2012.
10.27 Loan agreements by and between the Registrant, Agioand General Electric Capital Corporatioredadpril
23, 2012, incorporated herein by reference to Etehild.1 through 10.9 to the RegistranCurrent Report on Fol
8-K dated May 27, 2012.
10.28 Credit Agreement and Reimbursement Agreement bybahdeen Lifecore Biomedical, LLC and BMO Harris
Bank N.A. dated May 23, 2012, incorporated hergimdference to Exhibits 10.1 and 10.2 to the Regji$ts
Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 29, 2012.
10.29 Long-Term Incentive Plan, incorporated herein bgmence to the Registrant’s Current Report on Féihdated
July 31, 2013.
10.30 Employment Agreement between the Registrant anddByeS. Skinner effective as of January 1, 2013,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 108the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K d&@edember
10, 2012.
10.31 Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan, incorpatdterein by reference to the Regisf's Current Report on
Form 8-K dated July 31, 2013.
10.32 2013 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated hereindégrence to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant's CurR&port on
Form 8-K dated October 11, 2013.
10.33 Form of Stock Grant Agreement for 2013 Stock IniseniPlan, incorporated herein by reference to EkBi®.2 to
the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K datetker 11, 2013.
10.34 Form of Notice of Stock Option Grant and Stock OptAgreement for 2013 Stock Incentive Plan, incoajexl
herein by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the RegmgtsaCurrent Report on Form 8-K dated October 0132
10.35 Form of Stock Unit Agreement for 2013 Stock InceatPlan, incorporated herein by reference to Ex8i®i4 to
the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K datetbker 11, 2013.
10.36 Form of Stock Appreciation Right Agreement for 2@t8ck Incentive Plan, incorporated herein by egiee to
Exhibit 99.5 to the Registrant's Current Reporfomnm 8-K dated October 11, 2013.
10.37* 2015 Cash Bonus Plan, incorporated herein by nederto the Registrant’s Current Report on Forkd@ated Jun

23, 2014.
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Exhibit

Number: Exhibit Title
10.38* Employment Agreement between the Registrant angl Gabteele effective as of May 26, 2014, incorpedahereir
by reference to Exhibit 10.35 to the Registrantsrént Report on Form 8-K dated June 23, 2014.
10.39 Stock Transfer Agreement dated July 15, 2014 andgig, Inc., Newell Capital Corporation and Windstidldings
2010 Ltd., incorporated herein by reference to BitHi0.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on F8rK dated
July 21, 2014.
10.40 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated Jul@¥4 among Apio, Inc., CalEx Trading Company, Gliee
Logistics, Inc. and General Electric Capital Cogdimn, incorporated herein by reference to ExHibi to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated 2dly2014.
211 Subsidiaries of the Registrant at May 25, 2014 State of Incorporatio
Apio, Inc. Delaware
Lifecore Biomedical, Inc. Delaware
23.1+ Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking
24.1+ Power of Attorney — See signature page
31.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to section 302 of theh&aes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to section 302 of theb8aes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb&rnes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb&aes-Oxley Act of 2002
101.INS** XBRL Instance
101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation
101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition
101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels
101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation
* Represents a management contract or compensatorpphrrangement required to be filed as an extailthis
report pursuant to Item 15(b) of Form-K.
** Information is furnished and not filed or a partaafegistration statement or prospectus for puipogsections 11 ¢
12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, ésrdl not filed for purposes of section 18 of theuBites
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwisetisubject to liability under these sectic
+ Filed herewith
# Confidential treatment requested as to certaing@ust The term “confidential treatment” and the kidf as used

throughout the indicated Exhibit means that matbaa been omitted.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of section 13 or 1&i{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regiisthas duly caused this Repor
Form 10K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigneekeihinto duly authorized, in the City of Menlo P&Bkate of California, on August
2014.

LANDEC CORPORATION

By: /s/ Gregory S. Skinne
Gregory S. Skinne
Vice President of Finance and Administrat
and Chief Financial Office

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each persn whose signature appears below hereby constitutemnd
appoints Gary T. Steele and Gregory S. Skinner, andach of them, as his attorney-iriact, with full power of substitution, for him in any
and all capacities, to sign any and all amendment® this Report on Form 10K, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto andther
documents in connection therewith, with the Securiés and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying andoofirming our signatures as
they may be signed by our said attorney to any andll amendments to said Report on Form 10-K.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exange Act of 1934, this Report on Form 10- Kas been signed by the followir
persons in the capacities and on the dates indicate

Signature Title Date
/sl Gary T. Steele
Gary T. Steele President and Chief Executive @ffand Director August 1, 2014

(Principal Executive Officer)
/sl Gregory S. Skinner
Gregory S. Skinner Vice President of Finance adohiistration and Chief August 1, 2014
Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accoungi
Officer)

/s/ Nicholas Tompkins
Nicholas Tompkins Chairman of the Board of Apia;.land Director August 1, 2014

/s/ Robert Tobin
Robert Tobin Director August 1, 2014

/sl Albert D. Bolles, Ph.D
Albert D. Bolles, Ph.D Director August 1, 2014

/sl Frederick Frank
Frederick Frank Director August 1, 2014

/sl Stephen E. Halprin
Stephen E. Halprin Director August 1, 2014

/sl Steven Goldby
Steven Goldby Director August 1, 2014

/s/ Richard Dean Hollis
Richard Dean Hollis Director August 1, 2014

/s/ Catherine A. Sohn
Catherine A. Sohn Director August 1, 2014

/s/ Tonia Pankopf
Tonia Pankopf Director August 1, 2014
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Exhibit

Number

23.1

24.1

31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Title
Consent of Independent Registered Public Actiogifrirm

Power of Attorney. See signature page.

CEO Certification pursuant to section 302 & 8arbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
CFO Certification pursuant to section 302 & Barbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
CEO Certification pursuant to section 906 & 8arbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

CFO Certification pursuant to section 906 & Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference irRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 Nos. 333-109889,89368, 333-62866, 333-06163, 333-
29103, 333-80313, 333-52339, 333-129895, 333-163826333-193213) pertaining to the NBlan Stock Option, New Executive Stock Opt
Plan, 1995 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, 1995 timeStock Option Plan, 1996 Stock Option Plar®6lRon-Executive Stock Option Plan,
1988 Incentive Stock Option Plan, 2005 Stock IneerPlan, 2009 Stock Incentive Plan and 2013 Shoc&ntive Plan of our reports dated
August 1, 2014, with respect to the consolidatedrftial statements of Landec Corporation and tleetaéfeness of internal control over finan:
reporting of Landec Corporation, included in thisniial Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended MayZt8,4.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Francisco, California
August 1, 2014



Exhibit 31.]
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Gary T. Steele, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKandec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or eongttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuncgts under which such statements were made, nigiaaisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamid,other financial information included in thimnaal report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this

report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintairiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%{d internal control over financial reportig @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proesgar caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known tc
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control ovearritial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurarmgagdang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegaitierally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and presanthbib report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgutures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repog) las materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and thetaz@mmittee of the registrant’s board of directfws persons performing the equivalent
function):

(@)

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal obntrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that inxed management or other employees who have aisattifole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 1, 2014

/sl Gary T. Steel
Gary T. Steels
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.:

I, Gregory S. Skinner, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16tKandec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notate@iny untrue statement of a material fact or éonéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nietamlisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfi@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officers araté responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%{d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes d@signed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrithe period in which this report is being prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr;, or caused such internal control over finah@@gorting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuraryagdang the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegsitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantadalisire controls and procedures and presentedsinegport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgutures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repost) las materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’'s internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anthve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitac@mmittee of the registrant’s board of directtws persons performing the equivalent
function):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigtsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 1, 2014

/sl Gregory S. Skinne
Gregory S. Skinne
Vice President of Finance and Administration
and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Landec Qugtion (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the periedding May 25, 2014 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Report”), I, Gary T. Ste€lhief Executive Officer and President of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1380adopted pursuant to 8 906 of the Sarbanes-@xliegf 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with theyuérements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SemsriExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Retgairly presents, in all material respects, timaficial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: August 1, 2014

/sl Gary T. Steele
Gary T. Steels
Chief Executive Officer and Preside
(Principal Executive Officer

* The foregoing certification is being furnishealedy pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Okleyof 2002 (subsections (a)
and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18itéthStates Code) and is not being filed as patti@form 10-K or as a
separate disclosure document.



Exhibit 32.z
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Landec Qwgtion (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the periedding May 25, 2014 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Report”), I, Gregory S.rBkir, Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 IC.S§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of theaBias-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejuérements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SeimsriExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Retgdairly presents, in all material respects, timaficial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: August 1, 2014

/sl Gregory S. Skinner
Gregory S. Skinne
Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)

* The foregoing certification is being furnishealedy pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OA&layof 2002 (subsections (a)
and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18iteéthStates Code) and is not being filed as path@®form 10-K or as a
separate disclosure document.



